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Chairman’s Statement
FTERSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “"Board”) of directors (the
"Director(s)”) of AUX International Holdings Limited (the
"Company”, together with its subsidiaries the "Group”), | am
pleased to present the Company's annual results for the year
ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year”).

Throughout 2023, our lifestyle entertainment business
encountered a challenging operating environment
characterized by subdued consumer sentiment and evolving
spending patterns. Notably, a significant portion of consumers
in Hong Kong opted to seek entertainment options in
Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC” or
“China”), contributing to the difficult landscape for our
lifestyle entertainment segment.

Consequently, revenue within our lifestyle entertainment
segment declined by HK$6.0 million, representing a decrease
of 28.6% from HK$21.0 million last year to HK$15.0 million for
the Year. Despite our concerted efforts and strategic
initiatives, this segment has struggled to sustain profitability in
recent years. Following a comprehensive analysis of market
dynamics, we have reluctantly concluded that the viability of
our lifestyle entertainment business in the Hong Kong market
is increasingly uncertain. Therefore, we have made the difficult
decision to discontinue our operations in this segment. This
strategic realignment is guided by our unwavering
commitment to optimizing shareholder value and directing
resources toward areas with sustainable growth and
profitability areas.

While we acknowledge the disappointment this decision may
evoke, we firmly believe it is essential for the Company's
long-term health and prosperity. Closing of the lifestyle
entertainment business will facilitate the reallocation of
resources towards areas where we can drive significant value
and capitalize on emerging opportunities.

Despite our resilience amidst the slowdown in the real estate
market in China during the recent years, our property
management business has encountered a decline in revenue
during the Year.

E LR R

AANBERRBAZHBERERER 2R A(E
~EEREMBARAGEIAEEDE
%U%%DAU%$ADW%fD NG

BE_FT-_NF=ZA=1T—BLFEIR
FEDZFEXRE-
E-T_=—FEBFH BMANEBRREE
BEHHEABEEGLERLRBEEAD
BEAMARABENEERR - BEFIE
GRS K% EEENEE %L&U¢$
SR (Teh B 7o bt ) 5 [ob B )) 3R 411 o8

BRE ERMANEERESHEBREE -

At EFRESBHWREHEFE21.08
BB TR 2608 BB T(B128.6%) = K F
Ewoa%%ﬁoﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂu%ﬁl%
BT RBS MRS Bk D B0 R AN E A
MR T BT Eﬁm%@%ﬁﬁiﬁ

ME BMERBLRE RO EFRE
%ﬁ&%%m%mﬁﬂAﬁ%@£X£T
mE-RAM BAMETERLERMBEZD
HOEBENEH AT EEHREBABUR
TN ERREEIEERERERTE
BENEARAMENEINEFERES -

i
| =13

HABRMAMEERREAELSTAKRE B
BMBEEHARAERERERREREE
iﬁiﬁoﬂtiéﬁ CEXBRABER

PTERERERMEAEELZBERIEERN
%@W%H°

BEERMOFETEDETSRENRBR
THeERFAE BERFANDXEERE
EAFEDEBRATRE-

Annual Report 2024 4 5



Chairman’s Statement
FTERSE

Revenue from our property management services has
decreased by HK$21.4 million from HK$319.7 million HK$298.3
million for the Year. This decrease primarily stems from
reduced provision of office management services and pre-sale
management services due to the completion of property
development projects and broader uncertainties in the real
estate market in China. While the number of relatively
short-term management projects remained stable, our total
gross floor area under management has slightly increased to
9.2 million sq. m as at 31 March 2024 compared to 9.0 million
sg. m as at 31 March 2023.

The decline in relatively short-term management projects
presented its unique set of obstacles. We approached this
situation with proactive measures and diligent efforts to focus
and refine our value-added services. As a result, revenue from
our property management related value-added services has
increased by HK$9.1 million from HK$56.4 million to HK$65.5
million for the Year.

As a result, our total revenue from property management
business has decreased by HK$12.3 million from HK$376.1
million last year to HK$363.8 million for the Year.

OUTLOOK

Despite the formidable challenges in the past year, they have
underscored the importance of adaptability, resilience, and
strategic foresight. The Group's property management
business continued to be recognised for the quality of its
services, evidenced by our property management business'’s
improved ranking in 2024 China's Top 100 Best Property
Management Service Companies from 33th last year to 30th
this year. Moreover, The Group's property management
business has been honored with prestigious awards, including
the Management Excellence in Hospital Premises China 2023,
the 2023 Zhejiang Province Property Service AAA Credit
Enterprise award, as well as certifications in ISO%001,
ISO14001, and ISO45001. These commendations serve to
invigorate the Group's commitment to enhancing its brand
awareness and service quality. Going forward, we will devote
additional resources to identify and evaluate new
opportunities within this domain, with the aim of infusing
further growth momentum into our business.
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Chairman’s Statement
FTERSE

In response to these challenges, our management team has
adopted a multifaceted approach to enhance operational
efficiency, optimize cost structures, and diversify revenue
streams. Leveraging our profound understanding of the China
real estate market and our proven track record in property
management, we are committed to navigating these turbulent
waters and positioning our property management business for
sustainable growth and resilience in the long run.

Our dedication to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and stakeholders remains unwavering. We will
continue prudently managing our resources, optimizing our
operations, and pursuing prudent investment opportunities to
create value for the Shareholders.

Looking ahead, the Board and management team remain
steadfast in our commitment to delivering sustained value to
the Shareholders. We are acutely aware of the evolving
dynamics and uncertainties in the markets in which we operate
and resolute in our determination to navigate these challenges
with prudence, agility, and strategic clarity.

We will diligently analyse favorable market shifts to explore
expansion into diverse industry sectors and enhance our
income streams. Moreover, we remain open to seizing suitable
investment prospects in different industries in order to
diversify our source of income further.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere gratitude
to our valued Shareholders for their unwavering support and
confidence in our Company’s vision and strategic direction,
which forms the cornerstone of our success. | would also like
to express my gratitude to our dedicated employees for their
commitment to upholding the highest standards of corporate
governance, transparency, and integrity in all our endeavors.

Mr. Zheng Jiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

During the Year, the Company operated in a challenging
economic environment in both the PRC and Hong Kong. The
macroeconomic conditions adversely impacted consumer
sentiment and spending, thereby affecting the Group’s
business operations. Despite these challenges, the Group
remained focused on navigating these difficult times and
making strategic decisions to ensure the long-term
sustainability of its business.

Given the persistent economic downturn, the Group has made
a strategic and necessary decision during the Year to close
down its lifestyle entertainment business in Hong Kong the
("Discontinued Operation”), a move that was not taken lightly.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 29
December 2023, the Board has resolved not to exercise the
option of renewal under the tenancy agreement for the leased
premises (the “"Leased Premises”) where the Group's club,
Zentral, operated and to deliver vacant possession of the
Leased Premises to the landlord by 30 June 2024. This
decision was made to reallocate resources and concentrate on
the Group’s core competencies in property management and
property management related value-added services in the PRC
(the “Continuing Operations”). By streamlining its operations,
the Group aims to enhance operational efficiency and focus
on areas with higher growth potential.

With the Company closing down its lifestyle entertainment
business during the Year, the Company has been focusing on
expanding revenue streams in the Continuing Operations.

Continuing Operations

As of 31 March 2024, the number of projects managed by
Shuyi Property Management Services Co., Ltd (“Shuyi
Property”) remained at 66 projects, and the aggregated
contracted gross floor area increased from 9.0 million sg.m. as
at 31 March 2023 to 9.2 million sg.m.

Even though the number of projects managed by Shuyi
Property remained stable, the Group’s property management
business in China faced headwinds. A decrease in number of
relatively short-term property management services, such as
sales office management and pre-sale management services,
has led to a decline in revenue from the traditional property
management services. As a result, revenue from property
management contracts decreased by HK$21.4 million from
HK$319.7 million in the year ended 31 March 2023 (“FY2023")
to HK$298.3 million for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWED N

However, revenue from property management related value-
added services has increased by HK$9.1 million, from HK$56.4
million in FY2023 to HK$65.5 million for the Year.

Hence, revenue generated from the Continuing Operations
decreased by approximately 3.3% to approximately HK$363.8
million for the Year.

In line with the expansion in the Group's property
management related value-added services, the cost of
inventories sold attributable to the Continuing Operations
increased by HK$8.7 million to HK$63.0 million during the
Year.

As the hygiene measures the Group implemented in coping
with the COVID-19 pandemic have been relaxed, the Group's
property cleaning expenses in relation to the Continuing
Operations have decreased by HK$5.0 million from HK$73.1
million in FY2023 to HK$68.1 million during the Year.

Other net (loss)/gain from the Continuing Operations
decreased by HK$12.7 million, from a net gain of HK$12.6
million in FY2023 to a net loss of HK$0.1 million for the Year.
Such decrease was mainly due to the change in denomination
of the loan from the controlling shareholder (the “Loan”) from
Renminbi (“RMB") to Hong Kong dollars ("HKD"), resulting
from which the Group has ceased to record any foreign
exchange gain or loss in respect of the Loan during the Year.
In comparison, the Group recorded a net foreign exchange
gain of approximately HK$7.4 million in respect of the then
RMB-denominated Loan as a result of the depreciation of RMB
against HKD for FY2023.

As a result, profit for the year generated from the Continuing
Operations decreased by HK$24.6 million from HK$53.8 million
in FY2023 to HK$29.2 million for the Year.

Discontinued Operation

Due to a change in consumer sentiment and the Group's plan
to focus on the Continuing Operations, revenue generated
from the Discontinued Operation decreased by HK$6.0 million,
from HK$21.0 million in FY2023 to HK$15.0 million for the Year.

As property, plant and equipment related to the Discontinued
Operation were fully impaired in previous years, no impairment
loss on property, plant and equipment was recognized during
the Year, in contrast to the impairment loss of HK$13.1 million
recorded for property, plant and equipment related to the
Discontinued Operation in FY2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

As a result, the loss from Discontinued Operation decreased
by HK$17.1 million, from HK$29.6 million in FY2023 to HK$12.5
million for the Year.

Overall, the Group’s profit for the year decreased by HK$7.4
million from HK$24.1 million in FY2023 to HK$16.7 million for
the Year.

Staff Costs

The staff costs comprised salaries, wages, discretionary
bonuses, membership commissions, tips from customers
allocated to staff and other benefits including retirement
benefit costs and other allowances and benefits payable to
permanent and part time staff. The staff costs from the
Continuing Operations increased by HK$4.5 million from
HK$125.9 million in FY2023 to HK$130.4 million for the Year
due to the increased number of staff in the Group's property
management related value-added services business during the
Year.

Utilities Expenses and Repair and Maintenance Expenses

The utilities expenses and repair and maintenance expenses
from the Continuing Operations decreased by approximately
HK$1.7 million to HK$26.7 million, representing a decrease of
6.0% for the Year (FY2023: approximately HK$28.4 million). The
decrease was mainly due to the relaxation of various hygiene
measures the Group implemented in coping with the
COVID-19 pandemic. As a result, utilities expenses from the
Continuing Operations decreased by HK$2.0 million from
HK$10.9 million in FY2023 to HK$8.9 million during the Year.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses from the Continuing Operations
decreased by approximately HK$2.7 million to HK$34.2 million
for the Year, representing a decrease of 7.3% (FY2023:
approximately HK$36.9 million). Such expenses included
gardening costs, security costs, impairment loss on trade
receivables and other miscellaneous expenses. The decrease
was mainly due to the reversal of impairment loss on trade
receivables of HK$0.2 million during the Year compared to the
impairment loss on trade receivables of HK$8.3 million in
FY2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWED N

As at 31 March 2024, the Group's total current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$448.9 million (31
March 2023: approximately HK$380.3 million) and
approximately HK$178.4 million (31 March 2023: approximately
HK$234.6 million) respectively, while the current ratio was
about 2.5 times (31 March 2023: 1.6 times).

As at 31 March 2024, the Group maintained cash at bank and
in hand of approximately HK$298.7 million (31 March 2023:
approximately HK$286.4 million). In the foreseeable future, the
Group expects to fund its capital expenditures, working capital
and other capital requirements from cash generated from its
operations and other financing means which the Company
may from time to time consider appropriate.

Total interest-bearing borrowing of the Group as at 31 March
2024 was approximately HK$58.4 million (31 March 2023:
HK$68.6 million), which was comprised mainly of the non-
current portion of HK$52.4 million of the loan with a term of
three years at an interest rate of 2% per annum granted by the
controlling shareholder of the Company to Starry Chance
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
for the purpose of financing its acquisition of the entire equity
interests in Shuyi Property. The gearing ratio, which is
calculated by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by
total equity, as at 31 March 2024 was 0.3 (31 March 2023: 0.3).

On 26 October 2021, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with Huiri Limited (the “Subscriber”). Pursuant to
the subscription agreement, the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue and the Subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for 118,000,000 shares (the
“Subscription”) at the price of HK$0.63 per share for a
consideration of HK$74,340,000. All the conditions set out in
the subscription agreement have been fulfilled and
accordingly, the completion of the Subscription took place on
15 February 2022. The net proceeds from the Subscription,
after deduction of the related expenses, of approximately
HK$73,730,000 had been fully utilised as working capital, rental
expenses of the lifestyle entertainment segment and partial
repayment of the loans from the controlling Shareholder.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

The Group manages its capital to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through maintaining the equity and
debt in a balanced position.

As at 31 March 2024, the capital structure of the Group
consisted of equity of approximately HK$230.0 million (31
March 2023: approximately HK$232.0 million) and loans from
the controlling Shareholder of approximately HK$104.8 million
(31 March 2023: HK$74.4 million). Except for the loans from the
controlling Shareholder of HK$52.4 million and lease liabilities,
the Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings, debt
securities or other capital instruments as at 31 March 2024.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINT VENTURES AND SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associated companies or joint ventures or
significant investments held during the Year.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any pledged
assets (31 March 2023: nil).

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group intends to conduct more comprehensive
evaluations of its growth strategies, assessing the potential for
broadening its revenue base by venturing into various
investment prospects across diverse sectors, including trading,
property management, information technology, brand
development and other industries, which may or may not
include any assets and/or business acquisitions or disposals by
the Group, and will consider all options. Any such plans will be
subject to review and approval by the Board and compliance
with the applicable requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Listing Rules”) where appropriate. The costs of
any such acquisitions will be met with cash generated from the
operations of the Group and other financing means which the
Group may consider appropriate from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEENWED N

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risks arising from RMB. Foreign
exchange risks arise from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities denominated in RMB for the
entities with a functional currency in HKD. The Group did not
use any forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency
exposure during the Year. The Group will from time to time
review and adjust its hedging and financial strategies based
on exchange rate movements in RMB and HKD.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2024, the Group employed approximately 952
employees (31 March 2023: 994 employees). The Group offers
competitive remuneration packages to its staff, including share
option scheme, mandatory provident fund scheme and
discretionary bonus.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group is optimistic about its future
prospects. The decision to focus on its property management
business while expanding its range of value-added services
positions it to capitalize on emerging market opportunities.
The property management industry in China continues to
evolve, with increasing demand for comprehensive and high-
quality services. The Group is committed to enhancing its
service offerings, integrating advanced technology, and
adopting innovative practices to meet and exceed client
expectations.

Furthermore, the Group's strategic pivot away from the
lifestyle entertainment business in Hong Kong allows it to
channel its resources and expertise into areas with greater
growth potential. By fostering solid relationships with its
clients and continuously improving service quality, the Group
is confident in its ability to regain growth momentum and
deliver long-term value to its Shareholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

The Group remained committed to leveraging its brand and
expertise and exploring new business opportunities to expand
its operation. The Group's focus on property management-
related value-added services will continue to be a key driver of
growth, and the Group is confident in its strategy to navigate
the current economic landscape and deliver sustained value to
its shareholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (31 March 2023: nil).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERGREREBZ2EHE

Mr. Zheng Jiang (% 5I), aged 59, is the chairman of the Board
and executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He is currently a director and deputy
chairman of AUX Group, a China Top-500 enterprise with
business operations in multiple industries, primarily in air
conditioner manufacturing, power equipment, healthcare and
finance. He had been a director and the deputy chairman of
Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd. (B R =ZEEEF S
SR B BR A Al), a Chinese electrical meter manufacturer
and health care service provider listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601567) (“Ningbo Sanxing Medical”),
since its listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in June 2011
until March 2014 when he vacated such offices by rotation. He
has over 28 years of experience in corporate management. He
is a brother of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, the controlling
Shareholder and an executive Director of the Company. He is
also the sole legal and beneficial owner and sole director of
Ze Hong Limited, which legally and beneficially owns 10% of
the issued share capital of Huiri Limited, which in turn is
interested in 337,950,000 shares of the Company (the
"Shares”), representing approximately 68.55% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.

Mr. Chan Hon Ki (B &), aged 45, is the executive Director,
chief executive officer and a joint company secretary of the
Company and has joined the Group since May 2015. He holds
a bachelor’'s degree in commerce from University of
Canterbury, New Zealand and a master of Business
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of Institute of Certified Management Accountants,
Australia. Mr. Chan has over 19 years of experience in the field
of auditing and accounting. He has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of Wah Ho Holdings
Group Ltd (stock code: 9938) since December 2019 and was an
independent non-executive director of Chen Lin Education
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1593) from November
2019 to June 2021. All the above are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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Biographical Detai
EEREREEBZERE

Mr. Zheng Jianjiang (¥} B T), aged 62, is the founder and
currently the chairman of the board of AUX Group Co., Ltd.*
(B 7% % E AR A A, aconglomerate with business in
manufacturing of electrical and household appliance, health
care and finance investment and an executive director of
Ningbo Sanxing Medical. Mr. Zheng is a senior economist of
the PRC. Mr. Zheng is a controlling Shareholder (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of the Company, interested through
his controlled corporations in 337,950,000 Shares, representing
approximately 68.55% of the Company's total issued share
capital. Mr. Zheng is the brother of Mr. Zheng Jiang, the
chairman of the Board and an executive Director. Mr. Zheng
was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1
January 2024, and has obtained the legal advice referred to in
Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 15 December 2023. Mr.
Zheng has confirmed that he understood his obligations as a
director of a listed issuer.

Ms. Shen Guoying (3t Bl %), aged 53, is the executive Director
of the Company and has joined the Group since May 2015.
She is currently the chief executive officer in healthcare of
Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group Co., Ltd, and the chairman of
Ningbo Sanxing Medical. She holds a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy awarded jointly by The Open University of China
(R E & B 1R K E) and Beijing Technology and Business
University (3t )8 T # K 2). She is a senior accountant (& #&
g & B0 ) in the PRC. She has over 29 years of experience in
finance management.

Ms. Chen Lingxiao (PR % #&), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 1 September 2022. She
is currently the director of the treasury department of AUX
Group Co., Ltd.* (B 7 7 (£ @ & PR 2 7)), a conglomerate
with business in manufacturing of electrical and household
appliance, health care and finance investment. She holds a
bachelor’'s degree in finance management from China Jiliang
University. She has over 14 years’ experience in finance and
treasury management.

s of Directors and Senior Management
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EENSREERZ2BEE

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok (& B8 Ell) , aged 62, is the independent
non-executive Director of the Company and has joined the
Group since May 2015. He is currently an executive director,
vice president and the company secretary of Huabao
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336). Mr. Poon was
awarded the postgraduate diploma in laws by the University of
London. He holds a master’'s degree in international
accounting, bachelor’'s degree in laws and a bachelor's degree
in business studies. He is a fellow of CPA Australia Ltd., the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute, a fellow of The
Chartered Governance Institute, and a fellow of The Hong
Kong Chartered Governance Institute and a member of its
Technical Consultation Panel and Mainland China Focus
Group. Mr. Poon has years of experience in finance,
compliance, and listed companies management.

Mr. Poon served as an independent non-executive director of
Changan Minsheng APLL Logistics Co., Ltd. (listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1292) from 2011 to June 2023 and
an independent non - executive director of Yuanda China
Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
2789) from 2011 to September 2023. From 2017 to 2021, he
served as an independent non-executive director of Honghua
Group Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 196)
and from July 2013 to March 2021, as independent non-
executive director of Tonly Electronics Holdings Limited (listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1249, subsequently
withdrawn listing with effect from 8 March 2021), He served as
an independent non-executive director of Yankuang Energy
Group Company Limited (formerly known as Yanzhou Coal
Mining Company Limited, listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1171) from 2017 to June 2023. Currently, Mr. Poon also
serves as an independent non-executive director of the
following public companies listed on Stock Exchange: Sunac
China Holdings Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1918), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings
Company Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
631), China Isotope & Radiation Corporation (stock code:
1763), Greentown Service Group Company Limited (listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2869) and Jinchuan Group
International Resources Co. Ltd (listed on the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 2362). Mr. Poon has been serving as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since
June 2023.
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EENSREER 2HEE

Mr. Bau Siu Fung (£ /N #), aged 57, is the independent non-executive
Director of the Company and has joined the Group since May
2015. He was an executive director, chief financial officer and
the company secretary of Chen Lin Education Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1593) from September 2018 to May 2021.
Mr. Bau holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration
in Accountancy and Finance. Mr. Bau has more than 21 years
of experience in accounting and auditing field. Mr. Bau is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Bau was appointed on 22 June 2018 as an
independent non-executive director of FSM Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1721). All of the above are companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lou Aidong (£ ¥ ), aged 58, is the independent non-executive
Director of the Company and has joined the Group since May
2015. She is currently a partner of Beijing Kangda Law Firm (3t
R EREZ B = 7). She holds a bachelor's degree in law
from the Peking University (It ;2 X £) . Ms. Lou is a qualified
attorney in the PRC and has over 30 years of experience in the
legal profession. From May 2008 to April 2010, she was a
member of Public Offering Review Committee (% 17T 8| % &

PN

8 &) of the China Securities Regulatory Commissio n (4
FFREBERBRZE ).
director of three companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock

She served as an independent

Exchange, namely Guangdong Hongda Blasting Co., Ltd. (&
HEKNEBWKR B A R A 7 ) (stock code: 002683), from
December 2010 to December 2016, and Jiangsu Nata
Opto-electronic Material Co., Ltd. (VL & /M X ¥ & & £ &R 5
B PR A &) (stock code: 300346), from October 2010 to June
2017 and Guangdong Xiongsu Technology Group Co., Ltd. (&
HEBEEEBRHD AR A (stock code: 300599), from
June 2016 to August 2017. She served as an independent
director of a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
namely Yunnan Metropolitan Real Estate Development Co.,
Ltd. (ZEM LB X R MH B R A7) (stock code: 600239)
from May 2017 to May 2023. She has been an independent
director of two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, namely Visionox Technology Inc. (# {5 # &t £ i%
5 A PR A & ) (stock code: 002387) and Hubei Kailong
Chemical Group Co., Ltd Gl LSl B TR ER D BER A 7))
(stock code: 002783), since May 2021 and January 2020,
respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

TXELRHRE

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed
to achieving a high standard of corporate governance and
leading the Group to attain better results and improve its
corporate image with effective corporate governance
procedures.

The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained in
Appendix C1 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended
31 March 2024.

The Company has adopted The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct for securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and
they have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic
decisions to the Group's activities and oversees its financial
performances. The Board has delegated its powers to the
management for the Group's daily management and
operations.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board comprised
four executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. At least one of the independent non-executive
Directors possessed the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and financial management expertise, which
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. Throughout the year ended 31 March 2024, the number
of independent non-executive Directors represents more than
one-third of the Board. As such, there existed a strong
independent element in the Board, which effectively exercised
independent judgement.

Mr. Zheng Jianjiang was appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2024. Mr. Zheng has obtained the
legal advice referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on
15 December 2023 and has confirmed that he understood his
obligations as a director of a listed issuer.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

For the year ended 31 March 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Zheng Jianjiang
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2024)
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Ms. Shen Guoying
Ms. Chen Lingxiao

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

The brief biographical details of the current Directors are set
out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 16 to 19.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report,
the Directors have no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each independent
non-executive Director, a written confirmation of his or her
independence to the Company pursuant to the requirements
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has
arranged training for Directors in the form of seminars and
provision of training materials. All Directors have provided
their training records to the Company.
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According to records provided by the Directors, a summary of
training received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March

2024 is as follows:

BREEFRENCLHE EFTHE_T_NM
FZA=ZT - HBLEEEEXNEIHZ N
T

Attended seminars

HEMSS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zheng Jiang BT x4 v
Mr. Zheng Jianjiang BfBXOT A& v
Mr. Chan Hon Ki BROZEH %k & v
Ms. Shen Guoying B3 2+ v/
Ms. Chen Lingxiao BR % B & £ v/
Independent Non-executive Directors YHHBITES
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok & IR 4 A J
Mr. Bau Siu Fung RN 8 %k A v
Ms. Lou Aidong EFRLT v
For the year ended 31 March 2024, the positions of the HEZ-_Z_-_MF=ZHAH=+—HILEFE  *
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were held B EITHRAEIHOBLB IR ALTEL =
separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Zheng Jiang & — B B )T E A EF - MIT BB — B
and the role of Chief Executive Officer was held by Mr. Chan BB EHE T EREF - T HFAETEREE
Hon Ki. The Chairman is responsible for the leadershipand E=Z=€ MO BRAHNAEAEEHBEK E’]
governance for the Board while the Chief Executive Officeris H®EE®E EH -

responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group's
business.

The division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the

Chief Executive Officer is defined and established in writing.

The service contracts of Mr. Zheng Jiang, Mr. Chan Hon Ki and
Ms. Shen Guoying all have an initial term of three years with
effect from 15 May 2015. These contracts shall be renewed
and extended automatically for successive terms of one year
upon expiry of the then-current term until terminated by him
or her by giving not less than three months’ written notice
expiring at the end of the initial term of his or her
appointment or any time thereafter to the Company, or by the
Company by giving not less than three months’ written notice
expiring at the first anniversary of the initial term of his or her

appointment or any time thereafter to him or her.

TERTHREAZOBECHER S LA
EEPAEL -

BIEE REEEERLBRLZ TR
BENHE_T-—HAFRAATHBREROY
RB=F - ZFTENEEERNTHER
BREDEHMLER -—FEH BEERNHEE
RV FTEIE K E R AT AR E
AALR=ZBEAEEBHAAEARAHR
HEZENNTEPRNE —BABEFHERNL
HEEASBAAR2ANRTIIR=ZEAZE
mBEMAEEM T AKL-

N

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hi B RS 2 R A PR 24 B



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Each of the current independent non-executive Directors has
been appointed to the Board for an initial term of three years
commencing from 15 May 2015 which shall be renewed and
extended automatically for successive terms of one year upon
expiry of the then-current term until terminated either by him
by giving not less than three months’ written notice expiring at
the end of the initial term of his or her appointment or any
time thereafter to the Company, or by the Company by giving
not less than three months’ written notice expiring on the first
anniversary of the initial term of his appointment or any time
thereafter to him or her.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are governed by the Company’s articles
of association (the “Articles of Association”). The appointment
of each of the Directors is subject to his re-election at an
annual general meeting upon retirement. The Articles of
Association provides that any Director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of
3, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation at least once every 3 years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Accordingly, Mr. Bau Siu Fung, Mr. Chan Hon Ki and Ms. Lou
Aidong shall retire by rotation at the annual general meeting.
Ms. Lou Aidong will not offer herself for re-election at the
annual general meeting. Ms. Lou Aidong has confirmed that
she has no disagreement with the Board and there are no
matters that need to be brought to the attention of the
holders of securities of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Bau Siu Fung and Mr. Chan Hon Ki, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the same meeting.

In addition, according to the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the meeting. Accordingly, the office of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang,
being an executive Director appointed with effect from 1
January 2024, will end at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, being eligible, will offer himself
for re-election at the meeting.
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BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

Pursuant to CG Code provision C.5.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four
times a year.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to
be material, the Director shall abstain from voting on the
relevant resolutions and he/she shall not be counted as a
quorum in the Board meeting discussing the matter
concerned.

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each of
the Directors at the Board and committee meetings of the

Company held during the year ended 31 March 2024:

Attendance to meetings

E;b%%anﬁ
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HEE R

Attendance/Number of Meetings Held

HE/ETEERY

Regular Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration  Extraordinary Annual

Board Committee Committee Committee General General

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

EHESE  ENZEE  REZEE  HMZEE RE%H RREF

Name of Directors Espg g3 EE EE EE 8- -1

Executive Directors HES

Mr. Zheng Jiang BIkk 44 N/ARE R [l 1/1 11 1/1

Mr. Chan Hon Ki REELE Yy NATER  NATER /1 /1 i
Mr. Zheng Jianjiang L ﬁ E

(appointed with effect from (E-F-m%

1 January 2024) -H-HEEEf) NAT & B NAT @R NAT & R NAT @ B N NAT & B
Ms. Shen Guoying S 44 NATE R N NATER 11 1/1
Ms. Chen Lingxiao REBTTL 44 NATE R NATER NATER 11 1/1
Independent Buif#fiEs

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kok ERELE 44 44 11 11 1 111
Mr. Bau Siu Fung BoERE 4/4 4/4 1 171 111 17
Ms. Lou Aidong § Rt 4/4 4/4 17 171 11 17
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The annual general meeting of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2024 is scheduled to be held on 23 August
2024.

The Board has established the audit committee of the
Company (the
committee of the Company (the “"Remuneration Committee”)

“Audit Committee”), the remuneration

and the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”). All Board committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to shareholders on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 3 January 2014 with
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. For the
year ended 31 March 2024, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely Mr. Bau Siu Fung (Chairman), Mr.
Poon Chiu Kwok and Ms. Lou Aidong, all being independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control, compliance and risk management systems of the
Group; (ii) overseeing the audit process and performing other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board; (iii)
developing and reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance with legal and regulatory requirements
and requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to
the employees and Directors.
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A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 March 2024 is set out as follows:

Reviewed with the senior management and
finance-in-charge and/or the external auditors of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, the accuracy and fairness of the annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and interim
financial report for the six months ended 30 September
2023 respectively;

Met with the external auditors and reviewed their work
and findings relating to the annual audit for the year
ended 31 March 2023 and the effectiveness of the audit
process;

Reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group;

Conducted annual review of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2023;

Approved the internal audit plan for the year ended 31
March 2022 and internal audit report for the year ended
31 March 2023;

Reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved
the engagement of external auditors and recommended
to the Board on the re-appointment of external auditors;

Reviewed the financial reporting and compliance
procedures and the report from the management on the
Company's internal control systems and processes; and

Noted the new requirements on the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide under the
Listing Rules and highlighted the amendments under the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to
perform the corporate governance function. During the year
ended 31 March 2024, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report; and (ii) reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the
Nomination Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang
(Chairman) and Ms. Shen Guoying, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok, Mr. Bau
Siu Fung and Ms. Lou Aidong. Accordingly, a majority of the
members were and continue to be independent non-executive
Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include making recommendations to the Board regarding
candidates to fill vacancies on the Board.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 is
set out as follows:

° Reviewed and discussed the existing structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements for the business of the
Group and that it is in compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules.

° Make recommendations to the Board for the re-election
of existing directors.

T EEREE

E R ?E%V%E@Eﬁﬁ%%?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ°
@Zj:_ —_WME=ZA=Z+—HLFE F
RZEBE2((RITARAETELEERTAH
E’J‘ /R&JJ:%E./E\%i£ ERNR K E (i)
MELERETFTERREERENARQARK
%&TW

REZES
REZEER T —NWF—-—HA=AKi"
WIRECEE TAHGTEAREEBE
HE - BHE-_T-_NF=A=+—HItF
E - REZEeheATEKNEAK  H
MBRTESE TR E(ER)RILEE L

TUAR=ZRBIUFRTEEEBE L L
whERERBERLL AL KEKX
BoERRBEBERBILIFERATESE -

REZEENTIEREBRRANESTS 1’Eﬁ
EHEREZSERNBEREANEEEZS
%%%Eﬁb’é E_MOMFE=ZA=+—

IEEERADT

s BIARMNBEFENRTRE HE-
MR kZTit BARKEBHNER-
ReEMKRBRESTE UESAEHE
MEBFE AT LMARAOBRE -

. oEE
Z 8o

I RAEFRNE=TSRLIMR

Annual Report 1 27



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The recommendations on director appointment and
re-election were made in accordance with the Company's
policy for the nomination of Directors and took into account
the diversity aspects (including, without limitation, age,
cultural and educational background, professional expertise
and experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) under
the board diversity policy. For details, please refer to the
section headed "Board Diversity Policy” in this Corporate
Governance Report. In particular, the Nomination Committee
had taken into consideration the perspectives, skills and
experience that Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok could bring to the Board
as an independent non-executive Director, including without
limitations his extensive experience in finance, compliance,
and listed companies management.

Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok is holding directorships in seven listed
companies as at the date of this Corporate Governance report.
As an independent non-executive director of all but one of
these companies, he is generally not involved in the
day-to-day operations and management of the businesses of
such companies. Mr. Poon has annually disclosed to the
Company the number and nature of offices held in listed
companies and other significant commitments. As a
professional, he is competent in time management and has
sound knowledge and skills to effectively discharge his duties
in those positions. The Board considers that Mr. Poon is able
to devote sufficient time to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 3 January
2014, with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code. For the year ended 31 March 2023, the
Remuneration Committee comprised a total of five members,
being two executive Directors, namely Mr. Zheng Jiang and
Mr. Chan Hon Ki, and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Lou Aidong (Chairwoman), Mr. Poon
Chiu Kwok and Mr. Bau Siu Fung. Accordingly, a majority of
the members were and continue to be independent
non-executive Directors.
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The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the
Board on the policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management and on the establishment of
a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
policies on such remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of executive Directors and members of senior management
(which may include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of office or appointment, as
appropriate).

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year ended 31 March 2024 is set out as
follows:

. Assessed the performance of executive Directors;

o Reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company;

o Approved the terms of service contract of the executive

Director appointed during the year;

o Reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages (including discretionary bonus)
of Directors and senior management of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2024; and

o Reviewed matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17, including, among others, the applicable
requirements under the relevant parts of the Listing
Rules as amended, and resolved that no share option
should be granted under the existing share option
scheme given the prevailing external and internal
circumstances.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of
the annual remuneration of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 March 2024 are as follows:
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Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the
year ended 31 March 2024 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Under the policy, the selection of Board candidates shall be
based on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to
the Company’s business model and specific needs, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and
ethnicity, in addition to educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against appropriate criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity for the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised seven
Directors.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2024, the remunerations paid or
payable to the external auditor in respect of its audit and
related services provided to the Group were approximately
HK$2,738,000.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2024. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. The statement of the independent auditors of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 125 to 132.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

INTERNAL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted an annual r eview of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.
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During the Year, the Group appointed BT Corporate
Governance Limited ("BT") to:

o assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

o independently perform internal control review and assess
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management
measures as recommended by BT to enhance the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board. Based
on the findings and recommendations of BT as well as the
comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considered the
internal control and risk management systems are effective
and adequate.

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part
XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The internal
control mechanism includes information flow and reporting
processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure
procedures, and staff training arrangements, etc.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall
responsibility to ensure that sound and effective internal
controls are maintained, management is responsible for
designing and implementing an internal control system to
manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments.
Our risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise
Risk Management—Integrated Framework, which allows the
Board and management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports through the
Audit Committee, which oversees risk management and
internal audit functions.
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The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced
to and conducted by BT. The Group maintains a risk register
to keep track of all identified major risks of the Group. The risk
register provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and
management with a profile of its major risks and records
management'’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks. Each
risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of
occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk
register is updated by management as the risk owners with the
addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation
has been performed. This review process can ensure that the
Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense
that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility
so that they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the
Group's risk management framework will be evaluated at least
annually, and periodic management meeting is held to update
the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management is
committed to ensuring that risk management forms part of the
daily business operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the
Group's internal control and risk management systems as
appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost-effective to appoint external independent professionals
to perform internal audit functions for the Group in order to
meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors will continue to
review at least annually the need for an internal audit function.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

The joint company secretaries of the Group are Ms. Tsang
Kwok Shan Sandy and Mr. Chan Hon Ki. Each of Ms. Tsang and
Mr. Chan has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2024.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company which
took effect from January 2014. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
will take into account the Company's future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions and other factors which the
Directors deem relevant such as the prevailing market
conditions and global economic situation.

The dividend payout ratio would be calculated based on
certain per cent of the net profit recorded during the financial
year, with a view to retaining sufficient funds and capital for
operational uses and future investment opportunities and
ensuring that all possible acquisitions could be properly
financed. The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed
from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

The payment of dividends is also subject to any restriction
under the laws of Hong Kong, the laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the shareholders and the Board.
An annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company shall be
held each year and at the place as may be determined by the
Board.
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Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM")

Pursuant to the Article 64 of the Articles of Association, an
EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
has the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Board or the company secretary
at the headquarters of the Company in Hong Kong, which is
presently situated at Unit 1, 10/F., Emperor Group Centre, 288
Hennessy Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for the purpose of
requiring an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and signed by the
requisitionist(s). The request will be verified with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Board will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the statutory requirements to all the
registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request has
been verified as not in order, the Shareholders will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be convened
as requested. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Enquiries by Shareholders to the Board
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
the attention of the company secretary at the Company'’s
headquarters in Hong Kong.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting”.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has
amended the Memorandum and Articles of Association to (i)
allow a general meeting to be held as an electronic meeting
(also referred to as virtual general meeting) or a hybrid
meeting; (ii) bring the Articles of Association in line with
amendments made to Listing Rules and applicable laws and
procedures of the Cayman Islands; and (iii) make certain minor
housekeeping amendments to the Memorandum and Articles
for the purpose of clarifying existing practice and making
consequential amendments in line with the amendments to
the Articles of Association.

Details of the amendments were set out in the Company's
circular dated 26 July 2023. The amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association for further
details of the rights of Shareholders.
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INTRODUCTION

AUX International Holdings Limited (hereafter called "AUX" or
the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “"Group”,
"we", "our” or "us"”) are committed to providing high-quality
services, and to maintaining its competitive position of both
property management business in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") as well as the restaurant and club business
in Hong Kong as the Group's vision and mission. The Group is
committed to being a responsible corporate institution. While
making a great effort to achieve its corporate goals, the Group
also hopes to seek societal benefits in order to achieve
sustainable development in all aspects.

In view of this, this Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report (the "ESG Report” or ”
the balance between three aspects: corporate needs, social

Report”) will focus on

needs and environmental concerns. The Group understands
that including the elements of sustainable development in
corporate strategies has now become a trend. We will
communicate with different stakeholders actively in order to
understand the needs of all parties, and to manage the ESG
issue comprehensively. The Group will consider relevant short-
term and long-term factors while implementing the plan of
sustainable development, which includes the challenges we
are facing, responsibilities to stakeholders, global trends,
regulations and risk management, etc. We believe that in
today’s constantly changing business environment, a company
must take responsibility for ESG issues in the long run in order
to succeed.

Through careful and in-depth understanding of the risks and
opportunities of ESG issues the Group is facing, the Group will
actively fulfil its corporate social responsibilities, abiding by
local laws, providing a suitable working environment for the
employees. It would also pay attention to social issues
including responsible procurement, avoiding drug abuse,
environmental protection, volunteer activities, etc. We will also
contribute to environmental protection starting with waste
reduction. As a part of society, the Group will strive to
contribute to society and work together to create a better
environment in the community.

Lastly, regarding the Group’s ESG policy and performance of
the financial year 2023/2024, the Board of Directors (the
"Board”) are pleased to present the ESG Report 2023/2024 of
the Group.
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Reporting Scope

The ESG Report aims to provide an overview of our
performance with respect to environmental protection, social
involvement, engagement with stakeholders and sustainable
development for the financial year from 1 April 2023 to 31
March 2024 (the "Reporting Period” or “FY 2023/2024"). The
reporting scope is determined based on the materiality and
significance of ESG impacts on the Group. Thus, this ESG
Report summarises the ESG practices and performance of the
two operation segments of the Group, which are the principal
business activities of the Group. It includes restaurant and
club business in Hong Kong (“Lifestyle Entertainment
Segment”), and property management business in the PRC
("Property Management Segment”). The information
contained herein is helpful to know about and evaluate the
Group's ESG performance in routine business in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Reporting Principles

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the
"Guide") set out in Appendix C2 to the "Main Board Listing
Rules” (the “Listing Rules”) issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In preparing the
ESG Report, the Group has adopted the international
standards and emission factors specified in the guidance
materials on ESG issued by the Stock Exchange for computing
the relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs"), and there is
no change from the previous reporting period in the way the
ESG Report has been prepared.

The ESG Report complies with all provisions of “mandatory
disclosure” or "comply or explain”, as well as the reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance,
details of which are set out below:
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Materiality

In addition to internal factors, such as corporate value,
strategy and core competence, the Group has also
communicated with the internal and external stakeholders on
a regular basis, and considered the ESG strategies of other
industries, so as to achieve sustainable development. The
Group has identified the following categories that have or may
have a significant impact on the Group’s ESG performance:

o Clubbing and entertainment industry in Hong Kong;

o Property service industry in the PRC;

o Property management market in the PRC;
o Present or future environment and society;
o Financial performance or operation of the Group; and

° Evaluation,
stakeholders.

decision and action of the Group's

The application of materiality is detailed in the section headed
"Materiality Assessment” of the ESG Report.

Quantitative

The data set out in the ESG Report is derived from the Group's
archived documents, records and statistics. The KPlIs disclosed
in the ESG Report are supported by quantitative data and
measurable standards. The source of all applicable data,
calculation tools, methods, references and conversion factors
applied are disclosed in the emission data presented in the
ESG Report.
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For comparative purposes of ESG performance from year to
year, the Group adopts consistent approaches to data
collection, calculation and reporting, where reasonable, across
all fiscal years, and records significant changes in detail for the
relevant components. In the ESG Report, the intensity of the
relevant KPls, unless otherwise indicated, figures of the
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment are calculated based on the
operating premises (including restaurants, clubs and head
office)' of the Reporting Period, while figures of the Property
Management Segment in the PRC is calculated based on the
average number of property projects? of the Reporting Period.

The ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
performance within the Reporting Period, avoiding selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence a decision or judgment by the reader.

Feedback

The Group has covered the key issues concerned by different
stakeholder groups through continuous communication with
the stakeholders. We welcome opinions and suggestions on
the ESG performance of the Group, which can be sent to the
Group's email: info@auxint.com.

! The number of business premises during the Reporting Period was 2 (FY
2022/2023: 3.5).

g The number of property projects during the Reporting Period was 66 (FY
2022/2023: 55).
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ABOUT AUX INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED

Business of the Group

Lifestyle Entertainment Segment

We own and operate club and restaurant and bar outlets in
Hong Kong, namely Zentral and Mini Club, providing services
including private parties, corporate events, live entertainment,
fashion shows, jewellery fairs, filming location and film
premiere. However, as the tenancy agreement for the leased
premises in Central has expired on 30 June 2024, Zentral was
closed down. In addition, the “Mini Club” restaurant and bar
outlet in Mong Kok, being the other existing limb of the
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment of the Group, also ceased to
operate after 31 December 2023 in view of the imminent
expiration of the relevant tenancy agreement. The business of
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment of the Group has been
experiencing a downturn in recent years primarily attributable
to the COVID-19 pandemic, the decision to discontinue the
operation of the Lifestyle Entertainment Segment of the Group
has been strategically made by the Board after careful review
of the historical segmental financial performance and holistic
assessment of the prevailing circumstances.

Property Management Segment

Its headquarters is located in Ningbo, we offer property
management services and management-related value-added
services in 14 cities in the PRC, namely, Ningbo, Chengdu,
Hangzhou, Jiujiang, Nanchang, Nanjing, Qingdao, Shanghai,
Tianjin, Changsha, Huzhou, Maanshan, Fenghua and
Zhengzhou, providing specialised property management
services for commercial areas, residential areas, villas, office
buildings, industrial areas, etc. The Property Management
Segment mainly provides management services for residential
properties, its services also cover non-residential properties
such as office buildings, shopping malls, medium and high-
end residential buildings, hospitals and industrial parks.
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Vision

To steadily carry out property management businesses and
maintain high-quality services, so as to develop AUX into a
world brand and provide the maximum sustainable value for
stakeholders.

Mission
Create and lead an intelligent life, and cultivate excellent
talents.

Goal
Dedicated to improving the quality of property management
services.

The Board
As of the date of this ESG Report, the Board comprises the
following Directors:

Independent Non-executive
Executive Directors Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok
Mr. Bau Siu Fung
Ms. Lou Ai Dong

Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Zheng Jianjiang

Mr. Chan Hon Ki

Ms. Shen Guoying

Ms. Chen Lingxiao

The Group recognises the importance of ESG for sustainable
corporate development and ensures the relevant ESG policies
are effectively implemented in its operations. The Board of the
Group is primarily responsible for monitoring ESG governance
issues relating to the Group and monitoring the formulation
and implementation of relevant policies and measures by the
management and relevant departments. The Board also
requires the Group's management to report to the Board on
ESG-related issues and subsequent developments in a timely
and proactive manner, such as significant deviations from
expected targets in ESG performance indicators, serious ESG
incidents, changes in regulatory requirements, etc.
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The Board is responsible for:
o appointing the Group's key persons responsible for
managing ESG issues;

o approving ESG strategies, action plans and goals;

J monitoring the progress and performance of ESG-related
measures;

o approving the implementation of ESG-related measures

and monitoring the resources required;

J raising appropriate ESG-related questions, inquiries and
recommendations to management; and

o reviewing and approving annual ESG reports.
The management is responsible for:
J identifying and assessing the Group's ESG risks and

opportunities and reporting to the Board,;

o developing ESG strategies, action plans, goals and
arrange relevant work accordingly;

° ensuring appropriate and effective ESG risk management
and internal monitoring systems are in place;

J providing guidance for the implementation of ESG
policies and measures;

o reporting to the Board on the progress and performance
of ESG; and
o reviewing the annual ESG report and submit it to the

Board for approval.
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The functional departments are responsible for:
o coordinating and implementing the specific ESG policies
and measures;

o reporting ESG work and performance indicators to the
management regularly;

o collecting the information and data on the Group's ESG
performance; and

o preparing the annual ESG report and report to the
management.

The Board will continue to monitor the ESG-related work and
keep abreast of the latest ESG disclosure requirements and
regulations of the Stock Exchange. The Board will also ensure
that all departments work closely to achieve the goal of
operational compliance and shouldering social responsibility,
and set clearer ESG goals for the Group in the future to better
meet the expectations of stakeholders.

The Group actively seeks every opportunity to understand our
stakeholders and guarantees the regular improvement of our
services. We firmly believe that our stakeholders play a vital
role in maintaining the success of our business.
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Stakeholders
B4 E

Issues Concerned

HEEE

Communication and Feedback

BEMNE R

Stock Exchange
Bt 32X PR

Government

B

Suppliers

HERS

Investors

REE

Media & Public
HEEKR

Customers

BE

Employees

8T

Community

i+ E

Compliance with the listing rules,
and timely & accurate announcement

M ETRA R EERG DS

Compliance with laws and regulations,
prevention against tax evasion, and
social welfare

EREEREEST
=

- [ Lk 26 B M

Payment schedule and demand stability

NREHEER FBREBTE

Corporate governance system,
business strategy and performance,
and investment return

’L\\j g A L% %ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁlﬂji )&‘
% & [ #®

Corporate governance, environmental
protection and human rights

NAIEBER RIERE - AR

Service quality, reasonable price,
service values, employee protection
and working safety

fRisEE ERESIR RBEE
ETRENIEL 2

Interests and welfare, employee
remuneration, training and
development, working hours,
working environment

BmMEN BTHHM HIRER-

THERHE THERE

Community environment, employment
and community development,
social welfare

HEBRE REXMEEER-

it & | A

Meeting, training, website update and
announcement

e& B PUHERMNMRE

Government inspection, tax declaration
and other information

BFmE MEPRRMEAMER

Business communication, purchase
agreement, e-mail and telephone
connection

X¥BEBR EBAL-
EE il

EFBHR

Organising and participating in seminars,
shareholders’ meetings, issuing financial
reports and other announcement

HBM2EMTE BRRRE
HMPHEREREMBRSE

Publishing newsletters on the corporate
website

/NIl T

Field investigation, after-sales services

REER ERRK

Training, interviews with employees, internal
memos, employee’s suggestion box

B CBEIE#K ABEBESE BEIZEFEM

Community development activities,
volunteering activities of employees,
community welfare subsidy and donation

HEBRERESH BIRETEHM
1t [ 18 I 8 RE A8 R
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMFM

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted surveys of R & HE  NE B FE B EH R B &I BHF
internal and external stakeholders, including management, M E(REERE -EIMN FTEXEFP KX
employees, major customers and major suppliers, to identify ZHEEF)ETHSET  UFHHRFHE KX
and assess material ESG issues so as to determine the impacts MESG B M T EH SEBE XBKMNEZ IR
of such issues on the Group's business operation, environment E M€ F E K & & - B E A & B & E R
and society. Based on the Group's reporting scope and #E ¥BFHUARSHTENENREE
business characteristics as well as the feedback from Z &  A%£ BB #% 58 E = KX WESGH &
stakeholders, the Group has identified the relevant material WA S S EETFHE - FBEOTE R :
ESG issues and evaluated them through a scoring system.

Details are shown in the chart below:

Materiality Matrix 2 Z M 5714

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS
ASSESSMENTS & DECISIONS
KR

Low LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL & SOCIAL IMPACTS High
15 e BENd eV ENEERE =

7

46 AUX International Holdings Limited / 5 5% &f B B 42 B2 B TR 24 &
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Number ESG Issues

Number ESG Issues

fR% ESGHEE 3% ESG= &

1 Air emissions 9 Employment
B R HE R & =

2 Greenhouse gas emissions 10 Occupational health and safety
B E R R BE BExREERZ D

3 Hazardous waste 11 Development and training
BEEBEEY R RE

4 Non-hazardous waste 12 Labour standards
BEBERY & T % 8l

5 Energy consumption 13 Supply chain management
BE R (£ A e g g IR

6 Water consumption 14 Product and service responsibility
KE IR E A EmEkREEE

7 Environment and natural resources 15 Anti-corruption
RERRKAER R&S

8 Climate change 16 Community investment
R & 21 HEKRE

As shown above, the social ESG issues are of high materiality
to the Group based on the materiality assessment and the
survey conducted with internal and external stakeholders by
the Group. In particular, as the Group's business is principally
engaged in the provision of entertainment services and
property management business, the materiality of customer
satisfaction is particularly emphasised to ensure that the
services provided could satisfy the expectations of customers.

In the future, the Group will be more proactive in maintaining
communication with stakeholders and collecting advice from
them through different channels to conduct more
comprehensive analysis and continue to promote the Group's
sustainable development plan.

WmEMR AEELBH AL EINEFH
FETHEZNFGERE BTIHEETE
MESCE BHAEENEEMEHRS - A8
maE > BRARERERNERRERS
EMEERXRHRET AUEBHNRARTP
R E R E E M DA R BT IR M A0 BR 7 BE
mEREPZHE-

TR AXEEHSERENESIKODERS
BE OBAITARERESETERNET
FREMNOM HEHELEAEBRZAIHE
BT -
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For the Group, we understand that a healthy
environment is the basis for economic development and
social well-being. As a responsible organisation, the
Group will pursue environmental protection, strictly
comply with the existing laws and regulations related to
environmental protection, properly handle and dispose
of all materials to avoid adverse impacts on health or the
environment.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any crucial incidents of non-compliance relating to
environmental problems.

A1. Emissions
The Group is also committed to promoting
environmental protection during its daily
operations. All operating units of the Group have
implemented eco-friendly measures to reduce
carbon dioxide emissions during operations.

In view of the Group’s business focusing on
entertainment services and property management
services, our business activities do not involve any
key air emissions arising from the use of gas fuel or
automobile fuel.

Greenhouse gas ("“GHG") emissions are a leading
cause of global warming, which leads to sharp
climate changes and poses a tremendous threat to
the global ecosystem. The Group understands
although we have no direct GHG emissions, we
inevitably generate indirect GHG emissions during
energy and water resources utilisation. In view of
this, the Group, as an organisation with corporate
social responsibility, considers the reduction of
GHG emissions as a focus in daily operations.

The GHG emissions of the Group mainly come from
energy consumption for business activities in
various cities, including the use of purchased
electricity, electricity consumed for the treatment
of drinking water and sewage, as well as GHG
emissions indirectly generated by the employees’
business air travel and water and sewage
consumption. In addition, we promote greening
construction in each of the property projects under
our management as the best remedy for the GHG
emissions generated due to our business activities.
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The Lifestyle Entertainment Segment in Hong Kong
holds valid sewage treatment licenses, and its
sewage discharge has been complying with the
discharge limits specified in the licenses. As for the
property projects under our management in the
PRC, sewage discharge mainly comes from the
daily water consumption of property owners. We
discharge waste water in a way stipulated by the
municipal government, and maintain the pipelines,
valves and other equipment related to the sewage
discharge and exhaust systems on a regular basis
to guarantee its normal operation.

The total GHG emissions increased by
approximately 12.6% as compared to the last
reporting period. The increase in emissions was
mainly attributable to more development in the
property projects during the Reporting Period,
which led to higher electricity consumption.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not
generate material direct GHG emissions (scope 1).
Approximately 98.2% of the GHG emissions were
energy-indirect GHG emissions (scope 2) generated
by purchased electricity consumption. The
remaining 1.8% were other indirect GHG emissions
(scope 3). For more details, please refer to the
table below:

REeEEHRE AEEBRBEELET
EERRERBHEREE—) -
#)982%8 =R B HE MR E A I
BEIMEKRZERAEARAE
REHER(EEZ) 82T 41.8%
EREBENEMAERER
BHR(EE=) #BFL2ET

71

S 7B B

Scope Source of GHG emissions Emissions(tCO.e)
EHE
gE BERBHEBRRIE (—_SEt®REE)
FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024
—ZE=- = —=E_-=
—T=-= —E-ME
B EE BB FE
Scope 1 Direct emissions N/A N/A
#E— HEVN N iE A ~EARA
Scope 2 Energy indirect emissions 48,476.0 55,325.6
& E = BE R [ BE W
i. Purchased electricity®
i NEE N
— Lifestyle Entertainment Segment 176.0 76.1
— HRRE S E
- Property Management Segment* 48,300.0 55,249.5
- MEEE D

According to the "Notice on the Management of Greenhouse Gas
Emission Reporting of Enterprises in the Power Generation Industry from
2023 to 2025" issued by the General Office of the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC, the average emission factor of the national
power grid is 0.5703 tCO2/MWh.

The data is calculated based on the main electricity meter.

3

RPEAREME 4 EIRE D EE G
R 720232025 F B BT ECEREREHMN
BREEREEABIENRMIGE 2BER/TY
BE A F &20.570308 — B (L iR Ik FL B o

MBI REE B EAAE
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Scope Source of GHG emissions Emissions(tCO.e)
FEHE
gE BERBEHFBRRIE (-—&sE{RkEE)
FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024
—F - = —=E ==
—EZ=f% ZB-_AF
IR FE BB FE
Scope 3 Other indirect emissions 1,573.2 1,006.0
#E = H o [ £ BE W
i Paper waste disposed at landfills®
i B E 3H [ # BE 4RO
- Lifestyle Entertainment Segment N/A N/A
— HERE S E @ TEA
- Property Management Segment N/A 30.4
- MEERE DI N iE
ii. Business air travel by employees®
i. BB RAREIL QB
— Lifestyle Entertainment Segment N/A N/A
- AEREDH iE R ~ER
— Property Management Segment 11.17 16.4
- MEEBEHH
iii. Electricity consumption for fresh water and sewage
processing®
i. EERKRFKERNE NS
— Lifestyle Entertainment Segment 1.0 0.1
- EEREDF
- Property Management Segment? 1,561.1 959.1
- MEEED B’
Total GHG emissions of the Group 50,049.2 56,331.6

AEBREREBHRAE

The GHG emissions generated from paper waste disposed at landfills are
disclosed in the Reporting Period for a more comprehensive disclosure
of the Group’s ESG performance.

The indirect emissions of GHG caused by employee business trips in
aircraft are calculated in accordance with the "Carbon Emissions
Calculator” in relation to air travel formulated by the International Civil
Aviation Organization.

Data is restated to reflect the actual performance.

According to the latest 2022/23 figures released by Hong Kong Water
Supplies Department and the latest 2021/22 figures released by Hong
Kong Drainage Services Department, the per unit electricity consumption
for processing water and sewage in Hong Kong was 0.437 kg CO2/m? and
0.21 kg CO2/m? respectively. As its difficult to obtain relevant figures in
the PRC, the above figures are set to be consistent with that in the PRC.
Due to limitations in data collection, the per unit electricity consumption
for processing water and sewage in the PRC will refer to the latest figures
published by the Hong Kong Water Supplies Department and Drainage
Services Department.

The data is calculated based on the main water meter.

ZEIBHEEBENERAMEENREZRABERE
REEPRTFTURBE UNEETE2EBREAE
B ZESGKRH »
EERLRBIEABEENEERREZS
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GHG emissions figures
(Lifestyle Entertainment Segment)

BEREBHFERBE
(EER %7 &)

FY 2022/2023

FY 2023/2024

Total GHG emissions (tCO.e)
BRERBERES(ME _|LKES)
GHG emissions intensity (tCO,e/business premises)

BREREBEREEM —_SmE /& %5

¥
—g-=
B FE
177.0
50.6

—E=-=
—E-MEF
MR FE
76.2
38.1

GHG emissions figures
(Property Management Segment)

FY 2022/2023

FY 2023/2024

—=E=- = —_E_=
m:.:ﬁEE#F}B&%lE ZEZ=F ZE_NF
(MEEE D) B BEE BB FE
Total GHG emissions (tCO.e) 49,872.2 56,255.4

BERBENEEM —_RLREE)
GHG emissions intensity (tCO,e/property project)
BRERBENEEM _StmEE MWEEAE)

906.8

852.4

The main GHG emissions of the Group come from
the operating activities of the Property
Management Segment, which amounted to
approximately 99.9% of the Group's total GHG
emissions, while the GHG emissions from the
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment amounted to
approximately 0.1% of the Group's total GHG
emissions.

Compared to the last reporting period, the GHG
emissions intensity of the Lifestyle Entertainment
Segment decreased by approximately 24.7%, while
the GHG emissions intensity of the Property
Management Segment decreased by approximately
6.0% during the Reporting Period.

AEELREREBHFREERE
MEE IR DA

AEBEBREREBHFNRE
99.9% + H & 1R -

5

BHEWE N
BEMAEE01% o

ETI-I-T\E&
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The Property Management Segment promotes the
conservation of electricity and water in the area of
property projects, and promotes environmental
protection measures, in order to minimise the
impact of business on the environment. In addition,
the Group implements various solutions in the
sustainable energy efficiency plan to reduce the
generation of GHG, including but not limited to
the implementation of greening within the area of
property projects, posting signs to remind
employees of saving electricity and water, and the
use of energy-saving LED lights in property
projects.

Looking ahead, given that energy use is the main
source of the Group's GHG emissions, the Group
will continue to strengthen energy conservation
monitoring measures, ensuring that all electrical
appliances are properly turned off when not in use
and that all lights and air conditioners are turned
off outside office hours, to avoid unnecessary
consumption of electricity.

To uphold the principles of sustainable
development, the Group is committed to reducing
or maintaining the GHG emissions intensity of the
Property Management Segment between 90% to
120% of the level of the baseline year ended 31
March 2024 in the next reporting period. As the
Group decided to discontinue the operation of the
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment, no target was set
for the Lifestyle Entertainment Segment.
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The Group will be devoted to the promotion of
resource conservation when providing the property
management services by Property Management
Segment, so as to minimise the indirect GHG
emissions arising from the operation of the Group
by continuously taking practical measures.

Wastes Management

During the Reporting Period, no hazardous waste
was found in the operations of the Lifestyle
Entertainment Segment and Property Management
Segment.
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Segment Non-hazardous waste (kg)'
7 &P BEBRW(AF)
FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024
—=E2=-= —=E_-=
—EZ=% ZB-_AF
B IRFE BB FE
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment N/A N/A
B R IR 4 o B @ TEA
Property Management Segment N/A 6,331.3
MEEIR DA @
Total non-hazardous waste generated by the Group N/A 6,331.3
AEBELANEBEEREVRE T iE A
Intensity of non-hazardous waste
BEEEERPNEE
— Lifestyle Entertainment Segment (kg/business premises) N/A N/A
—HEERED V(AT E %5 T iE A TE A
— Property Management Segment (kg/property project) N/A 95.9
- WEEEBSB(RFT/WEEE) T iE A

Due to data collection limitations, the Group did
not disclose the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated in the operation of the Lifestyle
Entertainment Segment.

The Property Management Segment has entrusted
the local qualified wastes transportation agency to
transport and dispose of the non-hazardous wastes
produced by the property owners, and enabled the
recycling of wastes. All wastes have been disposed
of in compliance with local laws and regulations.
Recycled materials concentration points have been
set in the service areas to carry out collection,
classified management and declaration of the
statutory hazardous wastes and recyclable wastes.

As for the domestic garbage discarded every day
by users in the residential areas, the Property
Management Segment has set up waste recycling
bins to collect recyclable wastes, and arranges
special staff to classify and store the recycled
wastes separately every day, and deliver the
recycled wastes regularly to the waste transfer
station or the solid waste recycling treatment plant.
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T The non-hazardous waste generated from paper consumption is i
disclosed in the Reporting Period for a more comprehensive disclosure
of the Group's ESG performance.
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However, due to constraints in collecting the total
amount of non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group, the Group did not report the full amount of
relevant waste.

For non-hazardous waste, the Group disclosed the
paper consumption from the operation of the
Property Management Segment during the
Reporting Period. The Group will continue to
strengthen the waste classification, recovery and
disposal process, and attempt to reduce the impact
of its business on the environment. In order to
alleviate the pressure on landfills and promote
environmental friendliness within the Group, the
Group has implemented various measures to
encourage recycling office supplies and other
materials, eliminating over-consumption of
unnecessary products, and prioritising waste
avoidance, reuse and recycling over disposal.

The Group will be devoted to the promotion of
waste reducing at source within the residential
estates under its management, and strengthen the
waste management process in its business
operations so as to minimise the impact of the
Group's business operations on the environment.
To uphold the principles of sustainable
development, the Group is committed to reducing
or maintaining the intensity of non-hazardous waste
of the Property Management Segment generated
between 90% to 120% of the level of the baseline
year ended 31 March 2024 in the next reporting
period. As the Group decided to discontinue the
operation of the Lifestyle Entertainment Segment,
no target was set for the Lifestyle Entertainment
Segment.
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A2.

Use of Resources

The Group undertakes to become a resource-
saving and environment-friendly enterprise and
makes our contributions to environmental
protection. To reduce GHG emissions, we've taken
the initiative to perform energy-saving measures in
our business activities.

Energy consumption

The Group's energy consumption is mainly derived
from indirect energy consumption in relation to
purchased electricity. During the Reporting Period,
the total energy consumption of the Group
increased approximately 14.1% as compared to
that in the last reporting period, which is mainly
attributable to the increase in electricity
consumption by the Property Management
Segment. The energy consumption of each
segment of the Group is as follows:

A2.

ER&EA
AEBEEREXNA —HEHEER
FHEBERTIOEE  LEHIRR
=N BREEBERE M
BMEBREBHBFTE R RITE
BE BY FEBE o

BE IR H
AEEMEREEFERE R
SNEE N EEZEIRER R R
EHE AEERRERER ;?
E—HEHHEEMO141%
EEMEERE "*Bﬁﬁﬁii'ﬂﬂ
- "EEEDHERERED
I

Energy type

Energy consumption (MWh)

BE R 2 Bl B2 R H kR B
FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024
S — —EC-=
—EZZF ZEB_NF
B EFEE M EFE
Direct energy consumption N/A N/A
BE#E e RBERE A s T E A
Indirect energy consumption — purchased electricity 84,976.2 96,993.2
MEEREFRE-IBESH
— Lifestyle Entertainment Segment 283.9 115.3
—HERE D
— Property Management Segment* 84,692.3 96,877.9
_q;% % = EE aN 4 4
Total energy consumption of the Group 84,976.2 96,993.2
AEEMREREERS
Intensity of energy consumption
RRHERERE
- Lifestyle Entertainment Segment (MWh/business premises) 81.1 57.7
—EEREDIHOLR K& X5 )
- Property Management Segment (MWh/property project) 1,539.9 1,467.8

-MEEBOBOKEE WEEAB)
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Compared to the last reporting period, the energy
consumption intensity of the Lifestyle
Entertainment Segment decreased by
approximately 28.9%, while the energy
consumption intensity of the Property Management
Segment decreased by approximately 4.7% during
the Reporting Period.

The management of the Group remains committed
to enhancing the environmental awareness of our
employees and placing more electricity-saving
labels, to further encourage employees to reduce
unnecessary electricity consumption, minimise
energy use and reduce the impact of business
operations on the environment.

The Group will be devoted to the promotion of
electricity saving within the residential estates,
strengthening the management of electricity use in
the Property Management Segment, and
successively purchase electrical appliances when
necessary to maximise energy efficiency and avoid
unnecessary waste of electricity, so as to reduce
the impact on the environment through continuous
monitoring, implementation and optimisation of
existing measures. To uphold the principles of
sustainable development, the Group is committed
to reducing or maintaining the energy consumption
intensity of the Property Management Segment
between 90% to 120% of the level of the baseline
year ended 31 March 2024 in the next reporting
period. As the Group decided to discontinue the
operation of the Lifestyle Entertainment Segment,
no target was set for the Lifestyle Entertainment
Segment.

As potable water is a precious resource on the
Earth, saving water is one of the goals of the
Group. The Group also makes efforts to reduce
electricity consumption generated from the water
supply, thereby reducing the Group's carbon
footprints and resource consumption. As the water
source of the Group's Lifestyle Entertainment
Segment and Property Management Segment is
supplied by the government’'s water supply
department, so there is no problem in obtaining
water sources.
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During the Reporting Period, the water HEHEA AEEBREKER L
consumption of the Group decreased by WEBHRERMDD401% FER
approximately 40.1% as compared to that in the ”EE ﬁf& 2 5 B R K 2R
last reporting period, which is mainly attributable N E & ,% Aok & &g e

to usage reduction in the Lifestyle Entertainment P8 K& %ﬁ%ﬁ K& R
Segment and better awareness of water W

conservation across the Group. The water resource
consumption of each segment of the Group is as

follows:
Segment Water consumption (m3)""
2 F K B (375 K)
FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024
—_E_-_C —i::
—E2-= —E-MEF
8 BZ ¢ E B EE
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment 1,767.9 176.0
R R % o 5
Property Management Segment’ 2,472,386.6 1,482,398.2
) ¥ E B o I
Total water consumption of the Group 2,474,154.5 1,482,574.2

AEBRAKE

Intensity of water consumption

AKEE
— Lifestyle Entertainment Segment (m*/business premises) 505.1 88.0
—HERRED WL K E XIS
— Property Management Segment (m?3/property project) 44,952.5 22,460.6

—-MEEBSB(LA K/ WEEAB)
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tq

R EEEIEE
k B EEREH

The Group will actively promote water conservation
in property projects under its management and

5 &
ymy
="

‘_:J
EE

& WX 3P
B30 O
=

encourage the recycling of water resources, such as ’ ?Z 0] A AR 1B IR A OK
the use of recycled water for sanitation and BEITHR ARERBRBKM
cleaning, and the use of appliances with higher BHERRmF -
water efficiency, etc.

i The unit for water consumption data is m®. i FRKEBEEBNEMRILG K-
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Water Efficiency Goals

The Group is committed to promoting the concept
of water conservation to property owners and
enhancing water management in offices of the
Property Management Segment to maximise the
water efficiency and avoid unnecessary wastage, so
as to reduce the impact on the environment
through continuous implementation and
optimisation of the existing measures mentioned
above. To uphold the principles of sustainable
development, the Group is committed to reducing
or maintaining the water consumption intensity of
the Property Management Segment between 90%
to 120% of the level of the baseline year ended 31
March 2024 in the next reporting period. As the
Group decided to discontinue the operation of the
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment, no target was set
for the Lifestyle Entertainment Segment.

Packaging Materials

In view of the Group's business focusing on
restaurant and club, and property management
services, our business activities do not involve any
packaging materials used for finished products.

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

Currently, the Group mainly consumes electric
energy and water resources. In the face of the
increasingly severe environmental pollution, the
Group, as a part of the community, is committed to
implementing energy-saving measures in different
levels of routine operations, including:
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We encourage employees
to turn off unnecessary power
(e.g.: floor or corridor lights)

Saving electricity

ZEAR (fn: BB ERE X B

We encourage employees
to save water consumption
while using the washroom or
conducting cleaning work

HMPzBEITEERAXEFHEK

Conserving water

R R PT T B P!
A3. The Environment and Natural Resources A3. RERRXAEIR

The resources and energy consumed by the KEBEFEXEKESMHA ﬁﬁ']
Group's main business activities are mainly water ERERERTZRAKKAE

and electricity, and the pollution caused by EXEBEHMEREMEKD
business activities to the environment is mainly BAXTERAERBOHR K
GHG emissions. The management of the Group is EEEREESEENBERK
responsible for overseeing the daily operations by dERRETPEREEEENA
reminding all employees of implementing the B RREXEIHNTAEENES
Group's energy-saving and emission-reduction BER B BORE B IRH MOX
measures, criticising and rectifying the waste of 1R BT R B 5( 5@%%7ﬁ%g &)

resources, and avoiding unnecessary resource
consumption, in order to minimise the adverse
impact on the environment.

The Property Management Segment of the Group
delicately develops gardens and greening space
for each project by virtue of professional greening
management, such as planting diverse flowers,
grasses and trees, which improves the microclimate
in the community, enriches the landscaping in the
community, and enables the property owners to
experience the biodiversity of the nature. One of
the residential estates managed by us has been
honoured as the "most beautiful courtyard” by the
government.

BRBA W
E’Jﬁﬂiﬁ“"lig/ﬁw

Emte 2 E8EEENIEE
Mgtz=HBLEE WHREZ
BIEMIEER K RELRBR
R-B4dENEMNIEH S
BEITFTRAERAEDZHEMK
mER - ZAMEENES —EF

EELYWESB
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HFES & EER -
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A4.

EAEE

Climate Change

The Group understands that climate change may
bring different levels of impact and risks to its
business. As GHG emissions such as carbon dioxide
and methane generated by the development of
human activities accelerate the greenhouse effect,
the impact of climate change is becoming more
obvious.

In view of the trend of sustainable development
and transition to a low-carbon economy, as well as
the uncertainties associated with physical and
transition risks arising from climate change, the
Group recognises the importance of incorporating
climate factors into the decision-making process to
formulate an effective plan to address climate
change. Therefore, the Group has started to study
the potential impact of climate change and
considered the potential climate-related risks with
respect to the recommendations of the Task Force
on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD"),
so that the Group will be able to identify, assess
and manage various risks in a timely manner in the
future and prepare for the planning strategy of
addressing climate change.

In terms of physical risks, rising temperatures will
have short-term and long-term impacts on climate
patterns and seasonal weather, and increase the
possibility of extreme weather events, such as the
more frequent occurrence of severe weather
events, including heavy rains, typhoons, high
temperatures and floods. These extreme weather
events are likely to affect the Group's business
operations, causing events such as natural disasters
that prevent its business from normal operation
and lead to mandatory downtime, damage to
equipment, supply chain disruptions that affect the
provision of services to customers and other events
that increase operating costs. In addition, severe
weather also poses threats to the safety of
employees. In this regard, the Group has
formulated guidelines on severe weather
arrangements to reduce the risk of injury and
accidents. In addition, the Property Management
Segment has also made arrangements for its
property management business in respect of severe
weather work, disaster prevention and emergency
response plans, and enhanced its emergency
response capabilities in disaster prevention and
mitigation under special weather conditions
through enhanced drills and regular safety
inspections.
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In addition, with the attention of many countries on
climate change, it is expected that more climate
conferences and climate policy-related
arrangements will be arranged in the future, which
may lead to higher operating costs and different
market risks for the Group. In terms of the PRC's
goal of achieving carbon neutrality by 2060, there
is expected to be a gradual tightening of
regulations on emissions. As a result, the Group
may face additional operating costs as a result of a
cost shift from its service providers such as power
companies, water providers and waste treatment
and recycling companies. In this regard, the Group
will keep abreast of changes in market information
and energy policies to ensure the timeliness of the
information while facilitating the formulation of
relevant corresponding policies to mitigate the
risks.

The Group will continue to adopt best practices to
minimise its own carbon footprint and incorporate
resilience into its business operations so as to
effectively control the impact of climate change on
the Group.

The Group is aware that our business success depends
on the cooperation and cohesion of our teams. Our
teams are the most precious assets of the Group.
Therefore, based on the people-oriented core values, we
are committed to providing attractive remunerations,
benefits and welfare for employees, arranging
reasonable working hours and holidays, and ensuring all
employees enjoy equal opportunity. The Group also
holds internal activities on a regular basis and
encourages the employees’ participation to increase the
Group's cohesion, strengthen the employees’
recognition of the Group, and reinforce their sense of
belonging.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not find any
breach of laws and regulations on employment, health
and safety, labour standards, product liability and anti-
corruption.
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B1.

Employment B1. Ef&
Our Employees EFfmWE T
As at 31 March 2024, there were a total of 952 RZE-_WMF=ZA=Z+—H &K

employees (31 March 2023: 994 employees) of the
Group. The Group believes that maintaining a
diverse and inclusive workforce in the future with
respect and care given to its employees is very
critical for running a sustainable and successful

business.

EEHEREEE(ZEZ=F
ZA=+—H:994%EE8) K
EEMAE RARBEF @2 T
EMEBAMNBE TERK I
BETHTFTEENBEE HLBEHR
BB —EAHERKAIINER
mEs THEZE-

As at
31 March
Number of Employees 2024
S
—E_-_MF
ETAH™ =A=+-—-H
Total B 952
By Gender Bt Bl & o
Male EERi 641
Female ol 311
By Age Group LE&RERS D
<25 < 255% 82
26-35 26-357% 209
36-45 36-457% 320
46-55 46-55 % 305
> 55 > 5573% 36
By Employment Type EEEERNE S
Full-time Eagi 939
Part-time e BBk 13
By Geographical Region B i 35 & o
Hong Kong i 3
The PRC B A 949

Others (Nepal, Pakistan, etc.)

Hivwm(E')BRM BEEHESF) -

6
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Employee Turnover Rate

FY 2023/2024

ZEZ =
ZE-MmE
EBERKXE M REE
Overall BERERRAE 43%
By Gender Bt B & o
Male 5 42%
Female Z M 46%
By Age Group LERARNE D
<25 < 255% 93%
26-35 26-35%% 65%
36-45 36-4575% 37%
46-55 46-55 5%, 22%
> 55 > 55 5% 39%
By Geographical Region B b 5 &
Hong Kong ' 1,067%"2
The PRC B A 40%
Others (Nepal, Pakistan, etc.) Emmw@E(BEABD B EIETHEZ) —%13

We constantly value our employees and advocate
team spirit among our employees. To further
strengthen the bonding of our employees, team-
building activities were held so as to enable our
employees and management to connect with each
other. With our consistent efforts in maintaining
our team relationship, we believe that we are able
to maintain our team and retain our talented
employees.

BHM—mERET  WIEZEK
Bl RE-—FPMBETZHED
B RMERTEEEELRSY
EFEIMEEB ZRRZIHE-
ERRMELXECEEBEETE
MABE N HERMENEER
ZfMEKTREERFEL -

The high turnover rate is due to the decision to discontinue the operation 12
of the lifestyle entertainment business of the Group.

There was 1 employee left during the Reporting Period, which is not 13
reflected in the figures due to arithmetical constraints.

PARAERRARAEERER EREEFRE

E R

BEPHEBRETIARRSA - BAERS - K

EEEHR R
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We deeply believe that a diversified, embracing
and harmonious family can help us to have a better
understanding of the demands of different
customers. Approximately 39% (FY 2022/2023: 27%)
of the employees have served the Group for more
than five years, which further proves that the
Group's people-oriented concept has been passed
on to every employee via practical experience. The
service year structure of employees of the Group is
shown in the following:

ZFMARGE-—BZTmERM
%W?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬂj}ﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ

[E:27%)8 B T i A & B Ak 7% 8
BAF FAFALREEUAR
Z’SE’]EEIL,\BZEJL/{E\E%%%J@{v pl
LE—NEI-AEBZBEIHF
EREBOTHE:

Percentage of the employee by years of service & T{EFE & S Lt

<1 Year m 1-3Years 3-5Years
<14 1-3%F 3-5F

m 5-10 Years
5-104F

>10 Years
>104F

6¢
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The Group deeply acknowledges that the Group's
development and success indeed rely on the efforts
of all employees, so the Group provides
competitive salaries to pay back the employees’
efforts. In addition to providing attractive
remunerations and benefits to employees, the
Group not only offers performance bonuses
according to the Group's business results and the
employee’s performance, but also distributes
holiday benefits on traditional festivals every year.
The Group also provides Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes (“MPF") for employees in
accordance with the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong, and pays endowment insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work-
related injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing provident fund for employees in
accordance with the Labour Law of the PRC.

In order to reward hard-working employees more
effectively, the Group has established a well-
organised performance management system to
efficiently motivate their sustainable development,
help employees make plans for their careers,
realise talent inheritance, and enable the Group to
develop toward the sustainable operation goal.
The Group implements monthly, quarterly and
yearly performance assessments to help employees
establish definite, measurable, achievable,
position-related and time-sensitive key
performance indicators of their own, supervise their
progress on a regular basis, and take appropriate
improvement measures if applicable. The Group
will adjust the remuneration of employees regularly
by referring to their assessment results and
comprehensive evaluation and by combining the
Group's overall business performance, so as to
ensure employees gain the best remunerations in
proportion to their efforts.
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The Group is devoted to creating a harmonious
and embracing working environment for
employees, and to protecting them from any
harassment or discrimination. The Group treats its
employees fairly and equally regardless of their
gender, sexual orientation, disability, age,
nationality or ethnic origin, family status or other
personal characteristics that are protected by law.
As for our systems for recruitment, remunerations
and benefits, holidays, training, assessment,
promotion, etc., we evaluate the employees
according to their abilities, skills, qualifications and
performances.

To ensure our employees achieve a balance
between work and life, and maintain a balanced
and healthy lifestyle, our actual working time is
eight to ten hours a day and five to six days a week,
so that our employees can have sufficient time to
rest. The Group provides employees with relevant
paid leaves in accordance with local laws and
regulations. The employees of the Property
Management Segment can enjoy annual leave of
five to fifteen days as well as other statutory labour
holidays according to their position level. In
addition, employees also enjoy compassionate
leave, marital leave, maternity leave, etc. As for the
Property Management Segment, an employee with
a newborn baby under one year of age can further
enjoy thirty-minute breastfeeding leave twice a
day.

Moreover, the Property Management Segment
provides a series of facilities for employees,
including a dining hall and dormitory, so as to
improve their sense of belonging to the Group,
help those employees who come to work far away
from home to achieve work-life balance more
easily, and alleviate their economic burdens. In
addition, the Property Management Segment also
arranges after-work activities and dinners for
employees to promote communication among
employees from different departments and
enhance cohesion among employees through
enhanced communication.
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The Group attaches importance to the opinions of
employees. All employees and the management
are encouraged to use our diversified
communication channels, such as e-mail, forum or
bulletin board, to realise horizontal or vertical
communications. Generally, when an employee has
any complaint against his/her work, we will arrange
for the department supervisor to have an interview
with him/her, while the employee can also complain
against the person or department concerned. If the
person or department being complained against
fails to provide satisfactory solutions, the complaint
will be submitted to the superior department level
by level, so as to ensure the employees can receive
clear feedback.

The Group encourages employees to raise
reasonable suggestions. The HR Department is
responsible for collecting suggestions from
employees and guaranteeing their accurate
delivery.

The Group's remuneration policies are in line with
the prevailing market practices. Remuneration is
determined on the basis of the competency,
qualifications and experience of individual
employees. Our management has been constantly
reviewing the staff remuneration packages and
employees’ promotion opportunities. Adjustments
will be made, usually annually, to conform to the
market standard in order to retain talent and
ensure the remuneration packages are competitive
as compared to other competitors in the industry.
A standard package includes basic salary and
variable incentive-based remunerations which are
offered based on each individual employee’s
performance.
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B2.

=R E

Health and Safety

The health and safety of the employees are of vital
importance to the Group. The Group is committed
to providing a safe working environment for
employees, and guarantees to fully comply with all
occupational health and safety regulations. All
offices and office premises of the Group are
equipped with adequate safety equipment, such as
fire-fighting equipment, to prevent fires and ensure
a safe working environment. The Group has
enhanced information and rules about occupational
health and workplace safety in the Employee
Handbook and has formulated policies about a safe
working environment, such as Special Measures
against Typhoon and Rainstorm, defining working
procedures and evacuation issues in severe
weather. Apart from this, the Group will invite fire
protection equipment suppliers to give lectures
about fire safety awareness on a regular basis and
provide fire drills for employees to ensure that they
are familiar with the necessary procedures if a fire
breaks out.

Any employee suffering from work-related injuries
is entitled to corresponding compensation benefits
in accordance with relevant national regulations. In
the case of Hong Kong employees, the Group will
report the case to the Labour Department in
accordance with section 15 of the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, and contact the
insurance company for settlement of claims. In the
meantime, the Group will also provide sufficient
work-related injury leave to allow the employee
sufficient rest.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded
16 cases of work-related injury, all of which were in
relation to the Property Management Segment.
The number of working days lost due to work-
related injuries was approximately 867 days. No
work-related fatality case occurred during the
Reporting Period (FY 2022/2023:1; FY 2021/2022:
nil).
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B3.

Development and Training

The Group encourages employees to participate in
all kinds of in-service training, and also provides
employees with various internal and external
training and development opportunities to help
them maximise their business potential.

The annual assessment results will be used to
provide suitable training for employees, in an effort
to continuously improve the Group's talent quality
and working skills, motivate the working
enthusiasm of employees and stimulate them to
face challenges. Apart from considering the
Group's business vision and target needs, the
training and development programme also
simultaneously evaluates employee performance
and functional gap, coordinates with the Group
and the management in establishing the education
and training framework, and makes plans for
internal and external courses such as new employee
training, professional training, training of various
management levels, training relating to
environmental protection, core values of the
Group, etc. through physical or electronic learning
methods, providing employees with all-round
training, and enables the Group's employees to
continue improving their professional and
managerial competence, find out the platforms
where they can show their abilities, grow together
with the Group, and establish a steady cooperative
relationship.

The Group arranges for new employees to receive
onboarding training, aiming to make the
employees know about the Group, master the
codes of practice, techniques and methods for
handling business, and adapt to the new
environment and new job quickly. In addition, the
Group also provides training on safety knowledge
and environmental protection knowledge for
employees, which helps establish their awareness
of safety and environmental protection. Apart from
the training on technical procedures, employees
can also participate in fire training so as to enhance
their awareness of fire prevention.
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Year ended

31 Mach
Percentage of Trained Employees 2024
B=E
—E-MEF
=A=t+-—8
EXHNETLEH Ik FE
Total By 99%
By Gender Bt B & o
Male 5 67%
Female pglid 33%
By Employee Category LEEER & 2
General staff LTWmET 79%
Middle management TEERAE 15%
Senior management mRERBANE 6%
Average Training Hours (Hours) 19 = 9 A B (R B
Total By 7.2
By Gender Bt B & o
Male 5 6.5
Female g 8.6
By Employee Category LEBERE S
General staff LTWmET 4.0
Middle management TEEREAE 18.4
Senior management SREEAE 21.9

In the future, the Group will continue to provide
adequate training for its employees, so as to
enhance their knowledge and skills while
contributing to the sustainable development and
progress of the Group.
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B4.

Labour Standards

The Group has established an employment and
welfare policy in compliance with the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and the labour laws of
the PRC, and strictly prohibited the recruitment of
any candidate under the age of 18 to avoid the
recruitment of any child labour. The Group will
never recruit any child labour under the age
restricted by local laws, and the Group’s HR
Department will require the job candidates to
provide valid identification certificates to confirm
their actual age at the time of the interview. Once
any misuse of child labour is found, the Group will
immediately suspend his/her work, send the child
labour back to his/her original residence, and
deliver to his/her parent or legal guardian, for
which the Group will bear the required
transportation and accommodation expenses, and
pay the salary due for his/her actual work. Any act
of violence, with the purpose of deliberately
causing discomfort, threats and/or bodily harm, as
well as forcing employees to work, is strictly
prohibited by the Group. Our employees are
welcome to report to the management if they
notice any potential violation, or if they are
experiencing forced labour. The management will
investigate the matter and seriously take follow-up
actions.

The Group has not experienced any labour
disputes or cases of forced labour during the fiscal
year. The Group undertakes to maintain strict
compliance with the standard of regulations at any
time.
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BS.

Supply Chain Management

The Group attaches great importance to
procurement principles. In the procurement of
materials and services, the Group has established
procurement policies and procedures to promote
fair and open competition. We ensure that we are
able to meet the best economic benefits in terms
of price, quality, delivery period and service when
purchasing materials and hiring services. As a
responsible organisation, the Group abides by the
spirit of the contract and complies with the
principles, objectives and contents of the contract
signed between us and the suppliers. During the
Reporting Period, the Group cooperated with a
total of 158 suppliers, of which 10 suppliers were
located in Hong Kong and the remaining 148
suppliers were located in the PRC.

The Group has the responsibility to ensure that
procurement of materials and services is conducted
in a highly professional manner and complies with
the established code of ethics, so that the
resources are used properly, and the suppliers will
have the confidence to continue doing business
with the Group. We must ensure that the suppliers
understand and comply with the Code of Conduct
and the procurement policies formulated by the
Group. The Group has established a list of selected
suppliers. Before any supplier is approved to enter
this list, we will review their company backgrounds
(including the recognitions, qualifications and
licenses they have obtained), product pricing and
supply terms. In order to standardise relevant
systems and processes, the Group has formulated
relevant work guidelines and standardised contract
forms, and conducts yearly evaluations on the
products and services of suppliers on a regular
basis to guarantee their compliance with the
Group's strict standards.

The list of selected suppliers will be reviewed at
the end of each year. Such review involves the
evaluation of whether a supplier’s pricing, product
and service quality, efficiency, reliability, ability to
deliver goods on schedule, licence update and
technical capability are still in compliance with the
Group's requirements and standards.
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Bé6.

The Group selects reputable and reliable suppliers
to provide high-quality, affordable and sustainable
products and services. The Group has a transparent
and independent procurement process, with an aim
to promote competitiveness. This move will also
serve the benefit of our shareholders and other
stakeholders. The Group expects to establish a
vertically integrated supply chain management
system by integrating the procurement resources
and developing the supplier selection and
management mechanism, thereby actively
providing comprehensive solutions and satisfying
customer needs. The Group expects to review the
quality and performance of suppliers by conducting
relevant assessments and reviews, and to ensure
communication between the procurement process
so as to accurately convey the Group's
expectations to suppliers. Although the Group's
main business does not involve environmentally
friendly products and services when selecting
suppliers, it still expects that suppliers can comply
with relevant environmental standards and
regulations, and save resources as much as
possible to contribute to environmental protection.

Meanwhile, the Group encourages suppliers to
promote corporate social responsibility activities
and abide by corporate social responsibility rules
and environmental regulations. All business
transactions shall maintain high-standard ethics;
bribery or other illegitimate benefits must not be
provided or accepted; information relating to
business activities, structure, financial status and
performance shall be disclosed on a regular basis
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

Product Responsibility

In order to maintain the Group's position in its
clubbing and entertainment business and property
management business and sustainability, the Group
strictly complies with the quality standards of the
industry to protect the Group's reputation and
public interests. The Group has strictly complied
with the laws and regulations relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters of
its products and services. No non-compliance
incidents were identified during the fiscal year.

Bé6.

AEBEEEERHAIENH
EEARHKEEZ BERaEEA
SENEMMBRE AKEER

—EZERAERBLINEBERRE B

BEREERFE N ME Hﬁﬁﬁ
M E) R R MK fh 4% & A A A
PR 7 o $%l%ﬁﬁﬂﬁA%
BER HBHETHFEREER

BhH AT EEBEAZHER
EERBR ITPRHEEERT

R mMEEPF R -AKEHE
ERHHERETABRIMGER
EEREHEZRERKRE  UHR
REBREZEAMNER UEKAX
SENHEEEERMWEET
HER BHALEBZETEEXR
EEBEHEARRBESRR

EmMRE - ELDALLEHE
e A Fﬁ ) IR 3R IR & AR

M I%T METH BIR - AR
%%%%%ﬁ—@ﬂ

B R R a )RR e
tEeEEEAEHMETEER
E*Wﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%iﬁo
MEBERAEXERSBERFIFEN
BR BEIXEMTALENMNS
BAEREIEZ REEAD
ERER BEHREBEHENS

1§ ME Bt
Wﬁi%

KBS BB FHBNRRMNER
FORER SN

EmEE

BRBFAEEREZERNEM
%%&%%%E%%Zﬂﬂ&
FEBEER AEEBEBETITE
ZmEBRENREAEERZE
%&Q%ﬂﬂ°$5@5§%%

THEGMBRENRERER
%%“”&M%ﬁﬁZ&@&
ER W R AR FE R R
EHACEREH-

Annual Report F iR 75



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRSE

The Group is committed to providing superior and
reliable services to its customers. The Group
regularly reviews its service performance, policies
and procedures, including the improvement of
service quality, the maintenance of proper records,
and the adequacy of staff training to ensure the
provision of professional and attentive services and
to safeguard the Company's reputation and the
public interests. As the Group's business nature
does not involve product sales, there is no recall of
goods for safety and health reasons, nor is there
any recall procedure for products.

Customers are the cornerstone for the Group to
achieve sustainable development and a source of
power to promote product innovation. Therefore,
customer satisfaction is one of our most important
issues. The Group strictly requires that our products
and services must conform to public interests, and
handle inquiries and opinions of customers in a
timely manner. 205 complaints have been received
during the Reporting Period, and all complaints are
not related to health and safety issues and have
already been handled promptly. All complaints will
be recorded in detail for follow-up actions and
future reference, so as to improve our service
quality and pursue progress to meet customers’
expectations.

The Property Management Segment adopts the
whole process customer service concept in project
positioning, planning and management of its
property management business in the PRC, covers
the customer satisfaction indicator of related
operation units in all regions into the scope of
performance evaluation on these operation units,
and constantly improves our services in the interest
of customers.
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R &

Management
according to law

kL E®E

The Group conducts lawful management and operation in accordance with the
requirements of government laws, regulations and policies, so as to ensure our
property safety and value increase. By virtue of normative approaches and with the
goal of pursuing the satisfaction of property owners, the Group provides efficient and
superior services for the property owners, and satisfies their requirements honestly
without fraud.

RERFTEZR ER BRER KZEZEE GELE BRAKEMELZ 2
HEE - BPRENTFR UEXIRAER/EXNER MEIRHSB BE
MR mEEITER HEEK-

Superior services

BER®

The Group develops business earnestly, makes unremitting pursuits and improves the
details to strive for perfection. The Group also makes full use of the internal and
external information about the quality environment, occupational health and safety,
and customer feedback, constantly improves the quality, environmental and
occupational health and safety management system, keeps such systems always in
effect, and pursues endlessly a higher level of management and performance.

EEBLATER TWMER TZ2AH NKRFERX ZOMNARIINIEY
BERR BERELZEGEAENETIRE HEAXNELELE RERBERER
LEEERBRLRIFELBKRAY THELKEENERNESER -

Infinite innovation

1 PR A 3

The Group will focus on infinite innovation, and uphold the spirit of infinite innovation
from business levels to management approaches. Employees of the Group shall have
the spirit of loving and respecting their jobs and being ready for innovation, and
attempting to achieve the synchronous development of both individual and corporate
values.

AEBBENERNAN LEXBEELEEETFR BABERAFTOHEN
AEBETEREMME LRAF0RBEH ERAAEERCENRATHER-

Sustainable
development

Standardised management is crucial to the Group's development. To achieve
development, the Group must attach importance to standardised management,
establish and improve its quality, environmental and occupational health and safety
systems, establish effective inspection and implementation mechanisms, and
guarantee the Group's steady and sustainable development.

REEERESEZERNER SEEXRVAIEEENABEE BIUMT
ZEEMNEE RENBERELZE2VE BYAMNBREMEEKS  BRF
rEBETMFEER-
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The Customer Service Department of the Property
Management Segment is responsible for caring
about customers actively, handling and managing
customer complaints, systematising and refining
customer relationship management, standardising
complaint handling work, and enabling all
complaints made by property owners to be solved
timely and reasonably.

During the Reporting Period, the Property
Management Segment received a total of 205
complaint cases regarding property management
services. All complaints have been properly
handled and resolved by the Customer Service
Department. In addition, the Group did not receive
any material non-compliance related to products
and services.

In order to standardise and regulate customer
services of operation units in various regions, the
Group has formulated normative documents such
as Property Owner’s Complaints Handling Sheet,
Standard Operating Procedures for Property
Owner’'s Complaints Handling, etc. to constantly
improve its customer relationship management
level. In the future, the Property Management
Segment will continue to maintain good
relationships with customers by providing superior
services.
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Receiving a complaint

B

'

IR R A0 8%

Keeping records of the complaint

v

Minor complaint

IR

!

Making commitment

R v

I

Reporting to Officer
EwEE

!

Customer Service Officer

organises for resolution

BFREDEEEMBER

v

v

>
Important complaint Major complaint
ERRF BRERF
/)
v \ 4
~
Making commitment Reporting to General Manager
R v 3R
J

Reporting to Manager
F3RgE

Holding an office meeting

ARRAEE

y

N Y N

Manager organises for
resolution paying return visits

RIBEB IR

- U «UJ U
AT ) ) )

General Manager organises
for resolution

BISTRE B R

v
Keeping archives and
paying return visits

B A8 AT B 5
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Rk - HERERHRE

Complaint channels

Satisfaction survey

mMEERE

Upon the receipt of the complaint from a property owner, at first, the
property butler will show sympathy for what the property owner is suffering
from on behalf of the department being complained, and keep detailed
records in the Logs of the Customer Service Department immediately. In
case of a minor complaint, it may be submitted to the department in the
form of a Work Contact Sheet.

EEIXIRFR DEEFREARXBERFLAFIMEEINEERT
RE YT EFPREMBEFIRIEFFALEHE EBEMKFA
DKITEBEEM T R X R FALMA -

Complaint channels for property owners include:

XFIRFREBRE:

o Reception desk switchboard o Customer service receptionist
ERvAIR=F R ERA A

o QQ group of property owners o Official Weibo and WeChat
¥ EQQH account

B 7S R AE R

The Property Management Segment employs students from high schools as
temporary staff to conduct sampling surveys on the satisfaction of the
property owners about our products and services, and collect customer
opinions and suggestions about the daily services of the Property
Management Segment, in an attempt to constantly improve the Group's
customer service level and property management quality. Moreover, the
Property Management Segment listens to the voices of customers, actively
collects customer opinions, rapidly responds to customer needs, and
devotes itself to continuously improving customer service via channels such
as hotlines, written suggestions, property owners’ forums, social media, etc..
MEERDHUSPTEREFE2ALAFRER LI UXTETERNRY
MEENMEAS TEHDEEESIXNAERBETEFLPBERER
FHORE UAERAEENEPRBRKTIEMEETERE - 1
MEEBDHEBBAREF iﬁk ‘%Iﬁi CHRERBERE -
HEZFLEB BRUERTFER ARXODERTFFTE B OIREE
HEBTFREIIE-
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The Lifestyle Entertainment Segment is committed E ERED BN RE TR M

to providing the best customer service experience, TEFRBEER REEAMFE
safeguarding relevant intellectual property rights }EH MU EBEANREE (RER
of the software used in clubs, protecting customer ZHE BEHAANEZEEN
privacy, guaranteeing security in clubs, and IFEEEE . AT R S EE A A
preventing drug abuse. The Lifestyle Entertainment 78 E HEE THBERENT:

Segment has formulated relevant systems to
regulate relevant operations of employees as

follows:

Complaint handling
RFEE

Safeguarding intellectual
property rights
HEAEEE

The Lifestyle Entertainment Segment is committed to providing customers

with an efficient complaint-handling mechanism and taking the following

approaches to achieve this goal

EEREDHTRNAEETRE - BAARXTNORFEEHS  LEHEIRT

PIFENEEI A Z:

o All employees handle customer complaints in an objective and positive
manner;

. FAEEINREBENEENEERETPAOKRF

o Actively contact customers to follow up or resolve complaints in a real-
time manner;

. THBHEETF RERS NN FIRKF:

o Investigate the cause of the complaint in a real-time manner and
provide remedial measures;

. BN 38 & 2 5F IR A - 30 52 ff R R 19 %8 RUHE B

o Record the details of all complaints and record the contact information
of the complainant in the daily log for investigation and follow-up; and

. EHEEHMRFAN IRRFANBELEHEESHA B R AH
3 E TR E K&

o Periodically review the progress of unresolved cases.

e TEHRBEAMRBRELEE-

The Lifestyle Entertainment Segment has formulated intellectual property
policies and procedures to manage, protect and monitor copyright usage:

AREREDHTREANBERBRNMNIEFUNERE RENEERENE
A
J Prohibit the use of unauthorised software or the reproduction of any

object of intellectual property rights;

e HZIFRAAEEBNRMFRERTAMNIERND T

o Before using third-party material, ensure that a license has been
granted;
EERE=ZATMHBA BERERXFFA:

o Educate and remind all employees to comply with copyright laws via

email or intranet;

. BRAEFHHIANTBRBELIRENEE T B FREE:

o Retain lawyers to verify copyright owners, buy public performance
licenses and deal with other copyright problems; and

. BFERMZEREA BE QR ERERMNEIEH AR &R S
)54

J Establish the List of Licensed Songs according to the public
performance licenses already bought.

. EETFEﬁﬁ,\z’“F%?J%BHE‘EE”“Z(E%#TZ?’X$>
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Rk - HERERHRE

Protecting
customer privacy

REBEELR

Safety in the club
BREMZ2

The Lifestyle Entertainment Segment has established a membership system
to provide more convenience and benefits for membership customers. All
membership data are kept and encrypted by the membership database
manager to avoid unauthorised access to the sensitive data of the members.
EERESTNEMEBREEEHE - HBDATA@;E’JEE%:}ET
ZHENEBE - MACASHNEEENYHEERERE T"IjJﬂ
ZHERREAERAEHFATNBEAT2HSENHRER -

The Lifestyle Entertainment Segment is committed to providing customers
with a safe and orderly environment within the club, to ensure that
customers have a wonderful time there:

}E@%M’\*Bﬁlﬁﬁygﬁgﬁf‘ FTARE —RBALZE2ERFHERE  BR
BEEREAIREBER:

o Professmnal security personnel are hired to maintain the order within
the club;

c INBEXRLTEFR S ANKFF

o Ensure all the hired security personnel hold valid security certificates

and pass the drug test;

. BRABXBNRLZAHABFEERNNGRLEE R BB E G A H

o Closed-circuit television operates in the form of 24/7 (24 hours a day, 7
days a week), and in the event of an accident, we will view relevant
records for follow-up;

. BB &R A24/7 (— R24/NBs - — A7 R)FEXNEE - B EEIFA
#F E R0 Bk LA ME IR A

. Strictly control the flow of club patrons;
. BRETN SRR AR
o Check the identification certificate of any customer suspicious of being

under 18; and

. BEERAM T/ \BATHIMHIEAXHE K

o If we find any customer under 18 or uncooperative, the employees
shall ask that customer to leave the club. If necessary, we will inform
the police for assistance.

J EERABW T/ \BEEXEHEHBERESAGENBRLAT BER
EXFHBETREFNEM - NEFTE EBANETHEH-
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The Lifestyle Entertainment Segment has established rules to prevent drug

abuse:

EVERE 5 ERE R S [ kB S2 89 48 Al

o All the new employees must pass the drug test being recruited,;

. FMENABCEINERBERARAS EER

o Carry out conventional drug tests every month in the clubs, and

choose random employees to receive sample tests;

c BAREBRETEAEMAN THEHKBTEABETEA

A
Prevention against o Any employee who is suspected of taking any prohibited drugs can be
drug abuse directly reported to his/her department supervisor;
Bh b R B . mEREMEIRBENEZY AIEEMEBMHETERE:
o Our security personnel will request any person suspicious of dealing or

taking any prohibited drugs to leave the club; and
. MEREMNARSZIARBENEY RLXABSGLHNERZA

BEER R

o If any specific evidence is found to prove any person dealing or taking
any prohibited drugs, the club manager will call the police

immediately.

. MEREARITEZARIARBENEY  emEE S LR

LR

During the Reporting Period, the Lifestyle
Entertainment Segment has not received any
material non-compliance regarding products and
services. In the future, the Lifestyle Entertainment
Segment will continue to maintain good
relationships with customers by providing high-
quality services, so as to improve its service quality
and pursue improvement.

The Group recognises the importance of protecting
intellectual property rights and reinforces the
standards in the policies stated in the Code of
Conduct. During the fiscal year, the Group did not
experience any material infringement of intellectual
property rights and has taken all reasonable
measures to prevent any infringement of third
parties’ intellectual property rights.

RmERE £RRED DL E
TERAARBEMMBRBNE
ATERBR SR £HRE
DEEKEBRBREMHED MR
BEEPHEBERFTRFNEE.
BRIRSERBEELERES -

AEBAANRENBERNE
2 W RTT AT R AR BR
EHNMEEER R AP RFE -
& B I E LA RLE MR
EENEASFEMH LEHRN Y
EEMNBEEMNEEMRILESE =
THBERZEMHMEE-
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=R E

The Group attaches great importance to the
confidentiality of sensitive information. Every new
employee is required to sign a confidentiality
agreement and strictly abide by its terms to ensure
that every employee understands the Group's
confidentiality requirements for sensitive
information, including customer information and
trade secrets within the Group. The Group strictly
prohibits any unauthorised disclosure to prevent
information leakage from any direct or indirect
means.

Anti-corruption

The Group understands the importance of
anticorruption and integrity. Therefore, the Group
prohibits any act of corruption, bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The practice of good
moral integrity and anti-corruption mechanisms
ensures the Group's acts in all work are
professional, honest and fair.

The Group strictly abides by the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance, and requires all employees not
to directly or indirectly provide, undertake, require
or accept any illegitimate benefits, or carry out
other dishonest acts in breach of good faith, law or
national regulations in the course of business
engagement, including criminal offences including
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or money
laundering, and other acts such as providing illegal
political contributions, improper charitable
donations or sponsorships, providing or accepting
unreasonable gifts, entertainment or other
illegitimate benefits, infringing business secrets,
trademark rights, patent rights, copyrights and
other intellectual property rights, engaged in unfair
competition, etc. The Group requires that
employees must report any benefits received, for
which the Group will make the final decision on
disposal.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R 5T B Bl B2 12 IR AR 2 8
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The Group has established a comprehensive
anticorruption policy to strengthen business ethics,
which includes strictly regulating the behaviour of
employees, and encouraging the maintenance of
good conduct, so that our employees understand
the importance of upholding ethical conduct and
practise it at work. As the cornerstone of the
Group's culture of integrity, the Group requires all
employees to be familiar with and strictly follow the
established anti-corruption policies. Although the
Group currently does not provide training related
to anti-corruption for directors and employees, we
still strive to enhance the importance of business
ethics and anti-corruption concept of employees,
and undertake to arrange relevant training in a
timely manner to strengthen the practice of good
corporate culture in the future when necessary.

During the Reporting Period, neither the Group nor
its employees were prosecuted for corruption,
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering.

The complaint whistleblower shall truthfully report
the situation to the Administration Centre. Upon
receipt of the whistleblowing matter, the
Administration Centre will investigate the
complaint. The Administration Centre will keep the
whistleblower’s personal information confidential,
and will submit the case to the competent external
agency for disposal when necessary. The
whistleblower will undertake corresponding legal
liability for fabricating facts, falsifying evidence, or
conducting false charges or frame-ups by
whistleblowing.

ABiemEaEE AEEERT
TENRESHE EFBEER
BAERETA HEEFRIT
B FEEREMONBITHIFE
%ﬁ?%%%ﬁvﬁ%l¢$§
¢%$%l@1mﬁymm
CAREBEERMBEEINE
IW% ERIHRETHR
CHARNEBEERRAEAES
&%I%ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁm%m
ZIl-BERMNDABNRAET
REEEEREREBSNEE
M U EEAREETERER
ZHREBEI MR R FEEX
{EHEE -

REBERHE AEEREEBETY
REBZLEERERS XH BR-
MFHLREMREFOEM
& FA RC 8% o

wEHFREFAAMR
MERMHBR %§§¢ﬁ$ﬁ
BCTHEERLEHERFA
AEBAACT - THEEFLEIE
BRABBEAERERE TR
EFEMBAT EBEXREHE
BN FE R IE - N B 3f A B 3
EE - BEFE A BRFF
HBEMA B R AR EEEME
EEREME-
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Community Investment

The Group insists on the philosophy of giving back
to the society. Apart from the continual and robust
operation of business development, the Group will
make active efforts to show the service spirit of our
core corporate values, integrate the ideas of
community concern and participation, and continue
devoting to all kinds of education, cultural and
social welfare activities.

The Group is committed to performing its
corporate civic responsibility, of which volunteer
service is an important part. During the Reporting
Period, a total of 526 employees of the Group
participated in approximately 1,832 hours of
volunteer services, including but not limited to
repairing household appliances, participating in
Chinese medical consultation services, etc., to
improve neighbourhood and community
relationship.

In the future, the Group will input more resources
into various education, cultural and social welfare
activities, actively participate in community
activities, and express the Group's concern for and
return to local communities.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R 5T B Bl B2 12 IR AR 2 8
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS DATA REEBEAE

FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024

—¥-Z —EC-=
—FC-=H g 2
BBEE HBEE

GHG Emissions BERBER

Total GHG emissions BREREHEN 50,049.2 56,331.6
M-St HREE1CO M-F{HEEEtCOe
GHG emissions of the Lifestyle EERENTRE 177.0 76.2
Entertainment Segment REBER M_E{tMEEtCOe M-E{LHEEtCOe
GHG emissions intensity of the Lifestyle EERENTRE 50.6 38.1

Entertainment Segment REHEREE M-_EtReg= M-SthEE
Be5m gegm
tCO.e/business premises tCO.e/business premises
GHG emissions of the Property MEEBELILRE 49,872.2 56,255.4
Management Segment REBER M_E{tRMEEtCOe M-E{LHEEtCOe
GHG emissions intensity of the Property ~ WX EBR 2 H B E 906.8 852.4

Management Segment REHEREE M-_EtReg= M-SthEE
MEER MEER
tCOe/property project ~ tCO,e/property project
Scope 1 - Direct GHG emissions HE——-BEEREREHEN N/A i N/AT & A

Scope 2 - Energy indirect GHG emissions #E — - REZ A ZE
REHR

- Lifestyle Entertainment Segment —HEREDH 176.0 76.1
W Z AL B 2tCOe M= &1k E EtCOe
- Property Management Segment -MEEEH B 48,300.0 55,249.5

Scope 3 - Others indirect GHG emissions

RE--H@RERE
REHN

WS i E 8tCOe

W S 1t E BtCOs

- Lifestyle Entertainment Segment —HEREDH 1.0 0.1
M= 41 B 2tCOe W= &1k E EtCOe
- Property Management Segment’ -MEEED 1,572.2 1,005.9
M@ E E4C0 " M-H{HEEEtCOse
Non-hazardous Wastes BEREY

Non-hazardous wastes produced BEEBEEMRE
- Lifestyle Entertainment Segment “HEREDY N/AT i A N/ATE A
- Property Management Segment -MEERDH N/AT i A 6,331.32 frkg
Total non-hazardous wastes produced BREEEVELAE N/AD i A 6,331.32 Tkg
Non-hazardous wastes intensity of the NEEBINESRENTE 959AF/M¥EER
Property Management Segment N/AZ & kg/property project

" BETUAEIUARBRER KRR -

Data is restated to reflect the actual performance.
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FY 2022/2023
o

—E-=

MREE

FY 2023/2024
—g-=

—E-QmE
BEREE

Energy Consumption

Total energy consumption

Energy consumption of the Lifestyle
Entertainment Segment

Energy consumption intensity of the
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment

Energy consumption of the Property
Management Segment*

Energy consumption intensity of the
Property Management Segment

Water Consumption

Total water consumption

Water consumption of the Lifestyle
Entertainment Segment

Water consumption intensity of the
Lifestyle Entertainment Segment

Water consumption of the Property
Management Segment’

Water consumption intensity of the
Property Management Segment

BERH ¥
AE R OB
R R &
ERR
MEE

MEE

FKE

BEKE
R IR 8

AR R

MEEE

MEE R

e
7 ';ZB Be /T /lél ﬁ

HEIHI

ErBEREREE
I ) # BE R OB

TE/ ';Z[gﬁlc/ /ﬁﬁ T

2

NEEKE
ENTRKEE
SEEKE

DHEKEE

84,976.25% B & MWh

283.9K FL B MWh
8LV LB /48 &35 P
MWh/business premises

84,692.3 K FL B MWh
15399k B K,/
ESRE
MWh/property project

247415455 J7 K m?

1,767.931 5 % m?
505.1 L7 K/ BB B
m*/business premises

2,472,386.6 3 J7 3K m?
44,952,531 55 K/
MEEH
m?3/property project

96,993.2 % K & MWh

115.3% & B MWh
57.7 % FL & /48 & 8 fit

MWh/business premises

96,877.9 % E B MWh
14678k R &/
WxER
MWh/property project

1,482,574.2 757 K m?

176.0 X 75 K m?®
88.0 Ji X/ & 5 ff

m®/business premises

1,482,398.23 75 X m?
22,460.6 3 75 %/
MEER
m?/property project

8¢ AUX International Holdings Limited / 5 5% &f B B 42 B2 B PR 24 &
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RiE - -HE8RERBRS

SOCIAL ASPECTS DATA

HtEEEBE

FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024

—ET=- = —_E_-=

ZEZ=ZF ZE_NfF
B FE B FE

Employment
Total number of employees

Number of employees by gender
Male
Female

Number of employees by age group

<25
26-35
36-45
46-55
> 55

Number of employees by working year

> 1 year
1-3 years
3-5years
5-10 years
> 10 years

Number of employees by
employment type
Full-time
Part-time

Number of employees by
geographical region
The PRC
Hong Kong
Others (Nepal, Pakistan, etc.)

=R

BWETAH 994 952
DUMR&s8TIT A

B 703 641

el 291 311
LERMENESPET AR

< 255% 109 82

26-35 5% 241 209

36-45 5% 320 320

46-55 8% 290 305

> 55 5% 34 36
BEIEFHESEI LAY

> 14 266 95

1-34F 267 325

3-54 192 162

5-10 & 220 291

> 104 49 79
DERFENEIET AH

2 B 989 939

;i 5 13
Dt BESET AR

R A b 955 949

BB 38 3

Emn@E(EAR  BEEHBEE) 1 =
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FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024
T =F2=-=
—T=-= —E2-@mF
FBFEE Bt FE
Employee Turnover Rate BEIRKE
Total employee turnover rate mEIRAKX 4% 43%
Employee turnover rate by gender Dip@loszB8IRAE
Male B 4% 42%
Female Z 5% 46%
Employee turnover rate by age group U FHRARE I ZEIRKE
<25 <25%% 7% 93%
26 -35 26-357% 6% 65%
36 -45 36-45 5%, 4% 37%
46 - 55 46-55 % 3% 22%
> 55 > 5575% 3% 39%
Employee turnover rate by ULt BESZEIRAE
geographical region
The PRC R A 4% 40%
Hong Kong e 4% 1,067%
Others (Nepal, Pakistan, etc.) EmumE(EAm EEHRBFE) N/AT 38 B %"
Health and Safety REHZ2
Cases of work-related fatalities TTUHER 1 -
Work-related injury ITHERER 5 16
Lost days due to work injury IEmBEEZITEBH 195 867
Development and Training BREREI
Total training hours for employees BEIXIERH 5,194 6,851
Total employees trained X BT EH 1,066 948
Percentage of employees trained XAl 8 Tt 32% 99%
Percentage of employee trained UMp &8s z22IE LA
by gender
Male EER 62% 67%
Female z 38% 33%

0 AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 57 B B¢ 42 I 5 PR 2 &
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FY 2022/2023 FY 2023/2024
T :g:—
—ZT=-= —E-NWmE
FBFEE MEREFE
Percentage of employee trained LEEEAZZIBEI A
by employee category
General staff E®ET 42% 79%
Middle management FEEBE AR 4% 15%
Senior management SRERAE 17% 6%
Average training hours completed per B\t Bl & 2 2 8 T 5 & 35
employee by gender FHRE
Male S 1.0 6.5
Female geglid 3.0 8.6
Average training hours completed per L\ EE Rl 2 8 T 5 &K 1L 7l
employee by employee category FHRE
General staff ET@mET 0.3 4.0
Middle management FEEHE AR 8.6 18.4
Senior management MERANE 2.5 21.9
Supply Chain Management HEgEER
Total number of suppliers HER AR 346 158
By geographical region A 3t [ & 73
The PRC R A 313 148
Hong Kong BB 33 10
Product Responsibility EmEM®
Number of products and service-related % EBERNE R KREH
complaints received KB A 129 205
Anti-corruption RES
Number of corruption litigation cases and B S FA R & B &k Nil Nil
the outcomes of the cases o 5h A5 R i i
Community Investment HERE
Corporate donations TEEZEH N/A & B N/ATE A

—

EEEH TIERH
2EREZEHFTIFRE AR

Employees’ volunteer hours
Number of employees participated in
volunteer activities

4,874 hours /)N B

2,296

1,832 hours /) B

526
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE RE - HERERKEIESI
Part A: Environmental AT D BIE
ESG Aspects Related Section(s) Remarks
ESGE | 18 B8 B 12 B =
A1. Emissions
A1 BE B

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws Environment

and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

FHBERLAZRBER MAKRLHOHEST BFER
BEEBREVYNELNBRR  RETHETABEAZE
MEREZEMRRINER-

il
i

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emission data.  Air Emissions

KPIATABE R BB R EE- B R BE

KPI' A1.2 Greenhouse gas emission in total (in tonnes) and, Greenhouse Gas Emissions
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

KPIAI2EERBAFNEUMABE)RZE@ER (0 RERBIERX
NEEESEN BHERBHETE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, Waste Management
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production

volume, per facility).

KPIAISFTELXEEREEMHLEUBAEIREEWER) BEHEE

(WM EBEESN BEREZMTE) -

92 AUX International Holdings Limited / 88 32 7 A B2 42 B 45 1R 2 7]



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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ESG Aspects
ESGE H

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
KPPAMMAFMEEEEEEMHRECAEAE)REE(WER)
(WA BEEEN BEIBTE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved.

KPIATSH BB BE M BN ERRMEKR -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
KPIAMMGHMEREERBEEEYN L REELASE
REBREBRR-

A2. Use of Resources

A2. 8 RfE A

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

ERERERBREER KEEMRTEDOERRK-

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

KPIA2 1B R E D MER R/ LMEERWNE - Jkh)
BREUUTATEASABE)REE(WAEBEE B -
BRIEETHE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
KPIA22@ e K ERZE(MNBEEEN - BHERMENH) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.
KPI A2 3 L BE TR (2 A R i MM ELS MUK R -

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

SR ERGE B KR £ R B A R B A A KR B DA R
G R -

Remarks

B &

Related Section(s)
AH B8 3B 4

Waste Management

BEE B

Greenhouse Gas Emissions,
Target for GHG Emissions
BERBER BRERE

BB 1R

Waste Management, Waste
Management Goals

EHMER BEWEERR

Use of Resources
BIR{E A

Energy Consumption

BER £ A

Water Consumption
K

Energy Consumption,
Energy Use Goals
BRRER BEREME T

Water Consumption, Water
Efficiency Goals

FEK - BT B Z
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BRI - HEBRERBRE

ESG Aspects
ESGE H
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products

(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.

KPI A2.58L B & BT A3 62 )

GHEEEMESR-

BEMBMBNEEAMREGE) R E

A3. The Environmental and Natural Resources

ABBRERARRER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

HMEZBETAHRBELRAEREXNERTENRE -

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on
the environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.

KPPASNE R EBEHHRERBERRAERNEARAZTER
EXREREHELENTE -

A4. Climate Change
A4 R & &1t

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

Bl R EEEER
HMBAEENBRE-

AU BETAELATENEARARRK

KPI' A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer,
and the actions taken to manage them.

KPIAAHE R E B R AT REE HEHITAE
BREBEE REHTH-

FEMEARR

Remarks
Our business

activities do
not involve any

Related Section(s)
20
Packaging Materials

packaging
materials used.
/% Yk BRI RB R
A KLER
Ef B EWHL

Energy Efficiency, Water
Management

BER M s AKE R

The Environment and
Natural Resources

RENMKXKAER

Climate Change

TR A

Climate Change

TR A
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RiE -HEgRERBRS

Part B. Social BH A -#E
ESG Aspects Related Section(s) Remarks
ESGE ® 8 B8 & 57 Mt =
B1. Employment
B1.{& f&

Information on the policies and compliance with laws and Employment
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
ERFHEEE BEREA ITESE BRE FTSEH ER

g Zalt REGSAREAMEGTE REFOHREKRESF
HETABEAZENHBEZEZRRAINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age Our Employees
group and geographical region.

KPIBI1RMR - ERBEL FhRAN LK BRESNEE HMANEES
mE o

KPI B1.2 Employment turnover rate by gender, age group and  Our Employees
geographical region.

KPIB1.2 MR - FiRAN R REDHWEERRLE HMANEE

B2. Health and Safety
B2 BERZ 2

Information on the policies and compliance with laws and Health and Safety
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.
FEHRHZEIFRENREREERABELEENR REREZ S
RRBTHETABEARZENHEBEEZRRAINEHR -

KPI' B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Health and Safety
KPIB2IE T =8 M ABU R b X - fEmRELE
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
KPIB22EI TZ#EARTEFRH - fEmREL®

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and

monitored.

KPIB23f M FT IR MM B X R R 28 ANEREN BREEZ2
TRERTE-
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ESG Aspects
ESGE H
B3. Development and Training

B3.% & & 5% 3l

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
FRARARBREET IEBREMNMZ R RENBEK - fFil
AR & o

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle
management).

KPIB3 1M R REERN(NaREREE TREEES)
EoMEINEEB DL -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.

KPIB32iz R K EEHERE D BHREETKXIANTF
95 8 -

B4. Labour Standards
B4.% T # H|

Information on the policies and compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
ERMELETXRHISETITNBRRRETHETABEK
TENHEBIERRINER-

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

KPIB4A i sf MBI NERABEE T MBRHIS T -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

KPIB42H i E H R EZ R B R BERERABRAAMRRD
R e

Related Section(s)
AH B8 3B 4

Development and Training

R R

Development and Training

R RE

Development and Training

R RE

Labour Standards

4 T % 8

Labour Standards
4T %8|
Labour Standards

8 T A
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RiE -HEgRERBRS

ESG Aspects Related Section(s) Remarks
ESGE | 6 B W 5 M &

B5. Supply Chain Management

B5. fit fE 8% = 2

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Supply Chain Management

supply chain.

EEHEENRERLEGRERREK- HrEEER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management
KPIB5.1#2i R & n ey L ERg 8 B - HrEEER

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain Management
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

KPIBS2f it EAIE A EENEDN WERTEBEN HEEERE
MEERHEE UARBHAEBIHORTRERT A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management
environmental and social risks along the supply chain, and

how they are implemented and monitored.

KPIBS3 i BB M ERBERSNRER LR HERER

R EO UREERATRER -

KPIl B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain Management
environmentally preferable products and services when

selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and

monitored.

KPIBSAf i EREHEERRESZARRER LRYE HEEER

WEG UAREEARTRERA -
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RE - -HE8RERBRS

ESG Aspects

ESGE H
B6. Product Responsibility
B6.EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
method of redress.
FHRMRHERNRENRERER S BES SH KL
BREEARBRDZNBRRRETHETABREARE
WHEBEEELBRIEER-

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.
KPIBGIEEXEEXEMmBHTRAL2E@EEEMM
BARKME DL

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

KPIB62EEBMRERMARBORFHE AL ESH FE-

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
KPIBo 3t it B & MIRIE M B ERABHEOED -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall

procedures.
KPIB6AHH L E B E B2 K& & m Wi fF -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.
KPIBoSH M B B HEEMRERLBBE A RMBEBAIT
NERFTE-

Related Section(s)
18 B8 B 47

Product Responsibility

R
2o
il
[

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Product Responsibility
= m B
Product Responsibility
= B F
Product Responsibility
7 m B E
Product Responsibility

EmEE
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RiE - -HE8RERBRS

ESG Aspects
ESGE H

B7. Anti-corruption
B7.R E 5

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
EEDLEHER DR HFRABENRRLE T H &
TABEARZENHEBEZRROINEHR-

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the issuer or its employees during
the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the cases.
KPIBTIR B EHAHBTAXEEBERLEIECEEHN
BEOHNAEHHBE RFRER-

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how they are implemented and
monitored.

KPIB7 2t fh B E i R B UARBEBERATRESR
7k e

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to
directors and staff.
KPIB73fE i MEERBETRENREIZTHI -

B8. Community Investment

BS.#H* E#®RE

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure
that its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
ERAUMR2ERTREEFMELEREFTENBRAEY
EHEEEREMTEBRNGAHEE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).
KPIBS1ZE T EREIS(INHE BREFHE HIHR #EE-
Xik-BAE)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

KPIBS2EH THBEMBAE RN & L) -

Related Section(s)

18 B8 3 17

Anti-corruption

k&5

Anti-corruption

k&S5

Anti-corruption

kE)sE

Anti-corruption

k&S

W &

Community Investment

e E

Community Investment

e E

Community Investment

e E

Remarks
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Report of the Directors
EEERS

The Directors submit herewith their annual report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2024.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the Company's principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.

A review of the Group’s business during the financial year,
which includes a fair review of the Group's business, a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group, an analysis of the Group's financial key performance,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the
financial year and after the end of the financial year, and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and
Analysis set out on pages 8 to 15 and the Group's
environmental policies and performance can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 37 to
99 of this annual report. The contents of the abovementioned
sections form parts of the business review as contained in this
report of the Directors.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the
management, the Group complied with the relevant laws and
regulations which may have a material impact on the business
and operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in all
material respects during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the
significant assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue
establishing a caring environment to employees and
emphasises the personal development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers
and suppliers. The Group aims to continually provide quality
services and consumption experiences to its customers and
establish cooperation strategy with its suppliers.

AUX International Holdings Limited / R 5T B Bl B2 12 IR AR 2 8
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BREHNAEEXBTONRATFERN 2
REETHBEENSwm AEEEEY
BERAITM FERFEARMBRFRREF
EAEENBEREFHNABEANURAE
BEBZARAEERANRE LXK M
BRI TR AFRESESAENERE S
WA MEBER - HLEREARRETFTA
5B IR B BROR NS R B B R AF ER 5B 37
EVE - LHREMZATEBREFTERS
el X BN — &

BIEERER
FEEFEREEEMAN REBE_T_-MN
FZA=Z=T—"BHLFE AEEEMEFE
ZITEEETHREHARALENE QA
EBLREBELEAZENHEBEIZRZX
e

HEET FFRHEBHNEEZHBRR

AEEERBEIR/AEENEREEZ —
YAEERZYREENRRESER ERE
THyfE ANBERE-

AEEREPAMERARFRIFBAG I
BEEULREFPREREEERB L BEEBR U
FEMHEBILAIERBERBERZ



Report of the Directors
EEERE

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-
friendly corporate environment that pays close attention to
conserving natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its
impact on the environment by reducing its electricity
consumption and encouraging recycling of office supplies and
For further details, please refer to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report set out on
pages 37 to 99 of this annual report.

other materials.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024
and the state of the Company's and the Group's affairs as at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 133
to 141.

TRANSFER OF RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company before
dividends, of HK$16,721,000 (2023: HK$21,511,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2024, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to shareholders, calculated in accordance with
the Companies Act (2022 Revision) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$117,598,000 (2023:
HK$127,925,000).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 236 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

BERXE
AEBBNBAERRONEERE BEX
RER BBBEESE %ﬁ&?@]@%?ﬁ
AREARMEAEMAYEREERBEENDF
B —STHBE FRHUHAEFREIER
EVEMHACRE @ kEa@mE-

Bt %% 8| &

AEBHEZE-_ZT-_NMFZA=Z+—HB1LF
EZzEBURARBRAEBRHZZA Z
ERARRNBE AT BHRKEI1IBE1418 -

BRERE

A A F % R E AR BB B BT & F16,721,000
%mugz:i-mmmm%MEE%
ERFE-REZEMEHHENGAERE
EIE- &

EETEEpBEE-_ZS-_OF=A=+—
BEFERNRARBBRE(ZZT =% :8)-

" 7K & &

RZE-_WNF=ZA=Z+—HB ' ARQARIE
HEeERERAN X ZE - _FEBIKR)TE

ZA DR TFREZ B E117,598,000%8
(= Z = =4 : 127,925,000 7T) °
B E
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SHARE CAPITAL

There were no other movements in the share capital of the
Company, and there were no purchases, sales or redemptions
of the Company’s listed securities by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases
from the major customers and suppliers during the year ended
31 March 2024 is as follows:

g

BE_Z_N&F=ZA=Z+—HLEFE XK
AEZ%$M4¥E1@§£@J BEAXAAASHH

ﬁ%%ﬁa@$ﬁ
Eﬁt?ﬁ%ﬁ%

BEBERE

HASKHEHE ZENEEHEELHE#
X -BMEARRABAREAMBEERE
REBEHRKMG -

BOEH 2

EXVAANERRAFTEARARAESME

BB ER R -
EFERHEER
TEEPRHERREBEE_T _NONF=H

St BLEFEREA RS E RS
BERmT:

Percentage of
the Group's
total purchases

Percentage of
the Group's
total revenue

(R - AU E EEAEERE
BEEIH BEEIH
The largest customer S NE-A 7%
Five largest customers in aggregate A AR F & & 18%
The largest supplier SN ] 30%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 1 At fE i & 73%
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EEERE

During the year, other than Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd
(which accounted for approximately 6.6% of the total sales for
the year ended 31 March 2024), in which Mr. Zheng Jianjiang
and Mr. Zheng Jiang indirectly hold 85.0% interests and 10.0%
interests, respectively, and Ningbo Mingzhou Hospital, which
is an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of a 30%-controlled
company held by Mr. Zheng Jianjiang (which accounted for
approximately 6.5% of the total sales for the year ended 31
March 2024), none of the Directors, their close associates or
Shareholders who to the best knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company
has any beneficial interest in any of the Group's five largest
suppliers or customers.

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Jiang (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Hon Ki
Mr. Zheng Jianjiang
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2024)
Ms. Shen Guoying
Ms. Chen Lingxiao

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Poon Chiu Kwok

Mr. Bau Siu Fung

Ms. Lou Aidong

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles of Association, the
Board shall have the power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until
the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation.

RAFEZ - bR B ER T 6 & M & T % £ 5 Bl
MESEEFEZHEEER QNG
@%:2 MFEF=ZA=Z+—BLFEHE
485 6.6%)85.0% F10.0% Hy #E =5 F1 28 57 B85 )N
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2 EWNBAR(NMEHZ-_ZE-_NF =
AZ+—BLEFEHERBBNGSR) I
BERE HERBEARBEZTZEIANEN
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EEERE

Accordingly, the office of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang will end, and
Mr. Bau Siu Fung, Mr. Chan Hon Ki and Ms. Lou Aidong will
retire from office, at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM") of the Company. Except for Ms. Lou Aidong, all
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 16 to 19 of
this annual report.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of the
then Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the "SFO"), which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which the Directors
and chief executive were deemed or taken to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register therein,
or were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules were as follows:

At BMETEREWNEHRSER - M)
ErEE REALAEREBERZIBRA
RAEERRBFAG(RRBFAE])
FERE-BKREERZXII MARELES
BRAER ITREEESEME-
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(A) Long position in Ordinary Shares (A) ZEBRRZHFR
Percentage
of the issued
Long position share capital
Capacity/ in ordinary (approximately)
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest shares held (Note 1)
ERITRAE
Bot
FREEAR (%% %)

REREE B EutE 2R (Ktat1)

Zheng Jian Jiang (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 337,950,000 68.55%

corporation

B BT (B it 2) RELAE#ER

Notes: o

1. On the basis of 492,984,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 1. BERAARAR-_FT-_MF=ZA=+—H
31 March 2024. B 2 17 % 15 492,984,000 % A& £ 6 -

2. These shares were held by Huiri Limited, a company incorporated 2. ZERDAEBZERER A (—HERE
in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability which is owned as BEAZBESFMAIHERRAIZA -
to 90% by Ze Hui Limited, a wholly-owned company by Mr. Zheng miEBERBRRDAIN%E = B & BT
Jianjiang. EEZEHEANRAEEAERAFNEE-

(B) Long positions in the shares and underlying sharesof (B) RALQATAMHBEZE 2R A RHEE R

associated corporation of the Company iAo
Approximately
Percentage of
Name of associated Name of Capacity/Nature of Number and the issued
Corporation Directors interest class of shares share capital
ERITREAZ
HEEZE S8 EEpnE S50/ EzHH" R E REH BHBED
Huiri Limited (Note) Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 0.1 10%
corporation ordinary shares
EEZERERRDGMGE) BT RELEEE R ERR
China Prosper Enterprise Zheng Jiang Interest in a controlled 1,000 10%
Holding Co., Ltd. (Note) corporation ordinary shares
China Prosper Enterprise BT XELAE RS =l
Holding Co., Ltd (#f &#)
Note: B
Ze Hong Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Zheng Jiang, was BIXREZ2EEBENRARERZAERRDERGHAK
interested in (i) 10% of the issued share capital of Huiri Limited, being the ARAMERARNEAERARRAABEHITRA
holding company of the Company; and (i) 10% of the issued share capital B10%: R(NEBZERERDFBERNEEB QA
of China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd., being a fellow subsidiary China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd. B % 17
of Huiri Limited. Mr. Zheng Jiang was deemed to be interested in the AN T HEEREZ REZFRBE KM -
shares of Huiri Limited and China Prosper Enterprise Holding Co., Ltd. as BIAERBERREZERAFAFANEBE
held by Ze Hong Limited by virtue of the SFO. % B BB 2 7 K China Prosper Enterprise Holding

Co., Ltd. Wy R B & -
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Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short
positions required to be recorded in the register kept under
section 352 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of
persons other than the chief executive of the Company who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

BREdESN RABAETHMEEMARCE
RBREBEEZFRMEGINEIGEMFEN
BRMAZEDE XA -

FERRAROREBRGD 2%

ol )

ERIFMBERIEDBKEEFEZERLM
it TIALT(RRAEZESHTERAEBRK
SR A RBE RMDAEBEERMD T HEER
BEREFLHEHRIEXVEEE2R3D F KX
AARBDEBIARBEZES AR DMT

Percentage
of the issued

Long position share capital

Capacity/ in ordinary (approximately)
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest shares held (Note 1)
EETRAE
B2
BEZTER (8 %)
BER®E B0 Rt E ZHR (K1)
Ze Hui Limited (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 337,950,000 68.55%
corporation
EE AR A (M E2) RELAEER
Huiri Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner 337,950,000 68.55%
fERERBRARMGF2) EnHEA A
He Yi Ju (Note 3) Interest of spouse 337,950,000 68.55%
o] 2 58 (M1 3£ 3) i 18 1 &=
Xu Xingen Beneficial owner 32,400,000 6.57%
HIER EnHEA A
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Notes:

i On the basis of 492,984,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31
March 2024.

2. Huiri Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with

limited liability which is owned as to 90% by Ze Hui Limited (which is in
turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zheng Jianjiang) and 10% by
Ze Hong Limited (which is in turn wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Zheng Jiang, a current executive Director). Each of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang
and Ze Hui Limited is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which
Huiri Limited is interested by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. He Yi Ju is the spouse of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang. Under the SFO, Ms.
He Yi Ju was taken to be interested in the same number of shares in
which Mr. Zheng Jianjiang was interested.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests and short
positions required to be recorded in the register kept under
section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” of this report of the
Directors, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
or any of its controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director of the Company or an entity
connected with a Director or a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 March
2024 or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” of this report of the Directors, at no time during the
year, the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements which would
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this report, none of the
Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of
18 was granted any right to subscribe for the shares or
debentures of the Company or its subsidiaries or had
exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS'
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

For the year ended 31 March 2024 the Board is not aware of
any business or interests of the then Directors and their
respective associates that had competed or might compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the
Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
having regard to the Group's operating results and individual
performance.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors, employees and other eligible persons.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 2(p) to the financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The Net Proceeds from the Subscription had been used in the
manner as disclosed in the Circular and the announcement of
the Company dated 4 November 2022. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group had fully utilised all such Net Proceeds for working
capital of the Company, rental expenses and salary expenses
of the lifestyle entertainment segment and partial repayment
of the loan from the controlling shareholder.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2014 Share Option Scheme

The Company had adopted a share option scheme (the 2014
Share Option Scheme”) on 3 January 2014 which shall be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from that date.
Accordingly, the 2014 Share Option Scheme had expired on 2
January 2024. The purpose of the 2014 Share Option Scheme
is to provide incentives to the below eligible participants and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
these eligible participants have had or may have made to the
Group. Under the 2014 Share Option Scheme, the Board may
offer to grant options to the following eligible participants:

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives, or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including any non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
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(iv)  such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group, the
assessment criteria of which are:

(1) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(2)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(3) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(4)  length of service or contribution to the Group.

Pursuant to the transitional arrangements prescribed by the
Stock Exchange, with effect from 1 January 2023, among the
classes of participants mentioned above, the Company may
continue to grant share options under the 2014 Share Option
Scheme only to those participants who fall within the definition
of "eligible participants” under Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules, including, in the case of the Company, primarily
directors and employees of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

The Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2014 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. The maximum number
of Shares available for issue under options which may be
granted under the 2014 Share Option Scheme or other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue immediately
following completion of the Global Offering (as defined in the
prospectus of the Company dated 13 January 2014) (but taking
no account of any Shares which may be allotted or issued
pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as
defined in the Prospectus)), being 30,000,000 Shares. The total
number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted pursuant to the 2014 Share
Option Scheme to an eligible participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless approved by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting.
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The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the 2014 Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board provided that it shall not be less
than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a
Share.

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and
accepted by the grantee and to have taken effect when the
duplicate offer document constituting acceptance of the
options duly signed by the grantee, together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant, is received by the Company on or before the
relevant acceptance date prescribed by the Board. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the 2014
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which
the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to
the expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which
an option may be exercised (including its vesting period or
vesting date, if any) will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted.

On 28 November 2014, the Company granted 2,745,000
options to the eligible participants under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme, of which 2,384,000 options had been
exercised and 361,000 options had lapsed. Save for the above,
no grant of option had been made under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme during its life. As at the beginning of the
financial year, i.e. 1 April 2023, 27,616,000 options were
available for grant under the scheme mandate of the 2014
Share Option Scheme. As at 1 April 2023 and during the year
ended 31 March 2024, there was no outstanding option under
the 2014 Share Option Scheme. As the 2014 Share Option
Scheme had expired on 2 January 2024, no option was
available for grant under the 2014 Share Option Scheme as at
the end of the financial year, i.e. 31 March 2024. Further, as
the 2014 Share Option Scheme had expired on 2 January 2024
and as there was no outstanding option under the 2014 Share
Option Scheme as at the date of this annual report, no share
was available for issue under the 2014 Share Option Scheme
as at the date of this annual report.
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2024 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2024
Share Option Scheme”) on 20 February 2024 which shall be
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date and
accordingly have a remaining life until 19 February 2034,
subject to early termination by the Company in a general
meeting or by the Board. The purpose of the 2024 Share
Option Scheme is to (i) to enable the Company to grant
options to the eligible participants detailed below as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth and
development of the Group; (ii) to attract and retain personnel
to promote the sustainable development of the Group; and (iii)
to align the interest of the grantees with those of the
Shareholders to promote the long-term financial and business
performance of the Group. Under the 2024 Share Option
Scheme, the Board may offer to grant options to the following
eligible persons, being employees (whether full time or part
time, and including directors) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (within the meaning of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) from time to time,
including persons who are granted options under the 2024
Share Option Scheme as an inducement to enter into
employment contracts with these companies.

A total of 49,298,400 Shares may be issued in respect of all
share options that may be granted under the 2024 Share
Option Scheme, representing approximately 10% of the total
number of issued Shares as at 20 February 2024 (the date of
adoption of the 2024 Share Option Scheme). Where any offer
of options to a participant under the 2024 Share Option
Scheme would result in the Shares issued and to be issued in
respect of all options granted to the participant under the
2024 Share Option Scheme and all options and awards
granted to the participant under any other share schemes of
the Company (excluding all options that have lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the 2024 Share Option Scheme
and all options and awards that have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of any other share schemes of the Company) in
the 12-month period up to and including the offer date
representing in aggregate over 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue, such an offer must be separately approved by
the shareholders at a general meeting.
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An offer shall have been accepted by a participant in respect
of all the options which are offered to such a participant when
the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly
signed by the participant together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company within such time as
may be specified in the offer (which period shall be up to 21
days from the offer date). The option period within which an
option may be exercised by a grantee may be determined and
notified by the Board to the grantee, which must not be more
than 10 years from the offer date of the option. In the absence
of such determination, the option period of an option shall
commence on the offer date of the option and end on the
earlier of (i) the date on which the option is cancelled or lapses
under the 2024 Share Option Scheme; and (ii) the expiration of
the period of 10 years from the offer date of the option.

The vesting period in respect of an option, which shall
commence on the date on which the grantee accepts the offer
of the option and end on the vesting date, shall not be shorter
than 12 months from the date of acceptance of the offer,
unless a shorter vesting period is set in accordance with the
provisions of the 2024 Share Option Scheme. The
Remuneration Committee (or, as the case may be, the Board)
may further establish performance target(s) in respect of
specific grantees, the attainment of which shall be a
precondition for any exercise of the options granted to the
grantees concerned under the 2024 Share Option Scheme.

The price per share at which a grantee may subscribe for the
share on the exercise of an option granted under the 2024
Share Option Scheme shall be determined at the discretion of
the Board, provided that it must be at least the highest of: (a)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; and (c) the nominal value of a share.:
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As the 2024 Share Option Scheme was adopted during the
year ended 31 March 2024, the number of options available for
grant under the 2024 Share Option Scheme was nil as at the
beginning of the financial year, i.e. 1 April 2023. Since the
adoption date of the 2024 Share Option Scheme and up to the
date of this annual report, no option had been granted under
the 2024 Share Option Scheme. Accordingly, as at the end of
the financial year, i.e. 31 March 2024, 49,298,400 options were
available for grant under the scheme mandate of the 2024
Share Option Scheme. As at the date of this annual report, the
total number of shares available for issue under the 2024 Share
Option Scheme was 49,298,400 Shares, representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Save for the share option schemes of the Group as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the

Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2024.
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Under the Articles of Association, the Company had a
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the Directors
throughout the year ended 31 March 2024 and as at the date
of this report of the Directors, pursuant to which the Company
shall indemnify the Directors against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which any of them
may incur by reason of any act done in execution of their duty
in their respective offices, except such as they shall incur
through their own fraud or dishonesty. The Company has
maintained insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
arising out of corporate activities.

The following transactions between certain connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and the
Group were conducted during the Year on a continuing basis
for which relevant announcements had been made by the
Company in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(a) Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s circular dated 2 February 2024)
On 27 November 2023, Shuyi Property entered into
property management services framework agreements
(collectively, the "2023 Framework Agreements”) with
each of (i) Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group Company
Limited ("Ningbo AUX Healthcare”) (the “2023
Framework Agreement |”); (ii) AUX Group Company
Limited ("AUX Group”) (the “2023 Framework Agreement
[1"); (iii) Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd.
("Ningbo Sanxing”) (the “2023 Framework Agreement
[11"); (iv) Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX
Real Estate”) (the “2023 Framework Agreement IV"); and
(v) Ningbo AUX Electric Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX Electric”)
(the "2023 Framework Agreement V") (parties to each
agreement entering into such agreement for itself and as
trustee for the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to
time) for the provision by Ningbo AUX of maintenance,
cleaning and/or security services for offices, industrial
park facilities, car park units, residential properties and/
or commercial properties.
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As at the date of the above agreements, (i) AUX Group
was in aggregate directly held as to 100% by two
companies, each of which is held as to 85.00% by Mr. JJ
Zheng; (ii) Ningbo Sanxing was in aggregate directly
held as to approximately 49.28% by Mr. JJ Zheng and
the parties acting in concert with him (including Mr.
Zheng Jiang and AUX Group); (iii) Ningbo AUX Electric
was in aggregate held as to approximately 92.09% by Mr.
JJ Zheng, including direct interests of 25.00% and
indirect interests of approximately 67.09% held through
various entities; (iv) Ningbo Mingzhou Healthcare was a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Ningbo Sanxing; and
(v) Ningbo AUX Real Estate was indirectly held as to
85.00% by Mr. JJ Zheng, and Mr. JJ Zheng indirectly
holds approximately 68.55% of the issued Shares.
Accordingly, each of AUX Group, Ningbo Sanxing,
Ningbo AUX Electric, Ningbo Mingzhou Healthcare and
Ningbo AUX Real Estate was an associate (being a
30%-controlled company) of Mr. JJ Zheng, a controlling
shareholder of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the 2023 Framework Agreements
will constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Each of the 2023 Framework Agreements is effective for
a term commencing on 1 January 2024 and ending on 31
December 2026. Further details of each of the 2024
Framework Agreements are disclosed below:

Under the 2023 Framework Agreement |, Shuyi
Property shall provide property housekeeping,
transportation and other ancillary services to
Ningbo AUX Healthcare and/or its subsidiaries
from time to time for a term commencing on 1
January 2024 and ending on 31 December 2026.
The above transactions shall be subject to the
annual cap of RMB30.6 million, RMB33.7 million
and RMB41.5 million for the years ended/ending 31
December 2024, 2025 and 2026, respectively.
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Under the 2023 Framework Agreement Il, Shuyi
Property shall provide property management
services including maintenance, cleaning and
security services in connection with the offices,
commercial properties and car park units occupied
by AUX Group and/or its subsidiaries. In addition,
Ningbo AUX shall provide pre-sale managements
services, sales offices management services and
unsold industrial park units property management
services in respect of industrial park facilities
owned by AUX Group and/or its subsidiaries from
time to time for a term commencing on 1 January
2024 and ending on 31 December 2026. The above
transactions shall be subject to the annual cap of
RMB1.2 million, RMB1.2 million and RMB1.2 million
for the years ended/ending 31 December 2024,
2025 and 2026, respectively.

Under the 2023 Framework Agreement IlI, Shuyi
Property shall provide property management
services including maintenance, cleaning and
security services in connection with the offices and
car park units occupied by Ningbo Sanxing and/or
its subsidiaries from time to time for a term
commencing on 1 January 2024 and ending on 31
December 2026. The above transactions shall be
subject to the annual cap of RMB13.5 million,
RMB14.5 million and RMB15.1 million for the years
ended/ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and 2026,
respectively.

Under the 2023 Framework Agreement IV, Shuyi
Property shall provide property management
services including management, maintenance,
cleaning and security services in connection with
the development projects of residential properties
and shopping complexes launched by Ningbo AUX
Real Estate and/or its subsidiaries from time to
time for a term commencing on 1 January 2024 and
ending on 31 December 2026. The above
transactions shall be subject to the annual cap of
RMB37.5 million, RMB31.5 million and RMB28
million for the years ended/ending 31 December
2024, 2025 and 2026, respectively.
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Under the 2023 Framework Agreement V, Shuyi
Property shall provide property management
services including mainly maintenance, cleaning,
and/or security services in connection with the
industrial park facilities occupied by Ningbo AUX
Electric and/or its subsidiaries from time to time for
a term commencing on 1 January 2024 and ending
on 31 December 2026. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMB8.6 million,
RMB9.9 million and RMB10.7 million for the years
ended/ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and 2026,
respectively.

Continuing Connection Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 30 September
2021)

On 30 September 2021, Ningbo AUX entered into
property management services framework agreements
(collectively, the "2021 Framework Agreements”) with
each of Ningbo AUX Real Estate (the “2021 Framework
Agreement |”) and Ningbo AUX Electric (the “"2021
Framework Agreement Il") (parties to each agreement
entering into such agreement for itself and as trustee for
the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to time) for the
provision by Ningbo AUX of maintenance, cleaning,
security and/or customer services for sales offices,
showrooms, vacant industrial park units and/or
properties and facilities of industrial park.

As at the date of the above agreements, (i) Ningbo AUX
Real Estate was indirectly held as to 85.00% by Mr. JJ
Zheng; (ii) Ningbo AUX Electric was in aggregate
controlled as to approximately 92.08% by Mr. JJ Zheng;
and (iii) Mr. JJ Zheng indirectly held approximately
58.66% of the issued shares of the Company (and
approximately 68.55% as at the date of this report).
Accordingly, each of Ningbo AUX Real Estate and
Ningbo AUX Electric is an associate (being a
30%-controlled company) of Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, a
controlling shareholder of the Company, and hence a
connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the 2021 Framework
Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Each of the 2021 Framework Agreements was effective EMH_E_—FEERHBEHR_F
for a term commencing on 1 October 2021 and ending =z —F + H BRERE_ZT-=ZF
on 31 December 2023. The 2021 Framework Agreements +=-—A= AEBER —F = —
were renewed by entering into the 2023 Framework FERBACEB nT b X R
Agreement IV and 2023 Framework Agreement V as T =ZFERBEOR T =
detailed above. Further details of each of the 2021 FEEWEAT L/{ Bl THh _=Z
Framework Agreements are disclosed below: T FERBEONE - THFBERE
LU N
Under the 2021 Framework Agreement |, Ningbo BRE_Z-_-—FERHGZE— E
AUX shall provide (i) cleaning, security and R 5 H 2, i‘vt ER B Hﬁ B X
customer services at the sales offices and R/SZETHMBRAANIXE
showrooms and (ii) maintenance, cleaning and HRIEE E’J RAHEETXEEBEN
security services in respect of unsold industrial park RHOEENETEREREMNER
units of the industrial park development projects of = 17? REFPRB R(EE FR
Ningbo AUX Real Estate and/or its subsidiaries RZRBRE HREB T —F
from time to time for a term commencing on 1 +TA—ARBRE_ZT =% + -
October 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. A=+—RHLE -BE-ZFT=-—
The above transactions shall be subject to the - RZBZ=F ‘T’ -
annual cap of RMB0.8 million (from 1 October 2021 A=Z+—HLEFE L XFH
onwards), RMB4.1 million and RMB5.7 million for FEERSANAARKISE &
the years ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023. T(BEZZEZ—F+H—-RBR#&)-
ARBINBEBETRARKSTAE
BT
Under the 2021 Framework Agreement I, Ningbo BE _Z-_—FEXHBE=- =
AUX shall provide (i) management and maintenance FRTDH AR FRERTFTER
services in respect of the properties and facilities E/ZEWBRAIEEHNITEER
and (ii) maintenance, cleaning and security services MALHEIEXEREMIRBNE
in respect of unlet industrial park units of an MYmELZBEDEIEREER
industrial park owned by Ningbo AUX Electric and/ BRNEEZE - BFREAREZRRG
or its subsidiaries for a term commencing on 1 HRE_ZT_—F+H -8B
October 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. E-E-_=Ff+=ZA=+—H
The above transactions shall be subject to the - BE2E_FT_—F - _F_ =
annual cap of RMB2.1 million (from 1 October 2021 FR_ZB_=ZF+ZRA=+—
onwards), RMB2.3 million and RMB2.3 million for BEFE EFRRXSHFELR
the years ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023. SRl /RARK21BET(BEZF
T +TA—-B®B)-AR®K23
BETRARB238&8 T
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Continuing Connected Transactions (as disclosed in
the Company'’s circular dated 28 December 2020)

On 1 December 2020, Ningbo AUX entered into property
management services framework agreements
(collectively, the “2020 Framework Agreements”) with
each of (i) Ningbo AUX Healthcare Group Company
Limited (“Ningbo AUX Healthcare”) (the “2020
Framework Agreement |I”); (ii) AUX Group Company
Limited (“AUX Group”) (the “2020 Framework Agreement
[1"); (iii) Ningbo Sanxing Medical Electric Co., Ltd.
("Ningbo Sanxing”) (the “2020 Framework Agreement
I11"); (iv) Ningbo AUX Real Estate Co., Ltd. ("Ningbo AUX
Real Estate”) (the 2020 Framework Agreement IV"); and
(v) Ningbo AUX Electric Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo AUX Electric”)
(the "2020 Framework Agreement V") (parties to each
agreement entering into such agreement for itself and as
trustee for the benefit of its subsidiaries from time to
time) for the provision by Ningbo AUX of maintenance,
cleaning and/or security services for offices, industrial
park facilities, car park units, residential properties and/
or commercial properties.

As at the date of the above agreements, (i) AUX Group
was in aggregate directly held as to 100% by two
companies, each of which was held as to 85.00% by Mr.
JJ Zheng, a controlling shareholder of the Company
indirectly holding approximately 58.66% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company (and
approximately 68.55% as at the date of this report); (ii)
Ningbo Sanxing was in aggregate directly held as to
approximately 52.75% by Mr. JJ Zheng and the parties
acting in concert with him (including Mr. Zheng Jiang
and AUX Group); (iii) Ningbo AUX Electric was in
aggregate held as to approximately 87.84% by Mr. JJ
Zheng, including direct interests of 25.00% and indirect
interests of approximately 62.84% held through various
entities; (iv) Ningbo AUX Healthcare was a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of Ningbo Sanxing; and (v) Ningbo
AUX Real Estate was indirectly held as to 85.00% by Mr.
JJ Zheng. Accordingly, each of AUX Group, Ningbo
Sanxing, Ningbo AUX Electric, Ningbo AUX Healthcare
and Ningbo AUX Real Estate was an associate (being a
30%-controlled company) of Mr. JJ Zheng as a
controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a
connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transactions contemplated under the 2020 Framework
Agreements constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Each of the 2020 Framework Agreements was
effective for a term of 3 years commencing on 1
January 2021 and had expired on 31 December
2023. The 2020 Framework Agreements were
renewed by entering into the 2023 Framework
Agreements detailed above. Further details of each
of the 2020 Framework Agreements are disclosed
below:

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement |, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property housekeeping,
transportation and other ancillary services to
Ningbo AUX Healthcare and/or its subsidiaries
from time to time for a term commencing on 1
January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023.
The above transactions shall be subject to the
annual cap of RMB26.8 million, RMB36.4 million
and RMB44.4 million for the years ended 31
December 2021, 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement I, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including maintenance, cleaning and security
services in connection with the offices, commercial
properties and car park units occupied by AUX
Group and/or its subsidiaries. In addition, Ningbo
AUX shall provide pre-sale management services,
sales offices management services and unsold
industrial park units property management services
in respect of industrial park facilities owned by AUX
Group and/or its subsidiaries from time to time for
a term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending
on 31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMB5.4 million,
RMB11.0 million and RMB13.1 million for the years
ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
respectively.
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Under the 2020 Framework Agreement Ill, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including maintenance, cleaning and security
services in connection with the offices and car park
units occupied by Ningbo Sanxing and/or its
subsidiaries from time to time for a term
commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending on 31
December 2023. The above transactions shall be
subject to the annual cap of RMBO0.5 million,
RMBO.5 million and RMBO0.5 million for the years
ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
respectively.

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement IV, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including management, maintenance, cleaning and
security services in connection with the
development projects of residential properties and
shopping complexes launched by Ningbo AUX Real
Estate and/or its subsidiaries from time to time for
a term commencing on 1 January 2021 and ending
on 31 December 2023. The above transactions shall
be subject to the annual cap of RMB37.2 million,
RMB50.1 million and RMB54.8 million for the years
ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023,
respectively.

Under the 2020 Framework Agreement V, Ningbo
AUX shall provide property management services
including mainly cleaning services in connection
with the industrial park facilities occupied by
Ningbo AUX Electric and/or its subsidiaries from
time to time for a term commencing on 1 January
2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The above
transactions shall be subject to the annual cap of
RMB3.8 million, RMB7.4 million and RMB7.8 million
for the years ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and
2023, respectively.
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The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms
or better and according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter to the Board
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group and
confirming the matters set out in rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules.

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken
by the Group in its normal course of business are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. Save for the
transactions disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, none of the related party
transactions disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements constituted a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction that was not fully exempt
from all disclosure, shareholders’ approval and annual review
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to
those continuing connected transactions conducted by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2024 which were not
exempt from the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

AUDITORS

KPMG will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the

Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the board

Mr. Zheng Jiang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BAZHEERSE

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
AUX International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AUX
International Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 133 to 235, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2024, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and notes, comprising material
accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2024 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Cayman lIslands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3 A% BAD IR

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. This
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

F%fk%.ﬁr%lﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁEI’JE%%IJEE E
REAHEAVBBRRNEAZAEEN
%IHFJE%EIEEE?MF?% ARERERAY
BHREAMMAZAKETEREN -RMT
EHELEHREHEFNER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on this matter.

Expected credit loss allowances for trade receivables

EZRUREAHENGFERRRER

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(i)(i) and notes 17 and 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements

B 2B & E R M A 20)0) R A

The Key Audit Matter
HMREESER

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had trade
receivables with a total gross carrying amount of
HK$71.1 million, against which allowances for
expected credit losses ("ECLs") of HK$11.4 million
were recognised.

WRZE_NEF=ZA=Z=+—-—H FXEEHEESH
R BREEEANIBEE T HBBEHER
BHEEEBR(EREEBEEDEGI4BEET -

The Group's trade receivables arose from contracts
with customers, who are mainly property occupants
and property owners.
AEBHEBSNESREUARBERERETRP(EER
MEERBAREI)ZTNEL -
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BB RENE17K25a)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN EAONEEREZSE

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowances
for trade receivables included the following:
BAFEESRUAERHNEEBREANSE
ARFEBETIRE:

o obtaining an understanding of and evaluating
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating
to the assessment of ECL allowances;

s TRIFHREAEEHABREFGHEEN

MEARABEENRT BERMETHEMRME:
o evaluating the Group's policy and method for

estimating the ECL allowances with reference
to the applicable accounting standard;

e 2 EZTEAMNSERNFE EEEFMHE
HEEBEBREBOBEMT X



Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% BAD IR

Expected credit loss allowances for trade receivables (Continued)

EZRURARRBEFEERBRAEE)

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(i)(i) and notes 17 and 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements

FRE ST HENE200) R FE BB IHEX N 17K 25)

The Key Audit Matter
RENER

Management measures the ECL allowances at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs of the trade
receivables based on the loss patterns for different
groups of customers, ageing of trade receivables
and historical loss rates.

EEERBIAREFPENEEERX BEHERK
FRERRIMABETEFEREEX LESEKRFKIESH
EHEEBENSECRAERHEEFIRER -

We identified ECL allowances for trade receivables
as a key audit matter because of the significance of
the balances of trade receivables to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and
that the assessment of ECL allowances is inherently
subjective and requires the exercise of significant
management judgement.
BEMEESRURBERCEEBEREBERTE A
BMBESFE DHRESERRESREYE
BERaWBRENEZH BEBEHEEBEE
EOFEAELEEFBEMPRERNER
#) B o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB ONAEEZSE

° obtaining an understanding of the key data
and assumptions in the ECL model adopted by
management, including the segmentation of
trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and historical loss rates;

. THREERRKANEHGCEEERBEL B H
FRIBNRR BERBEAREERR
FBLRBEEREXSENE 5 EKKIE:

° assessing the appropriateness of the estimate
of ECL allowances by examining the
information used by management to derive
such estimate, including testing the accuracy
of the historical loss rates;

. PREHNEEERANHERAGEBER
BREAHNER(EREAIABEBEEXENE
BMNFIEEREEERBRGERESS A

o assessing the appropriateness of management's
basis of customers segmentation with reference
to the historical loss rates for customers in
different groups;

e S2EIAENEFMBEBAX
BERUMDBEREPHNEERETAE:

1 E
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Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3 A% BAD IR

Expected credit loss allowances for trade receivables (including amounts due from related parties)

EZRUREAHEBFEFRRA(ERERKEBE 5 XE)

Refer to accounting policy notes 2(i)(i) and notes 17 and 25(a) to the consolidated financial statements

FRE ST HENE200)R4FE BB IRE N E17 K 25a)

The Key Audit Matter
HREFSFER
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB ONAEEZSE

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in
the trade receivables ageing report were
categorised in the appropriate customer group
as well as the appropriate ageing bracket by
tracing individual items against sales invoices
and other underlying documentation; and

FA LRI S R A8 B X B HEE
FIER HMEFEESIRERERKRS
NEBERABSPHEEENEFEANKREE
IR S84 &

re-performing the calculation of the ECL
allowances as at 31 March 2024 based on the
Group's accounting policy and method.

BiE EEENGFTHRENAE EFFE
HE-_Z-_HNF=ZA=1+—HBHWMEHEE
BREREE -



Independent Auditor’s Report
Y8 3% BLAT 3R

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 3% BLAT 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

S 2 R = N N e

130

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hi B RS 2 R A PR 24 B

LREMRESGET B RRAE
M & E
RMWER RUHGANBRREBRS

Tfﬁmﬁmﬁ&%kﬁ%ﬁMEﬁ%E
REBRFEERZT THABERME
MZBE RS  AREER ﬁﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ
EH BRI A AR ETARAEELMLA
ZoBPH AR ARENRNT HEMA
fATBEXNEEELREMF-

EEREESKFNREZ BETRERER
(BB EHEADETHNES EX—E
RERRAFTERAREER - FRRAA
MEBMFFREREIE MRAERHA T M
ERENELABERAETESAMBRRE
%%W%%Wﬁ%%ﬁﬁm%ﬂﬁm,ﬂ
ERMERRE AT ERIEEK-

ERBKEABEFEMETEFNBRES
BPERTEXEHE YERERAERE
PREFETEREREE R

R & B
A W ﬁk BRFEERERRED

R R RATEFRFAREE
e B AR ERE R MEE N EG
B E Wﬁﬁﬁ RO ER R E
F A] BE ﬁ&%ﬁ mE - BERER

ERRA - HEBERABEHZ £

l%*Aﬁﬁlﬂﬁﬁ HHEKX

fkﬁLmﬂﬁE SN2 %ﬁl%
ﬁméﬁﬁﬁﬁ L # B B

THREEFHBORMES  LKRE
BEMNESFIEF BEMNLIEYH &
NHBESHOHERMEERER -

- FEEFFRAGHBREOKEM
R fF it & B 5t AR B R B B & A <



Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% BAD IR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Y8 3 4% B A 3R 5

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Tak Kei.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_ZT-_MF=A=+—-HLEFEUETLRTR)

2024 2023
— M E B -=F
(restated)
(& 7))
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T &t FAE T
Continuing operations FERKEXRY
Revenue A 4 363,849 376,119
Other revenue H A4 A 5 14,356 13,085
Other net (loss)/gain Hi(E8), WEFE 6 (109) 12,622
Cost of inventories sold BEEHFEKAK (63,047) (54,329)
Property cleaning expenses MEBZRX (68,146) (73,061)
Staff costs 8 T KA 7(b) (130,440) (125,862)
Depreciation and amortisation - 7(d) (9,117) (9,449)
Property rentals and related MEEL MBBRX
expenses (978) (621)
Utilities expenses KE B (8,879) (10,873)
Repair and maintenance expenses  # (& & X (17,832) (17,574)
Other operating expenses Hf &g 7(c) (34,229) (36,856)
Profit from operations REEERAR 45,428 73,201
Finance costs B & K A 7(a) (1,083) (1,426)
Profit before taxation kx Bt BT & 7 44,345 71,775
Income tax FT 15 8(a) (15,163) (18,0006)
Profit for the year from FAFESEXK A
continuing operations 29,182 53,769
Discontinued operation BERILEREER
Loss for the year from FRAERLRBEEKEER
discontinued operation 28(a) (12,461) (29,633)
Profit for the year F o Fl 16,721 24,136
Attributable to: LT A+ EA:
Equity shareholders of the Company 7~ A 7] 4 & % 3 16,721 21,511
Non-controlling interests JE ¥ Y #E = - 2,625
Profit for the year FRER 16,721 24,136
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mABHER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-Z-_WNE=RA=+—-—RALFEMUBTER

2024 2023
—EomNE —T-=4F
(restated)
(=)
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 51 TER FET
Attributable to shareholders of 74x 2 T R R E 14 :
the Company arising from:
Continuing operations KEFBEREER 29,182 51,144
Discontinued operation REERIEREER (12,461) (29,633)
16,721 21,511
Attributable to non-controlling Ik 1= B RE 2 P Ah
interests arising from:
Continuing operations REAFBERCEEB - 2,625
Discontinued operation REBBEKRIELEZ XK - -
- 2,625
Profit/(loss) per share - Basicand @R Fl,(F#E)-E4X R
diluted #E 1
Continuing operations REAFEBELEEER 5.9 centsiE il 10.4 cents/& Il
Discontinued operation KREBERIEREEE (2.5) cents & fll  (6.0) cents & 1l

3.4 centsE Al 4.4 cents B 1l

The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial F142Z235 BB ZSETBHRED
statements. —#o e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HGelRENHEMEZERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_Z-_WNE=ZRA=+—-—RALFEMUBTER

2024 2023
—E-_NMFE Z—ZF-=F
(restated)
(& 5)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T T
Profit for the year FRERAN 16,721 24,136
Other comprehensive income FRHEME2ZE K
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HiEApgkEH D EEEm o BEA -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of the B E HE RN E A 7 2 1 7%
financial statements of subsidiaries BERZEHREBRIXIBBZE)
outside Hong Kong (with nil tax effect) (18,715) (21,763)
Reclassification of exchange reserve upon R B ARl E B K EH EE X
liquidation of subsidiaries it 1 - 39
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEZE K
fortheyear 8715 (21,724).
Total comprehensive income FR2EKEERE
for the year (1,994) 2,412
Attributable to: MTALTEMN:
Equity shareholders of the Company RAARAEERE (1,994) (213)
Non-controlling interests Ey g - 2,625
Total comprehensive income FRE2EWEELE
for the year (1,994) 2,412
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

e kHEtEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HE-ZZT-_NF=A=+—BHLEFEMUETET

2024 2023
—2E_NMFE —FT-=F
(restated)
(& 5)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T T
Total comprehensive income ARABRRECFRAGZERZAE
for the year attributable to @31 N
shareholders of the Company
arising from:
Continuing operations KEAFBREER 10,467 29,420
Discontinued operation KEERIEEEER (12,461) (29,633)
(1,994) (213)
Total comprehensive income FERERELFAEELZE
for the year attributable to non- W #=
controlling interests arising from:
Continuing operations KERBEREED - 2,625
Discontinued operation REERIEEZEEL - -
- 2,625

The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial

statements.

—#5 -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEE KRR

At 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZB-_ME=A=+—-—HUETRT)

2024 2023
—E_MmF —_EF_-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FE T FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment V- -BEK&HE 12 3,384 3,681
Intangible assets BILEE 13 21,616 30,335
Goodwill EES 14 52,534 55,669
Non-current time deposit FERHEHER 18(a) - 59,684
Non-current rental deposits FERNEHEERS 17 65 3,656
Deferred tax assets EERIEE E 23(b)(ii) 2,645 4,455
. 80,244 = 157,480
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 16 2,111 1,214
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H#ME K KRIE 17 81,859 87,644
Restricted bank deposits PR # IR 17 17 3 18(a) 8,492 4,967
Time deposits with original maturity R Z| 88 B #8 #8 = & A & & £
over three months FR 18(a) 57,759 -
Cash at bank and in hand RITFEFRERFERS 18(a) 298,651 286,435
.. A4s,872 380,260
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables 25k EMENKIE 19 97,704 115,703
Contract liabilities arna’ 20 63,873 74,035
Lease liabilities HEAR 21 5,913 13,535
Amount due to the P& S % IR SR FR A
controlling shareholder 22 5,694 4,650
Loans from the KEZEEBREER
controlling shareholder 22 - 22,060
Current tax payable BN HA & 1+ % 18 23(a) 5,236 4,591
Net currentassets ~~~~~ #"®®E®@E = 270452 145,686
Total assets less current liabilities EE B2 ER A B & & 350,696 303,166

Annual Report 2024 £ %} 137



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EEBRRE

At 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZB-_WMEFE=ZA=+—HUABLTERR)

2024 2023
—F-@OmFE —T-=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E TR T FiE T
Non-current liabilities EFBERE
Loans from the KEIEREKREER
controlling shareholder 22 104,840 52,360
Lease liabilities HEABE 21 114 2,681
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B E 23(b)(ii) 15,780 16,169
120,734 /1,210
NET ASSETS EEFHE 229,962 231,956
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARKFE
Share capital % 7 24(b) 4,930 4,930
Reserves =R 225,032 227,026
TOTAL EQUITY A 229,962 231,956

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R -ZZ _MWNFE XA -+ /\HEES2 i £

on 28 June 2024. o % T B -
Chan Hon Ki Shen Guoying
Director Director
£ 3

The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial F142Z235 BB ZSETBHRED
statements. —#o e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GeRSEHR

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_Z-_WNE=ZRA=+—-—RALFEMUBTER

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARAERRRES
Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total  interests Total equity
Bx  RBEE EXBE iRRE ENRE BHER A FERER REER
(note (note (note (note

24e) 2y 2eli) - 24

(Wi (Wi (i (i

200) 2 ) i)
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
TER TEL TER TEL TER TER TER TER TER

Balance at 1 April 2022 RZB-ZEmA-BZ2
e

4930 249,542 2,500 18,528 9920 (53,251) 232,169 1721 243,890
Changes in equity for the year HZ-%-=
ended 31 March 2023: ZR=t-ALEEZ
R#2E:
Profit for the year EREfl - - - - - 21511 2151 2,625 24136
Other comprehensive income ¥R E#2E 4 E
for the year B - - - (21,724) - (21,724 - (21,724
Total comprehensive income  ¥A2ENHEE
for the year - - - - 21.724) 2151 213) 2,625 2412
Derecognition of non-controlling i B 22 A 5 # 4 & |t B 37
interests upon liquidation MEERER
of subsidiaries B - - - - - - - (14,346) (14,346)
Tanseredtostattonyesere.  ARERE - S S S A S L I - S -
Balance at 31 March 2023 RZFZZE
ZR=t-BzER 4930 249,542 2,500 24,45 (11,804) (37,668) 231,956 - 231,956
Balance at 1 April 2023 RZBZZEMA-AZ
33 4,930 249,542 2,500 24,456 (11,804) (37,668) 231,956 - 231,956
Changes in equity for the year HZ-Z-MF
ended 31 March 2024: ZREt-ALEEZ
BE#2E:
Proftfor the year EREH - - - - TS TR %7 TS I
Other comprehensive income ¥R E#2E N &
for the year - - - - (18,715) - (18,715) - (18,715)
Total comprehensive income ~ ER2ANEHE
for the year - - - - (18,715) 16,721 (1,994) - (1,994)
Tansered tostattoryeserie  MAREHE - - - SN N Ui I - S N
Balance at 31 March 2024 RZB-ME
ZR=Zt-BzE&H 4,930 249,542 2,500 26,381 (30,519) (22,822) 229,962 - 229,962

The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial F142Z235 BT BRZETBHRED
statements. —#H e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FARRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_Z-_WNE=ZRA=+—-—RALFEUBTER)

2024 2023
—E_MWF T =
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 FET FE T
Operating activities REZTH
Profit before taxation from RELEER
continuing operations B % A& A 44,345 71,775
Loss before taxation from BRI EER
discontinued operation B % Al & A (12,461) (29,633)
31,884 42,142
Adjustments for: BNO R IEAEL AR
Bank interest income RATH B A 5 (8,832) (9,116)
Finance costs L= N 7(a) 1,445 1,741
Depreciation I E 7(d) 2,031 5,561
Amortisation B 3 7(d 7,088 7,433
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME BERRE
property, plant and equipment &8 w) 6 79 (4,605)
(Reversal of)/impairment losses on & 5 & W 5% 18 OFl & &5 18
trade receivables B@), I EEE 7(c) (189) 8,326
Impairment losses on property, mME- -HELEZERE
plant and equipment &5 18 - 13,057
COVID-19-related rent 15 COVID-19 18 FE 1 &
concessions received 2R 5 - (376)
Net foreign exchange gain I G (26) (6,825)
Changes in working capital: EEEERY:
Increase in inventories T &% (898) (646)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B NEMmERZERD
other receivables (12 1) 4,826 (13,525)
Increase in restricted bank deposits 5 [R l R 17 17 7k 38 1 (3,846) (706)
Decrease in trade and B 5 &AM E R FRIE R AL
other payables (12,423) (5,810)
(Decrease)/increase in AHBBECH D)1
contract liabilities (6,074) 5,696
Cash generated from operations KEELH & 15,065 42,347
The People’s Republic of China ExXftzHREARKLM
(“the PRC") income tax paid ([ B )P i3 (12,146) (21,24¢6)
The PRC withholding tax refunded 2 & [B] 2 & B 78 1 & = 3,419
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EXftZEBNER = (142)
Net cash generated from RETBHELEREFE
operating activities 2,919 24,378
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_ZT-_MF=A=+—-HLEFEUETLRTR)

2024 2023
—_E_MME I
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 FET FE T
Investing activities REZETD
Payment for the purchase of BEVME BERKEBMNK
property, plant and equipment (668) (1,426)
Proceeds from disposal of property, & W% - B E L& &
plant and equipment Ffr 15 %18 - 4,607
Decrease/(increase) in non-current  3F BN 83 & 8 7% R 4 (38 hn)
time deposits 56,940 (2,030)
Increase in time deposits with original R 2| i B & =@l A A L &9 5F
maturity over three months ERER /Sl (58,391) -
Interest received 2 A B 8,832 2,116
Net cash generated from RETHELEREFTH
__investing activities S 10,267
Financing activities &R B
Proceeds from/(repayment of) loans &R & K 2 AT 5 5k B/
from the controlling shareholder (& ) 18(b) 30,420 (29,000)
Interest on loans from the controlling B & {J 1 I& i 3 & 3 5 B
shareholder paid 18(b) - (2,850)
Capital return to REFTETIHERES
non-controlling interests - (14,346)
Capital element of lease rentalspaid EfN HHEH &M A £ 5 18(b) (11,506) (12,911)
Interest element of lease rentals paid B M Ef € 0 7 B 3 18(b) (401) (354)
Net cash generated from/(used in) B EFBHE L (FTAR &
_fimancing activitles e S (59,461)
Net increase/(decrease)incash BRERBRSEEYWE M
and cash equivalents (R2) 58 28,145 (24,816)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe TR ERBE S EEY
beginning of the year 286,435 330,233
Effect of foreign exchange IEEXRBFHz2ZE
rate changes (15,929) (18,982)
Cash and cash equivalents atthe ERXRBRERBESEEY
end of the year 18(a) 298,651 286,435

The notes on pages 142 to 235 form part of these financial F142Z 23BN TR KZETBHRED
statements. —#H e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4R A B FE ¥R 3R B 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

GENERAL INFORMATION

AUX International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 14 January 2013

as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (2013 Revision) (as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company and its

subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the

“Group") is principally engaged in operation of clubbing

business and restaurant and bar outlets, and provision of

property management services and related value-added

services.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Material accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated
financial statements.

142
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

(Expressed in

(AE TR T)

(b)

Hong Kong dollars)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies
(i) New and amended HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued the following
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the

Group:

° HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts

° Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting
policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors: Definition of

accounting estimates

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2, Making materiality
judgements: Disclosure of accounting

policies

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities arising from a single

transaction

° Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:
International tax reform — Pillar Two

model rules

None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group's results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for

the current accounting period.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B S R aR Y 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism

In June 2022 the Hong Kong SAR Government
(the "Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong
Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement)
(Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come
into effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition
Date”). Once the Amendment Ordinance
takes effect, an employer can no longer use
any of the accrued benefits derived from its
mandatory contributions to mandatory
provident fund ("MPF") scheme to reduce the
long service payment (“LSP") in respect of an
employee’s service from the Transition Date
(the abolition of the "offsetting mechanism”).
In addition, the LSP in respect of the service
before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before the Transition Date and
the years of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published
“Accounting implications of the abolition of
the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong” that provides accounting guidance
relating to the offsetting mechanism and the
abolition of the mechanism. In particular, the
guidance indicates that entities may account
for the accrued benefits derived from
mandatory MPF contributions that are
expected to be used to reduce the LSP
payable to an employee as deemed
contributions by that employee towards the
LSP.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(i) New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism (Continued)

However, applying this approach, upon the
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in
June 2022, it is no longer permissible to apply
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of
HKAS 19 that previously allowed such
deemed contributions to be recognised as
reduction of service cost (negative service
cost) in the period the contributions were
made; instead these deemed contributions
should be attributed to periods of service in
the same manner as the gross LSP benefit.

To better reflect the substance of the
abolition of the offsetting mechanism, the
Group has changed its accounting policy in
connection with its LSP liability and has
applied the above HKICPA guidance. The
change in accounting policy did not have any
material impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1 April 2023, and the cash flows and
loss per share amounts for the year ended 31
March 2024. It also did not have a material
impact on the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2024.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

(Expressed in

(AE TR T)

(d)

Hong Kong dollars)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the
date on which control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or

loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate

or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
any impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)), unless the

investment is classified as held for sale.

(e) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held

equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the

acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain

on a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit (“CGU"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(i)(ii)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of underlying
property, plant and equipment (see note 2(h)), are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Over the shorter of their
economic useful life or

— Properties leased for
own use
terms of the leases

— Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

2 to 10 years

— Leasehold
improvements

Over the unexpired
term of leases

— Motor vehicles 3 to 5years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRT)

(f)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)). Expenditure on
internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Customer relationships
(clubbing business)

4 years

— Property management
contracts and related

10 years

customer
relationships
— Trademark 10 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

2

ERETHEE

(h)

R (#&)

HEEE

EEHNRBE AEBEFEZE
AREBEBREEXBSHE M
BREDEHRABEBHERK
EMESEHEBENEEZ®E
AE AZeNBRrEExRBSE
HE -WMEFRAERERE &R
BEEZERBITEGSEBRDMN
Z%&/}lﬂtljm ! /\J I%”E@E%&E%ﬁ °

(F-¥ - PN
FHERBAB AEEBERER
EERBEHEAG HEHAB A
FTZEAXUT 2 EHHEHER
BEEEE2HERWN - &AL
EpnEEBEEEITVYHER K
EEerFTHEFARETEANE
AEHEE - RERN L ZHENK
EHEHSREUAE RGN EE
MRAEZ M-

EHEEA LR HEAE
&ﬂ% WEHZ?EHT
RE®ER WEERRS 27 :
B ME RN RBENEE J
RAEHEBMNBEEENX KX
BR®% HER G EKAKNG
B NEXXHBRERMEIAGFE -
THEHILXMESH W A &
HENKX XTTEREEERE
ZHEF O BERELAZEFH
BMAEBEZTME-

&
7N

@N

DII

Annual Report 2024 %}

151



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B 75 3R 3R Bt &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

g A

b7 =

(ABTTER)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2(f) and 2(i)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract ("lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification. The only
exceptions are rent concessions that occured as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and
met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has
taken advantage of the practical expedient not to
assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses ("ECLs"”) on the
financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank equivalents and
trade and other receivables).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables and contract assets:
effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation
thereof; and

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that

are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are

expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model

applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRT)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring
on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a
default event occurs when (i) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days or
360 days past due depending on whether the
financial asset is related to clubbing and
restaurant and bar outlets operations or
property management services. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or

interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant

deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(Continued)

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor's ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either
an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with note 2(s)(b)(i) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market
for a security because of financial
difficulties of the issuer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B S R aR Y 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(ii)

(Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and
- investments in subsidiaries in the

Company’'s statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B WK

(Expressed in

(AETRT)

(i)

Hong Kong dollars)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is

any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently

(i.,e. a CGU).

- Recognition of impairment losses
An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the CGU to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of CGUs are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use

(if determinable).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B S R aR Y 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

(iii)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of
the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(i)(i) and 2(i)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRT)

()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is
recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue (see note
2(s)). A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised
(see note 2(1)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

(Expressed in

(AE TR T)

m

(m)

(n)

(o)

Hong Kong dollars)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A
right to receive consideration is unconditional if
only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method and including an
allowance for credit losses (see note 2(i)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2(u)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(i)(i).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the
effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits are provided by the
Group under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme as defined contribution retirement
plan in respect of the operations in Hong
Kong. The employer’s monthly contributions
to the scheme are at a maximum of 5% of
each employee’s monthly salary, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000.

Contribution relating to the staff in the PRC
are made to the PRC local retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC.

The cost of all these schemes is charged to
profit or loss of the Group for the years
concerned and the assets of all these
schemes are held separately from those of
the Group.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

(Expressed in

(AE TR T)

(q)

Hong Kong dollars)

Income tax (Continued)
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRT)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

(Expressed in

(AE TR T)

(q)

(r)

Hong Kong dollars)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRT)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods or the provision of
services in the ordinary course of the Group's
business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a gross
basis. In determining whether the Group acts as a
principal or as an agent, it considers whether it
obtains control of the products before they are
transferred to the customers. Control refers to the
Group's ability to direct the use of and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue is recognised when control over a
product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties such as
value added tax or other sales taxes. Revenue
is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would
be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that
contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. The Group takes
advantage of the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

(i) Sale of food and beverages, tobacco
products, living consumption and
festive products
Revenue from sale of food and
beverages, tobacco products, living
consumption and festive products is
recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products.

Prepayments from customers in respect
of the membership schemes operated
by the Group which are considered to
be unearned at the reporting date are
shown as contract liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s)
(a)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from club operations
Revenue from club operations (including
entrance fees, cloakroom fees and event
rental income) is recognised when the
services have been provided to the
customers.

Sponsorship income
Sponsorship income is recognised
when:

- the promotion events have been

held; or

- the services have been rendered,
and it is probable that sponsorship
income will be granted.

Property management services
income

Revenue from the provision of property
management services is recognised
over the period of services provided to
the property occupants/owners.

2 EBEAXEFEXE

(s)
(a)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(b) Revenue from other income

(i)

(ii)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues under the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(i)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRT)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The
transaction date is the date on which the Company
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired are
translated into HKD at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

172

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hi B RS 2 R A PR 24 B

2

ERETHEE

(t)

R (#8)

Sl
FRINERZGEXSHSAMEX
BRE-DUINBFENEBEER
BEAEREHANERKBLE -
SNEELHREEBEEREBZR
R o

NN ELK AT ENEE
BEERBE EAXRSAEHE
EBRE-XRSHGBAR/RAREHRE
REBFEBEEEXRAEGEN
B e

BOEBONXRENRER S H
MEXHENEXRBRE[ET
(BT - FHBRRAKRHNIER(E
RUBONIBEBESIEM
EENBE)RBEHRROUED

INEEXRBRERBTL MELED
ER%%EEE{miﬁH&mﬁEJ&

I 18 B £ SN EE B s # o
/\n-l_

HEBIINEBRR HZBINER
HEANEFELEZEEgRN L &
EExRRANEETETNREES

B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR R

(Expressed in

(AE TR T)

(u)

(v)

Hong Kong dollars)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at
the date on which an operation meets the criteria
to be classified as held-for-sale, when a group of
assets ceases to be used or when an entity has
disposed of an operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in

Hong Kong dollars)

(ABETERTR)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
(v) Discontinued operations (Continued)

(w)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued
operation, the comparative statement of profit or
loss and OCl is re-presented as if the operation
had been discontinued from the start of the
comparative year.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS R R MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 E XS5 BEE
(CONTINUED)
(w) Related parties (Continued) (w) EBEEFS ()
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) & T 5[ & Z
following conditions applies: (Continued) ERANBERELAEEFH
Bt ()

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the (il MEEBHAER—F
same third party. Z=HWMEERA -

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third ivy —HEBRE=FE
entity and the other entity is an Boweagna ms
associate of the third entity. —BERRZBE=FE

oL QA -

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit vy ZEBAKXEENHE
plan for the benefit of employees of AEBEBEHEBNOER
either the Group or an entity related to RIEB RN M®RZD
the Group. BEM 2 m A&

(vij The entity is controlled or jointly (vii ZEBXQ@FEAT
controlled by a person identified in (a). ¥ il Sk FE R £ e

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has (vii) (@ ()VFTIE A T ¥ & 82

significant influence over the entity or is BBERETEHSE X
a member of the key management ER(LZEENER
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of ANFEERREBAE -

the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of (viii) [ A &£ BE 8 K &£
which it is a part, provides key RAIREEFEZERA
management personnel services to the ERBzEBIHERN
Group or to the Group's parent. BEE 2 EMKER

7l o
Close members of the family of a person are those ERMATHERFEKRKERTE
family members who may be expected to influence, HEEEREETEZALTH
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings XZATTZEBOREKS -

with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated
financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND
ESTIMATES

Judgements and estimates are continually evaluated and
based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of trade and other receivables

In measuring ECLs for trade and other receivables, the
Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of clubbing business and restaurant and
bar outlets, and provision of property management
services and related value-added services.

Revenue represents the amount received or
receivable from the sale of food and beverages,
tobacco products, living consumption and festive
products, revenue from other club operations
(including entrance fees, cloakroom fees and event
rental income), sponsorship income and income
arising from provision of property management
services and related value-added services.

Further details regarding the Group's principal
activities are disclosed in note 4(b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 W&H# Ko BWE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (4&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) HDHFEWKE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts BRESEREPMWEMNE
with customers by service lines and BEomRBEEFPEHZEK
geographical location of customers is as mOFWMT
follows:
2024 2023
—E-_@F —E=Z=
$'000 $'000
TET FAET
(restated)
(g &:7))
Revenue from contracts with & & Bf % 3} & % Al
customers within the scope FISHEERNNRE
of HKFRS 15 EFERNZBA
Continuing operations HEREXK
Revenue from property MEEBEEH K=
management contracts’ — B R
— Mainland China 298,300 319,714
Revenue from property By EERMEREIEE
management related value- PR 7 B9 U 2 —
added services* — Mainland A 3,
China 65,549 56,405
363,849 376,119
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Revenue from club and restaurant & T & £ B2 4% & I 25
operations* — Hong Kong —&B# 14,968 20,973
* The revenue is recognised at a point in time. * U g P B B R B RE AR
# The revenue is recognised over time. # KW —BEBAER-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
The Group's customer base is diversified and
no individual customer had transactions which
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue during
the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: one).
During the year ended 31 March 2023,
revenue from property management contracts
derived from a customer, including revenue
from entities which are known to the Group
to be under common control with this
customer, amounted to approximately HK$43
million.

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

For property management services, the
Group recognises revenue as the services are
provided that correspond directly with the
value of performance completed. The Group
has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS
15 to its revenue from property management
contracts for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations under the Group's
existing contracts as these contracts do not
have a fixed term.

Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a mixture of both business

line and geography. In a manner consistent with

the way in which information is reported internally
to the most senior executive management of the

Group for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified

three reportable segments. No operating segments

have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETRT)

(b)

Property management
— Mainland China

Property management
related value-added
services —

Mainland China

Segment reporting (Continued)
Segment

Business

Continuing operations

Provision of property
management services

Sales of living
consumption and
festive products and
provision of household
cleaning services and
repair services in
the community

Discontinued operation

Lifestyle entertainment  Sales of food and
— Hong Kong

beverages and tobacco
products from
operation of clubbing
business and restaurant
and bar outlets

The lifestyle entertainment business in Hong
Kong was ceased to operate and classified as
discontinued operation and the related
information has been set out in note 28.

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group's senior
executive management monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible,
intangible assets and current assets with the
exception of deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
trade and other payables and lease liabilities
attributable to the sales activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed
directly by the segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B S R aR Y 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AE TR T)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b)
(i)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment
(loss)/profit is "adjusted EBITDA" i.e.
"adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment
income and “depreciation and amortisation”
are regarded as including impairment losses
on non-current assets. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for other revenue, other net (loss)/
gain and items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is
provided with segment information
concerning revenue, interest income from
bank deposits and interest expenses from
borrowings managed directly by the
segments, depreciation, amortisation and
impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments
in their operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 W& Kk 7 % & & (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) o EHE(HE)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (i) ZHBXxE BEREE(E)

(Continued)
Information regarding the Group's reportable RBE-_ZTE_NFR=-F
segments as provided to the most senior —=®=ZA=Z+—RH1Lt#HF
executive management of the Group for the EZEBERSE KD BBERR
purposes of resource allocation and HFERMAEEESTHE
assessment of segment performance for the EERHEBEARNEEA R
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 is set EDHZERIER T X -
out below.

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
FREERR BALEEEE
Property
Property management related Lifestyle
management value-added services entertainment
- Mainland China - Mainland China Subtotal - Hong Kong Total
BRREE
UELE REZRERE LERE
-HENY -HEAY Pt -&# it

2024 03 2024 203 2024 03 2024 03 2024 03
CE-ME -$-cf ZB-CME -E-cE CZBoWE -F--E CECME -F-cE ZEomE -E-ocE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn T#n TEn TEn Thn TEn Tin TEn Tén

Revenue from external customers % FEFFHEHAR
and reportable segment revenue  TEEFHZ YA 298,300 319,714 65,549 5405 363,849 36,119 14,968 0913 318817 W0

Reportable segment profitiloss) ~ THEHBEA/ (K%

(adjusted EBITDA) (£ 5%ERITDA) 49,109 04,831 2,339 LM 51,448 67,103 (12,977) (13487) 38471 53616
Interest income from bark deposits /777 37| 8 A 8,646 8723 3 8 8,679 8,806 5 1 8,684 8,807
st expenses flext () (1) . - () 7 N R I
Depreciation and amortisation AERER (8,180) (85%) - - (8,180) (8,59 (2) (3,545) (8,182) (12139
Impairment losses on property, plant 1%~ BE REEHE

and equipment B - - - - - - - (13057) - (13057)
Reportable segment assets TRELDEE 512,212 504,367 1,53 10,174 519,748 514,54 4,637 198 524,385 522,469
Additions tonon-current segment ~ AEEFEXFHLH

assets during the year (note) EENE) 1,004 1,048 - - 1,004 1,048 - 16,59 1,004 17,683
Reportable segment liabilities BEEPEEL 152971 169,436 614 4,504 153,591 173960 10,100 25,188 163,691 199,148
Note: Additions to non-current segment assets consist of Biat: REFRDOBEEBRER

additions to property, plant and equipment. EVME BERRKE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M E B R R R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WR KD IHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #EHEHE)

(i) H#H &5 8 WK% EF
BER - BEREEZHEK

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities
2024 2023
ZTEBE-@mFE —TEZ=F
(restated)
(& &E3)
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & x FBE T
Revenue I &=
Reportable segment revenue EREEBAIRSED
and consolidated revenue *B W iR a W s
from continuing operations (B 7 4(a))
(note 4(a)) 363,849 376,119
2024 2023
— g —_ET- =
(restated)
(& 7))
HK$'000 HK$'000
F &z T BT
Profit or loss from BELEEERANR
continuing operations &8’
Reportable segment profit REBAEEBINSEP 2
derived from the Group's G = (b
external customers 51,448 67,103
Other revenue H gz 14,356 13,085
Other net (loss)/gain H b (E18), WA FE (109) 12,622
Depreciation and amortisation — #T & & # 84 (9,117) (9,449)
Finance costs B & K AR (1,083) (1,426)
Unallocated head office and AOoEBHIREERE
corporate expenses (11,150) (10,160)
Consolidated profit Bx %t A 4R & = A
before taxation 44,345 71,775
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHE 2B/ & (EF)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) o EHE(HE)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment (i) WREDEWZE B F B

BER - BEEREEZHK

revenue, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities (Continued) ()
2024 2023
—E-OFE —ZTE=-Z=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & T FET
Assets & E
Reportable segment assets AISmEDBEE 524,385 522,469
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 2,645 4,455
Unallocated head office and AoB@BREEEE
corporate assets 2,086 10,816
Consolidated total assets GLEEERE 529,116 537,740
2024 2023
—E_MEF —_EF_-_=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & FE T
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AT & o H A & 163,691 199,148
Current tax payable B BR fE % 18 5,236 4,591
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMRBEEE 15,780 16,169
Unallocated head office and AOoEBBREEEE
corporate liabilities 114,447 85,876
Consolidated total liabilities BEBEEeE 299,154 305,784
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

(CONTINUED)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING W koDIREE
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) #EHEHE)
(iii) Geographic information (iii) b 15 & #
The following table sets out information TRIEBBOAEE R
about the geographical location of (i) the SN EB B P ORT BLAF IR &= & (i)
Group's revenue from external customers and AEEME - BERZH-
(ii) the Group's property, plant and EREERBAEBE(RFTEFE
equipment, intangible assets and goodwill MBEEDREMWE 2 &
("specified non-current assets”). B BFE BT i & IF FT IR
geographical location of customers is based B EWXEEM
on the location at which the services were J HWE BMELEXE
provided or the goods delivered. The CKRERBDEEZ
geographical location of the specified non- iﬁl ES'@_ M BEMNREEZER
current assets is based on the physical iﬁl Eﬁ REEEERRE B
location of the asset, in the case of property, LR R E DR 2
plant and equipment, the location of the Aiﬂl%ﬁ
operation to which they are allocated, in the
case of intangible assets and goodwill.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
MW EF RS K E REXRDEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
SECME “FT-=F ZB-NF —T-=F
(restated)
(mE5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TERT TERT FRET
Continuing operations FEREXR
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & 7 (F7 & i) - - 414 358
Mainland China H A 363,849 376,119 77,120 89,327
363,849 376,119 77,534 89,685
Discontinued operation ERIEREER
Hong Kong (place of domicile) & 7 (F7 & i) 14,968 20,973 - -
378,817 397,092 77,534 89,685
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RE B HRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

5 OTHER REVENUE FROM CONTINUING 5

OPERATIONS
2024 2023
—E-_@@EF —E- =
(restated)
(&5
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T T
Bank interest income ;AT E WA 8,827 2,115
Government grants (note) T 8 B (M 7E) 1,566 2,637
Others H 3,963 1,333
14,356 13,085
Note: The amount represents government grants received from various B st Ze FIET B S BUT D PY4R (0 IR AT #/ B -
PRC government authorities in connection with the fiscal subsidies ERMMTCEREMBED RMES XM
for providing financial support to enterprises and paying wages to T & &Y BF B %8 Bf -

the employees.

6 OTHER NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM 6 SEREEKHEMER) 'K

CONTINUING OPERATIONS AR E

2024 2023
TBREoOmFE —_T_=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&E T
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREZE

plant and equipment (B8, WA (79) 4,605
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain FE N (EEB) A FE (30) 8,017
(109) 12,622
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A ISR M

(Expressed in

(ABTTER)

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION FROM 7
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation from continuing operations is

Hong Kong dollars)

+ JE g A

T.rlnﬂnﬂiug %ﬁ%ﬁmiﬁ*u

HBKEEBRB RN EMER /(G

arrived at after charging/(crediting): VS RNIE="
2024 2023
—E-WNE —_ - =
(restated)
(BE5H)
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & T FAE T
(a) Finance costs (a) ®E KK
Interest on loans from the KEEZEEBRREERZ
controlling shareholder =N 1,044 1,387
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEZHE 39 39
1,083 1,426
(b) Staff costs (b) B I RA
Contributions to defined 5 FOR R E B4R 3K
contribution retirement plans (Kt &%)
(Note) 21,046 21,166
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ILERHMEBEFN 109,394 104,696
130,440 125,862
Note: No forfeited contributions was used by the employers to reduce Wat - BHE_Z_NF=ZA=Z+—-—HIEFE"

the existing level of contributions for the year ended 31 March
2024 (2023: Nil). The balance available to be utilised as at 31

March 2024 was Nil (2023: Nil).

BMEFRTAOCH IR ZERURE S
AzZrFrBEHF(—ZZE_ZF E) - R _Z
—HWE=ZA=+—B AFERZEKH
REBRAT(ZTEZ=F:T)-
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION FROM 7

CONTINUING OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

B R

MR T

FEBERB AR R (F)

2024 2023
—ElE —FT-=
(restated)
(& 5H)
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & x TE T
(c) Other operating expenses (o) HMt&2mHX
(Reversal of)/impairment losses on B o EKFREER),
trade receivables (note 25(a)) B (B &S 18 (M 7£ 25(a)) (189) 8,326
Auditors’ remuneration % 8 A & B
— audit services —BZR® 1,965 2,052
— audit related services — B FHZ ARG 773 726
Office expenses mILE 902 1,059
Entertainment expenses X¥KHEEFE 1,728 1,772
Travelling expenses ZIRE 1,108 1,247
Legal and professional fees ERMEBEXER 4,934 3,370
Security costs R B 4,152 2,812
Gardening costs IL EEE 4,536 4,109
Government surcharges BT B 0 & 2,686 2,237
Bank charges and credit RITFBEBREAR
card commissions e 465 558
Community event costs HEREEE R 3,875 2,524
Other H 7,294 6,064
34,229 36,856
(d) Other items (dy E#mEH
Depreciation charge r & X
- owned property, plant -BEVE BER
and equipment R 755 771
— right-of-use assets —ERAEEE 1,274 1,245
2,029 2,016
Amortisation 8 7,088 7,433
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAK 63,047 54,329
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

8 INCOME TAX FROM CONTINUING 8 HEEZZXTHE

(a)

OPERATIONS IN THE CONSOLIDATED Fr B8 ™
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Income tax from continuing operations in the (a) HEBBRPHNFTEREER
consolidated statement of profit or loss FREBE:
represents:
2024 2023
—E_@F —EF=- =
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Current tax - PRC Corporate BB E-FECEMEHR
Income Tax
Provision for the year FEEME 13,059 18,815
Deferred tax IE i 1|
Origination and reversal of EREmELENRED
temporary differences 2,104 (809)
15,163 18,006
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iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

INCOME TAX FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Income tax from continuing operations in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
represents: (Continued)

Pursuant to the current rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
("BVI"), subsidiaries of the Group are not subject
to any income tax in these jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements for
the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, as the
subsidiaries of the Group in Hong Kong either
sustain a loss for taxation purpose or do not
generate any assessable income.

According to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law,
the PRC's statutory income tax rate is 25% (2023:
25%).

Among the branches of Shuyi Property
Management Services Co., Ltd (BB — ¥ X R 7% B
MR 2 &) (“Shuyi”) (formerly known as Ningbo AUX
Property Management Service Co., Ltd) in the PRC,
the Chengdu Branch was entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15% under the Enterprise Income Tax
Preference Policies for the Western Development.
The directors are of the view that it is highly
probable that the Chengdu Branch will be entitled
to the same preferential tax rate and 15% is
adopted in estimating the tax provision for the
years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

Management considered that the retained profits
of subsidiaries in the PRC might be distributed in
the foreseeable future. Consequently, deferred tax
liabilities of HK$10,376,000 (2023: HK$8,585,000) for
temporary differences relating to undistributed
profits of subsidiaries were recognised as at 31
March 2024.
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Fit & ®i (4&)

(a)

RERBRPTHNRBALCEXRR
FRE®E: (&)

REFEHELEABRAES
(EBRZBEEDNRATRI R
ERCOASEKERBHBERZ
EREERBMNEMAEHR-

HRAEBEREFENKB LA
RRBEENMEHERTERE E
ELXEMNERREA WBEZ
E_MER_FT-_=ZF=ZA

ST BLEEFREYRREAY
BRERATEENRT iRT’Eﬁ%é‘ﬁ
REBPBECEMSHRE 7 BEE

FEEFHRHRBBU( T =4
25%) ©

EE—WMERBBERDAE
— ] A ERRSMERY
BERARDZDARFB KB
NEREE S ARNAZENDEM
SBHEEHRREEZBIS%HE
ERE-BEERAXNEEBY, 2AR
EAgE=zEREKERZH XTI H
RI5%M B EREgEE_ZT =@M
FR-_ZFE-Z=ZF=ZA=+—H

IEFE o RBBREE-

EEERABRPEBHMNEB QA
AEEEANBEALBERS BRE &
FleRUL BWEBRB KRS IR SR
M ERBEER_ZT_MF =
A=+ - B®HRELHIEA G
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
M E B R R R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

8 INCOME TAX FROM CONTINUING 8 #HEEFZXTTHEELREER

OPERATIONS IN THE CONSOLIDATED Fir 18 Bi (&)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation the between tax expense and (b) REABERFTENSERE £
accounting profit from continuing operations at BHEMEIRGTEFNHEEDT :

applicable tax rates:

2024 2023
—E-E T =
$'000 $'000
FET FHE T
(restated)
(& E5)
Profit before taxation B Bt AT & A 44,345 71,775
Notional tax on profit before Br B0 AT m N BY B & IR
taxation, calculated at the rates (ZHEBEREERRE A
applicable to profits in the HRABEAE)
jurisdictions concerned 12,195 17,335
Tax effect of TAIHNBAZINRE R E
non-deductible expenses 2,143 1,801
Tax effect of non-taxable income SERBIW A BT IS & (103) (1,710)
Tax effect of unused tax losses R R ﬂi A EBEAOM
not recognised 5‘5‘ 272 158
Tax effect of profits subject to ZXH . BEMRE 2H M
preferential tax rate in the PRC FORTR X (1,644) (2,245)
Tax effect of withholding tax on HAhENB AR RS IR /m
undistributed profits of the MEEMNH BB 2R
PRC subsidiaries 2,300 2,667
Actual tax expense ERBEERX 15,163 18,006

Annual Report 2024 4 3R 191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 9 EEFHIM

SLRE B R A &P 538301 1§ & A 7K
BEENZEMBRMF2HERENE

Directors’ emoluments disclosed with reference to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information EEHBWO TR
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2024
“E-@ME
Salaries, Retirement
Directors'  allowances Discretionary scheme
fees and benefits bonuses contributions Total
e 28 B E
EExne &R [ER-R % f#t % @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T THEx T TR THEx
Chairman and executive director TEXHTES
Zheng Jiang g1 2,000 - - - 2,000
Executive directors HITES
Zheng Jianjiang (appointed with ~ BB T (- F /M4
effect from 1 January 2024) —-H—HEZF) 450 - - - 450
Chan Hon Ki Rz M - 2,092 - 18 2,110
Shen Guoying ES - - - - -
Chen Lingxiao (appointed with BMABRE-F-—F
effect from 1 September 2022) NA-REZF) = - - - -
Independent BUFHGTES
non-executive directors
Poon Chiu Kwok &R 250 - - - 250
Bau Siu Fung f)g 250 - - - 250
Lou Aidong EER 250 - - - 250
Total o 3,200 2,092 - 18 5,310
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e IR AR M A
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTERTR)
9 DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 9 EEEHMNE)
2023
—E-Z%
Salaries, Retirement
Directors' allowances  Discretionary scheme
fees  and benefits bonuses  contributions Total
He2H RREE
EEHs REH WERL #3% @i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FET TER FET TEL TEL
Chairman and executive director TERHTES
Zheng Jiang &1 2,000 - - - 2,000
Executive directors HITES
Chan Hon Ki REHX - 1,788 - 18 1,806
Shen Guoying W Bl - - - - -
Chen Lingxiao (appointed with BMAR(E-F-—F
effect from 1 September 2022) NA-REZF) - - - - -
Liang Songluan (resigned with RERR-_F-_ZF
effect from 6 May 2022) AANAEFHE) - - - - -
Independent BUFHGTES
non-executive directors
Poon Chiu Kwok AR 250 - - - 250
Bau Siu Fung g 250 - - - 250
Lou Aidong EER 250 - - - 250
Total o 2,750 1,788 - 18 4,556

Annual Report 2024 %}

193



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10 ES5 &M A

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two TE&ERFHATHRBEAL(ZE
of them (2023: two) were directors whose emoluments ZZF WMRB)AEST EHFMAMFE
are disclosed in note 9. The aggregate of the OFEE - EM=—R(ZE_=ZF:=4)
emoluments in respect of other three (2023: three) ATHHFHARzBLOT:

individuals are as follows:

2024 2023
—EoNmE —FT-=
$'000 $'000
T & T FAE T
Salaries allowances and benefits T FehkEURT
in kind 3,222 2,642
Discretionary bonuses B 15 7€ AL - -
Retirement scheme contributions RN - 134 128
3,356 2,770
The emoluments of the three (2023: three) individuals ZTER(ZEZ_=ZFZR)RHFHA
with the highest emoluments are within the following THHEMENATEER:
bands:
2024 2023
—E-mE —_E_=%F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
N A &
$Nil to $1,000,000 Z % JT £ 1,000,0007% T 1 1
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T 2 1,500,000 7% JT 2 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B RS R R MY 5

(Expressed in
(ABTETR)

Hong Kong dollars)

11 PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic profit/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic profit/(loss) per share is
based on the profit of HK$29,182,000 (2023:
HK$51,144,000) and loss of HK$12,461,000 (2023:
HK$29,633,000) attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company arising from
continuing operations and discontinued operation
respectively and the weighted average number of
492,984,000 (2023: 492,984,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted profit/(loss) per share

The diluted profit/(loss) per share is the same as
basic profit/(loss) per share as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

11

/_

(a)

(b)

R = F, (& |)
SREFEBRN(FB)
iJ&% wm A (BB ERA
REBRBREEREREMLRKA
BRREEBRRAE K IEK
% % %129,182,0008 T (= =
= = F 51, 144000?%571)&@5%@
12,461,000 jT( = & = = % :
29,633,0007% T ) LA&EWE?*
ﬂ?atﬁﬂxbuﬁéﬂ?i’] [
492,984,000/ ( = & = = F:
492,984,000 %) 5t E AT 15 -

EREBERAN(FB)

BREESMN(EB) ESTA
Nm ) (BER)ER - T
HE_ZT_NFER_ZT =
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me SRR M A
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABETERTR)
12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 ME - BERRZE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEYER
Properties Furniture,
leased for  fixtures and Leasehold Motor
ownuse  equipment improvements vehicles Total
fEEAKN HE-£EB HENE
HEN%E &S] %% RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THT TET TEL FEL
Cost: B
At 1 April 2023 RZE-Z=FWA—-H 65,425 22,013 37,730 262 125,430
Additions NE 1,331 644 - 24 1,999
Disposals & (9,547) (335) (442) - (10,324)
Exchange adjustments 5 E (69) (368) (15) (14) (466)
At 31 March 2024 R-ZE_M%

I el = 57,140 21,954 37,273 272 116,639

Accumulated depreciation RHFTERBEER:

and impairment losses:

At 1 April 2023 R-_E-=ZFRmAE—-A 64,755 19,125 37,730 139 121,749
Charge for the year EARX 1,274 708 - 49 2,031
Written back on disposals & B (9,547) (256) (442) - (10,245)
Exchange adjustments 5 E (52) (206) (15) (7) (280)
At 31 March 2024 RZE-_MF
L SAZt-R 543 93 w2 181 113255
Net book value: BHFE:
At 31 March 2024 RZE-_NF

ZF=+-H 710 2,583 = 91 3,384
Cost: ﬁfc K
At 1 April 2022 RZE-Z-EME—-A 49,268 24,999 38,234 211 112,712
Additions NE 16,217 548 804 74 17,643
Disposals k= - (2,776) (1,165) 9) (3,950
Exchange adjustments EHAE (60) (758) (143) (14) (975)
At 31 March 2023 i —2

=A=+-H 65,425 22,013 37,730 262 125,430

Accumulated depreciation R FTERBEFR:

and impairment losses:

At 1 April 2022 RZE-ZENA—-H 47,890 21,549 38,234 110 107,783
Charge for the year ﬁ MR X 3,856 857 804 44 5,561
Impairment losses (note 12(b) & [ B & (Hf #12(b)) 13,057 - - - 13,057
Written back on disposals & B HOR = (2,775) (1,165) (8) (3,948)
Exchange adjustments ERAE (48) (506) (143) 7 (704)
At 31 March 2023 W-E-=fF

ZA=t-8 64,755 19,125 37,730 139 121,749
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 March 2023 R-E-=F

ZA=t-8 670 2,888 = 123 3,681
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iR A B S R aR Y 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment losses

The amount mainly represented the impairment
losses on property, plant and equipment in relation
to lifestyle entertainment segment of $13,057,000
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the
operation of clubbing business and restaurant and
bar outlets was loss-making. The segment loss (i.e.
adjusted earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation) of the clubbing
business and restaurant and bar outlets for the year
ended 31 March 2023 amounted to $13,487,000 and
the Group had assessed the recoverable amount of
the relevant property, plant and equipment. As a
result, impairment losses of $13,057,000 were
“impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to reduce the carrying
amount of these property, plant and equipment to
their recoverable amount of $Nil. The estimates of

recognised as

recoverable amount were based on the value-in-
use model, in which the cash flows were discounted
using discount rate of 14%. The discount rate used
was pre-tax and reflected specific risks relating to
the operation of clubbing business and restaurant
and bar outlets.

Right-of-use assets
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use

12 WE - BERKREE)

(b)

(c)

wEE R

ZEeBEITEBEHE_ZT
—A=+—BLFEEH
RESTNWE WMERE
B {8 5 813,057,000 JT °

TN]

&l

EE
m

|k

ﬁ

B2 _=ZF=ZA=+—8H
IEFE- A%%Wuﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BATHEFESEBEE B2

T-_ZHFZA=Z+— amir
CHMEBREERBENT D
HBERNBBRBEHAERMNE B
BT EREBHEMNAN) A
13,487,000/ 7T - M AN & B B ¥ &
HRAME BELEXENTRE
& %o B It - B B & 18 13,057,000
BLTEORERABRZRANER AW
¥ - BMEMEEREBIE] R
LEZEVME BEEARENER
EEHEAKRE LT A KkE
SENGEFIREBEFEREAEIE
B EdrIR e R EIK14%
MITBEENB-FTANBREY A
HABERMEEESHMER &
BERBEETHERENSTERR-

CRAEEE
EREEERBHEEERRM

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: EMBREFESTOT :
2024 2023
—E-_WmFE —F-=
$'000 $'000
TERT FAET
Properties leased for own use, EERMNHAEY ¥R
carried at depreciated cost TEXARSE 710 670
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M E B R R R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)
The analysis of expense/(income) items in relation
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows:

12

ME-BERR

(c)

& (&)

EREEEM
EEaPTHRIANEHEEHAN
iﬁ/(ﬂﬂz)\)lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ IR

2024 2023
—_E_MMEF —_EF_-=
$'000 $'000
T x FE T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use F B# & E L & &E
assets by class of underlying HRIMTEER:
asset:
Properties leased for own use EERMEEY X 1,274 3,856
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBE2MEBE(WH7G)
(note 7(a)) 401 354
Expense relating to HEMBESEREBAN X H
short-term leases 1,113 820
COVID-19-related rent concessions 5 COVID-1948 B T & &
received (note 5) =(MES5) - (376)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets
were $1,331,000 (2023: $16,217,000). This amount
primarily related to the capitalised lease payments
payable under renewed agreements for office
premises entered into during the year.

Details of total cash outflows for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in
notes 18(c) and 21, respectively.

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use properties
as its premises for club, staff quarters and office
premises through tenancy agreements. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 3 years.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
received rent concessions for its premises for club
and restaurant and bar outlets in the form of a
discount on fixed payments as a result of severe
social distancing and travel restriction measures
introduced to contain the spread of COVID-19.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRE B IS IR R MY EE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTERTR)
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 BEREE
Property
management
contracts and
related
Customer customer
relationships  relationships ~ Trademark Total
NEEBELHN
FEBEE
EEHE B [k @
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TAET FTETL TETL AT
Cost: ﬁfc b
At 1 April 2022 R-_E--FRmA—A 1,174 80,161 35 81,370
Disposal NE - - (35) (35)
Exchange adjustments EHAE - (5,870) - (5,870)
MIMaAR  RIFIIEIRsfoR we o mm s
At 1 April 2023 W-E-=E@NA-H 1,174 74,291 - 75,465
Exchange adjustments ERAE - (4,182) - (4,182)
MIMaA  RIREEIRSf-R we - onm
Accumulated amortisation RABERAESR:
and impairment losses:
At 1 April 2022 RZE-_ZFWA—H 1,174 39,413 35 40,622
Charge for the year ERRAX - 7,433 - 7433
Written back on disposal & B HOR - - (35) (35)
Exchange adjustments EHAE - (2,890) - (2,890)
MIMecha3  RSBIZFSAStoR e am )
At 1 April 2023 RZZE-=ZFEWNA—H 1,174 43,956 - 45,130
Charge for the year EARX - 7,088 - 7,088
Exchange adjustments 5% - (2,551) - (2,551)
MINehmM  RZRIEESAS-oR S e
Net book value: EE¥E:
At 31 March 2024 RZFE-_ME=A=1+-H° L 21,616 = 21,616
At 31 March 2023 R-_E-_ZF=ZA=1+-1H - 30,335 - 30,335
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AFEEHEBRTAGEGEBEERAOM
“depreciation and amortisation” in the consolidated EXEHIA-

statement of profit or loss.
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

14 GOODWILL 14 & E
$'000
FAT
Cost: )5 A
At 1 April 2022 RZE-__FWMA—H 67,328
Exchange adjustments & 5 38 % (4,398)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 RZE_=ZF=ZA=Z=+—"8XK
=1 AH—H 62,930
Exchange adjustments & 5 38 % (3,135)
At31March2024 R=_F_WAF=A=t-H"H 59,795
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt R EEE
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 RZZE-_—_FMmMA—H
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 —TEZ=F=ZR=+—8"
—E_ZFWMA-AR
T —F-_R¥=A=t—-RH 7,261
Carrying amount: IR H B
At 31 March 2024 R-T_MOE=ZA=+—H 52,534
At 31 March 2023 R—ZF-_=%=ZA=+—H 55,669
Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill BEHENRSELEENHRERSR
The Group's goodwill arose from the acquisitions of AEBREBEDITEZEAR T —LF
Shuyi in May 2017 and Mini Club Hong Kong Limited TAKREBE-—R-ZZT-AFHAK
(“Mini Club”) in April 2019. 8 MiniClub Hong Kong Limited ([ Mini
Club])
The goodwill is attributable to (1) the workforce of Shuyi BEREME - IEBRKNURERF
and the potential growth of the property management MEBBTENEEE R ULRQ
industry in the PRC; and (2) the benefit of expected TEHBRRENFZ KAEER
synergies, revenue growth and the assembled workforce Mini Club®) B 8 A F -

of Mini Club.
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

14 GOODWILL (CONTINUED) BREERBEE(E)
Impairment tests for CGUs containing goodwill BEEENRSELCENNAENR
(Continued) 28 (4!)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified as BEIEEZEASEMEISRSE
follows: ’;’Eﬁh QDT :
2024 2023
—E-_WMFE Z—ZF--F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FB T
Property management business Y EEREK 52,534 55,669
Operation of restaurant and bar KREZRE BB m
outlets* - -
52,534 55,669
* The recoverable amount of the related CGU was lower than the * AR EEBEMNTKRED S EENEK

carrying amount of it and therefore the related goodwill was fully
impaired during the year ended 31 March 2021.

Property management business

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
estimated weighted average growth rates of 3% (2023:
3%) which is not higher than the forecasts included in
industry reports. The growth rate used does not exceed
the long-term average growth rates for the business in
which the CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted
using discount rates of 21% (2023: 21%). The discount
rates used are pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating

to the relevant segment.

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the operation of
property management business continued to be profit-
making and thus no impairment indicator for the
respective goodwill has been identified.

mE AEEEREERNEBE % = —
F=ZR=t - HLEFEDHRE-

MEEBER

ReEABLNA KB EERE
AEEFESE ZAERAREE
BEMEZ A FHRUBEE 2H
Rens HBEAFHNEESTE
ERAMEMETFHEREIN(ZE
T ZE3R)EE HTaRTER
RERFER -FFANREY®EBRE
T EAEBEURLEMEERN KRBT
BER-BEREUNINTR X21% (=
_E 21%) R -FAAFTRER
T RBEBEYBZEBESE TR

>

Ht:l

Eﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁl

o:ml:l‘

BE_ZF_WNF=-ZA=+—HLFE-
MEEREBLELERBAN B
L AE R B IR ORE
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iR A B RS IR AR MY 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AB TR T)
15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RENEBARAMNERE
The following list contains only the particulars of TREHIHAEEEXE EEXE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets BEEATE  MBAR ZHB K
or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is SHEINAN - EHEERODZBNRE
ordinary unless otherwise stated. e
Proportion of ownership interest
FERRESELLH
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Group's Held Held
establishment and issued and  effective by the by a
Name of company operation paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activity
ERAL/ BRAR AEEZ x28 KWEAF
RAER RIREELYE CHARRAREE HERER BE BE TEEH
New Pride Corporate Limited® BVI 101 shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
EERLES 101R 100% 100% - REZR
Cheerful Raise Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Provision of administrative
service to group
companies
EHBRAT B 1R 100% - 100% MEERARBTHE
B R %
Club Kingdom The Central Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Holding of trademarks
Group Limited
B 15 100% - 00% HEHR
Success Deal Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Operation of clubbing
business
BB 11 100% - 100% HEEHEH
Starry Chance Limited* Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
FEARA A 5% B 100 -0 BERR
Shuyi** The PRC 5,000,000 100% - 100%  Provision of property
shares management services
BB — m 5,000,000 & 100% - 100% RENEEERH
Po Tai Holdings Limited* Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Investment holding
SRERARAT 5% 100 - 0% BEEE
Legend Management Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100%  Operation of restaurant
and bar outlets
BB 10,000 100% - 100% HEERLEECAD
Ningbo Po Tai Hengmao Trading ~ The PRC 10,000,000 100% - 100%  Sales of living consumption
Co. Ltd* shares and festive products
EREREREAERRA  HE 10,000,000 % 100% - 100% HELERM
& Shuyi and Ningbo Po Tai Hengmao Trading Co. Ltd are the wholly s B-REFEZTEXEZERAAT—
foreign-owned enterprises in the PRC. The company name in HRAPBEZHIEBECE - XAAH
English are the direct translation of the registered Chinese name BAAMEXEBsEEZMZ  EMHHEH -

for the purpose of identification.

’ ESREFAMEBALEZERANE
JE 1 BAD o

ud KPMG are not the statutory auditors of these companies.
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

16 INVENTORIES 16 # &
2024 2023
—F-mE —F-=
$'000 $'000
TER FET
Food and beverages and other RY ek EMEHm £8B
operating items for club operations NOBE &) & &8 B
and restaurant and bar outlets - 430
Living consumption and festive HEYXERHTENEERSE
products for property management HEOESTAmLE BE®
related value-added services 2,111 784
2,111 1,214

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

REBRAXAFABRENFTESH

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: P2 N
2024 2023
—E-mE —F-Z
$'000 $'000
TER FAET
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENKREME:
from:
Continuing operations REFBEREED 63,047 54,329
Discontinued operation REDRIEEEER 6,493 6,995
69,540 61,324
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A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

17

NON-CURRENT RENTAL DEPOSITS AND 17
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FHNBMEEREUARESRHA
fib F& UL X &

2024 2023
—F-OmFE —T-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & x FAE T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Rental deposits HEZS 65 3,656
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables, net of loss ESRWAEBE MBREBEE®
allowance (note) (Kt #E) 59,680 71,395
Deposits, prepayments and Re TENKREBEREMER
other receivables 18 22,179 16,249
81,859 87,644

Note: At 31 March 2024, trade and other receivables of the Group
included amounts due from entities controlled by Mr. Zheng
Jianjiang, the Company's controlling shareholder, of $4,888,000
(2023: $3,452,000) and entities over which Mr. Zheng Jianjiang has
significant influence, of $6,052,000 (2023: $2,785,000). The
amounts represent property management fees receivable arisen
in the ordinary course of business.

The amount of the Group's deposits, prepayments and
other receivables expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense after more than one year is
$65,000 (2023: $3,656,000), which mainly represent rental
deposits for staff accommodation and office of the
Group (2023: rental deposits for a club of the Group). All
of the other trade and other receivables are expected to
be recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

Bt - RZF-_WF=ZA=+—-—B FrEEZ
BEZREMEKREREEKARQFE
BRARSE T EEZHNERBRYEER
EARFEMNER IR 25 /4,888,000
B L = T Z = 3,452,000/ T ) &
6,052,000 ;L( = T = = 4 :2,785,000/%
T ZABERNREEERBEFELEZ
EWMEERE -

AEBMBHBEN —FR KB KER
AHEYNES BEMNRERHEMER
HIER S % A650008 T (- - =
36560008 L) EXEZEAARAEHE
BTIREMMAEMEZHER2(Z
T_—F AEEEeMHEERS) -
FFEEME S R EMEWRZKIEYE
HR—FRKEERBRI-
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

17 NON-CURRENT RENTAL DEPOSITS AND 17
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables (which are included in trade
and other receivables), based on the invoice date and

net of loss allowance, is as follows:

FHNBMEEREUARES RH

fib P& W =X 18 (&)

fRE 2

BEREHR FAEZREMER
REMNEZERREREZTA BN
EMGERBEROKEDITNT

2024 2023

—ED@mE —T-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & x FET
Within 1 month —@ AR 28,856 33,883
Over 1 month to 3 months BA—EAZ=Z=1@A 13,084 10,049
Over 3 months to 6 months BA=ZEA=/NMEA 6,796 6,644
Over 6 months to 1 year BAANEAZEZ —F 5,267 9,391
Over 1 year —F L E 5,677 11,428
59,680 71,395

Further details on the Group's credit policy and credit
risk arising from trade receivables are set out in note

25(a).

I3

AEBEEERRXRE
EHMEERRBZE
5T 25(a) °
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M E B R R R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 REe KRB ESEZEBEYURHEMRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION TREER
(a) The analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as (a) HEeERBESEEYWIHWMT:
follows:
2024 2023
—EomE —_FT-=
$'000 $'000
F & x TH& T
Deposits with banks and cash RITERRFERS
on hand 364,902 351,086
Restricted bank deposits (note (i) X BR # 88 17 17 5K (M & (i) (8,492) (4,967)
Time deposits with original maturity R 2/ H & =@ A N £ &
over three months EHT R (57,759) -
Non-current time deposit JE B0 B 7E HR A7 K - (59,684)
Cash and cash equivalents in the meReRERNR &
consolidated cash flow statement EE TEEY 298,651 286,435
Notes: it
(i) Restricted bank deposits represent the cash collected from (i) EREBOTERERDETS ¥

property occupants/owners for the repair and maintenance
fund maintained by Shuyi.

(ii) Included in deposits with banks and cash in hand of the
Group, $363,594,000 (2023: $280,656,000) are denominated
in Renminbi at 31 March 2024. Renminbi is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of
mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities from financing activities, including both
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are liabilities for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group's consolidated cash flow statement as
cash flows from financing activities.

THEBRE
RREESD -

ERBE-—HFEZHE

(i) RZZEZWF=RAR=+—H8 %%
BHNRTERAERFERSHYBRE
363,594,000 T( = T = = F:
280,656,000 7T) * LA A R W 5 1 ©
ARBTAZAEBALENES M
BafthBEAEELASFEK
AT 51 B BR I o

by MEETDFRELERENHER

TERFLAEBERE TS TE
EE’JEF“EJJ @%i@u%&#iﬁ

EA‘JZﬂijUﬁém
BEaBREeRE
PEERBELD

MEMZERAME
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HEe NHESZEYWUREMR

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION TREER(HE)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BETHFELEEENY RE)

financing activities (Continued)

Loan from the

controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REEZER
RRER HEERE @5t
$'000 $'000 $'000
TER TER THERT
(note 22) (note 21)

(Kt it 22) (Kt 21)

At 1 April 2023 R=ZB-=Z§WMA-H 74,420 16,216 90,636

Changes from financing cash flows: BMEREF 25

Proceeds from loans from the REEBRBRRERLD

controlling shareholder FigsE 30,420 - 30,420
Capital element of lease rentalspaid ENHER &M A2 H 5 - (11,506) (11,506)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEREMFEHH - (401) (401)
Total changes from financing REHGRELPLR

ceshflows ... 80420 ~ (M.907) 18,513
Exchange adjustments  Ex#2 - 04 (14
Other changes: Hit 28 :
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) B Z7a) - 401 401
Increase in lease liabilities from FARTUHAELNH

entering into renewed leases HERE

during the year - 1,331 1,331
Totalotherchanges ~ Aw%k®es - 172 1732
At 31 March 2024 R-ZZE-_mE=ZA=+-AH 104,840 6,027 110,867
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A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HEeLHESZEYWUREMR

OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION EREE R (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BETHFELEEBENY RE)

financing activities (Continued)

Loan from the

controlling Lease
shareholder liabilities Total
REER
REER HEEE @t
$'000 $'000 $'000
THEL THEL THEL
(note 22) (note 21)

(Bt i£22) (K ax21)

At 1 April 2022 R=ZB--fWMA-H 110,854 13,286 124,140

Changes from financing cash flows: BER &K 2

Repayment of loans from the EERBEERBRREN

controlling shareholder (29,000) - (29,000)
Capital element of lease rentalspaid ENHER &N A2 H 5 - (12,911 (12,911)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEEREMFEHH - (354) (354)
Total changes from financing REHGRELPLR

cash flows 9000y (13265 (42,265)
Exchange adjustments  Ex®®  0&4y 0 - 084
Other changes: Hit 28
Interest expenses (note 7(a)) B Z7a) - 354 354
Increase in lease liabilities from FARTUHAELZMNH

entering into renewed leases HERE

during the year - 16,217 16,217
COVID-19-related rent BEHECOVD-9EHEHS E R

concessions received - (376) (376)
Totalotherchanges ~ AwEZ®es - 16195 16,195
At 31 March 2023 R-_E-_=Z%=ZF=+—H 74,420 16,216 90,636
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 R RRLZEEYUARHMR
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION ERhEER (A
(CONTINUED)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERERHHAE
Amounts included in the cash flow statement for HHEHEFAREGEREXRTH S
leases comprise the following: BERENUTRIE:
2024 2023
—E-@mE —¥F-Z=
$'000 $'000
THET FAET
Within operating cash flows EREHRE RN (1,113) (820)
Within financing cash flows ERERSRN (11,907) (13,265)
(13,020) (14,085)
These amounts relate to the following: ZEHETINZERHA:
2024 2023
—E-D@mFE —_FT_-=
$'000 $'000
FET FB T
Lease rentals paid ERNREE 13,020 14,085
19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 ESRHEHMENKIE
2024 2023
—E-_MWME Z—T-=4%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FE T
Trade creditors 2 5 N RIE 22,824 27,053
Deposits received from property REMEEE EFPKBZ
owners/occupants & 14,589 18,364
Receipts on behalf of KEDOBEEXERAHBK
utilities companies 15,510 16,544
Amounts due to related parties JE < B Bk 73 3R IR 1,524 1,807
Other payables and accrued charges  H ftl JE ft 5k 18 K JE 51 & A 43,257 51,935
97,704 115,703
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M E B R R R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19
(CONTINUED)

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

The amounts due to related parties represent balances
due to entities controlled by Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, the
Company'’s controlling shareholder, which are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable within one year.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade creditors (which are included in trade
and other payables), based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

7 K H b B8 Y X E (&)

EHRMBEESRAEAMBMENFTREASR
—FRABEBRRERERE-

ENBEBTRRAEBEREMNARRD
PRl REFE T e A 1 B 88
REER REREAR-FR

el

He

GIRE:
ﬁ%

o

Z

s N )
r“g i

1,

BEREHPR FABZREMES
RENEZENFRARERARW
R MWMT

20

2024 2023
—E-MmOE —FT-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
T &t FAE T
Within 3 months —@AR 13,756 14,029
Over 3 months to 6 months B@E=EAZ=/MEA 8,019 9,590
Over 6 months to 1 year B@ANEAZEZ —F 549 2,225
Over 1 year —F L E 500 1,209
22,824 27,053
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20 EXAEE
2024 2023
—E-mOE —_FT-=
$'000 $'000
T & FAE T
Billing in advance of performance T8 W B A9 318 63,873 74,035
The amount of revenue recognised in the year ended 31 HE-ZT-_WMF=-A=+—HIEFE "
March 2024 that was included in the contract liabilities RZE-_=ZFWA—BiFAEHEE
balance at 1 April 2023 was $74,035,000 (2023: EHHMEBE BRI E © 5 574,035,000
$73,707,000). B (ZZF = =4 :73,707,000/8 7T) °
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M E B R R R M

2N =]

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

21

22

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2024, the lease liabilities were repayable as

21 HE&AE

follows: WHEEEBBEWNT:
2024 2023
L S
$'000 $'000
TER TET
Within1year TFW L SO . 13,535
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFEN 114 2,681
6,027 16,216

LOANS FROM THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER AND AMOUNT DUE TO
THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The loans from the controlling shareholder are
unsecured.

At 31 March 2024, the non-current portion of $52,360,000
is interest-bearing at 2% per annum and repayable in
August 2025. The remaining non-current portion of
$52,480,000 is interest-free and repayable after one year
but within two years.

At 31 March 2023, the current portion of the loans is
interest-free and repayable within one year. The non-
current portion of the loans is interest-bearing at 2% per
annum and repayable in August 2025.

The amount due to the controlling shareholder,
representing the interest payable, is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable within one year.

22 REEBRRRERREMSEZER
iR 3R X1

KEfEkhkBRkRERXRSEEA-

RZZBE-_ME=A=+—RH BExXZ

T~ 3E B B &6 9 52,480,000 T A& % B
LER—FHREMFRNEE-
RZE-_=F=ZA=+—RH - Bxx2
BB EEERAR—FREE-
BRI D FE A R2%Et B
FER-_Z-_RENAEE-
FE 5 PR RY SR R B (BD FE fF A B) B &
KHE 2ERAR—FREE-
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A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 AWM BMRRAEPWAEH

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (a) HGZEMBERRRPPVENBHRERE :
of financial position represents:

2024 2023
—E-_mMFE =—ZE=-=
$'000 $'000
TET FET
Provision for PRC Corporate Income 4 A # B 1 % F7 15 7 # &
Tax for the year 13,059 18,815
Provisional PRC Corporate Income EffFEHFA BT X B H
Tax paid (7,823) (14,224)
5,236 4,591
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RE R R MR
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTETR)
23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 #LZ&E&MEMRREXRTPWF BB (E)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: (b) EHIAEEHB(EE) EEF:
(i)  Movement of each component of deferred () EEBHELE) EEXZH4H
tax (assets)/liabilities B 25 B 2 5
The components of deferred tax (assets)/ RiEabBBMRARANER
liabilities recognised in the consolidated MEBEEHEEE) 8EA
statement of financial position and the MES ERFANNEE N
movements during the year are as follows: N
Impairment
losses on Amortisation Undistributed
trade Accrued  of intangible profits of
receivables expenses assets  subsidiaries Total
EAEKRAE WELH
WHESR EiER BVEEBYE AHEA @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
THL THT FET THL FAEL
Deferred tax arising BEERERE:
from;
At 1 April 2022 i ——
mA—-H (2,924) (138) 10,187 6,387 13,512
(Credited)/charged to REERBER
profit or loss from BaRGEA)/
continuing operations Mk (1,607) (1 (1,858) 2,667 (809)
Exchange adjustments ERHE 215 10 (745) (469) (989)
At31March2023and ~ RZZTZ=%
1 April 2023 ZHA=+-8Bk
“E-ZE
mA—A (4,316) (139) 7,584 8,585 11,714
Charged/(credited) to REERLER
profit or loss from BaPNE/GrA)
continuing operations 1,57 5 (1,772) 2,300 2,104
Exchange adjustments ERHZ 226 8 (408) (509) (683)
At 31 March 2024 RZZ-ME
ZR=+-H (2,519) (126) 5,404 10,376 13,135
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RE B S R AR MY R
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(ABTERTR)
23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 #AaUBERRKRPHFBH(E)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: by EEAEEH B(BEE) 8&:
(Continued) (#)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) #HAEBHBEMIEEEER
statement of financial position
2024 2023
—E_ME —_ - =
$'000 $'000
T & T FAE T
Net deferred tax assets REETBERARXRRNER
recognised in the consolidated EI’] S IETIEE EF R
statement of financial position (2,645) (4,455)
Net deferred tax liabilities REEHBERARRNER
recognised in the consolidated  #)IE & % 18 & & ¥ %8
statement of financial position 15,780 16,169
13,135 11,714
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised (c) AEREEHREBEBEE
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in 1B ¥R MY 52 2(q) BT & /Y & 5F B
note 2(q), the Group has not recognised deferred AEBVTERBRAHREBEERK
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses and fF% % BWEEBREBEENERE

temporary differences arising from property, plant
and equipment amounting to $186,364,000 (2023:
$170,027,000) and $29,277,000 (2023: $30,826,000)
respectively as it is not probable that future taxable
profits against which such losses and temporary
differences can be utilised will be available in the
relevant entities. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are (i) losses of $183,046,000 (2023:
$167,650,000) from Hong Kong operations that can
be carried forward indefinitely, and (ii) losses of
$3,318,000 (2023: $2,377,000) from the PRC
operations that will expire in five years from the
year in which they arose.

%IJ186,364,000,% (= &
- = F: 170027000;% T ) R
29277 0007 (= - = F:
30,826,000 T ) HE R IR W& 7 1H &
E’Jﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘a&?ﬁ"fﬁ A
ERRENBEZERBRIRERER
%ﬁ‘f%ﬂﬂ%ﬁﬂﬁwu RIERBIE
B B8 E(i)E 18183,046,000%
- - E 4 1 167,650,000
Jﬂé%“ X% A ER B
+ K (i) /&5 48 3,318,000 JT (=
= _E © 2,377,000 7T) IR B
PEER BSREBEELEFER
ATAF®BEES-

dl FH

i

|3‘”"

H{
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iR A B S R aR Y 5

(Expressed in

(ABTTER)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(a)

Hong Kong dollars)

Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and

closing balances of each component of the Group's

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity. Details of the

changes in the Company’s individual components

of equity between the beginning and the end of

the year are set out below:

The Company

24 EXR e

(a)

AR89
$%lﬁ$/\$éﬁ§ﬁ‘\]%1%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ
DO BRE SO KRN
%?(:W&*QEJJ% FNEFRH
B A 7] & Bl xS AR R 2
FHFREHINET

M
S
aj

Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
R& 4 & R E# -
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
TER TEL TETL TER
Balance at 1 April 2022 R-ZB--_fMA-ANEH 4,930 249,542 (111,981) 142,491
Change in equity for the yearended B Z-ZB-=f£=ZHF=+-H
31 March 2023: LEERHEEE:
Loss and total comprehensive income  FAEERZEANZLE
for the year - - (9,636) (9,636)
Balance at 31 March 2023 and R-ZB-=%#=ZA=1+-HEK
1 April 2023 ZE_C-EMA-HMEH 4,930 249,542 (121,617) 132,855
Change in equity for the yearended HBZ-Z-_ME=ZA=+-H
31 March 2024: LEEEGET:
Loss and total comprehensive income  FRAEBL2AK LS
for the year - - (10,327) (10,327
Balance at 31 March 2024 RZB-WMEZR=+-HH
g8 4,930 249,542 (131,944) 122,528
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g A

2 =]

B ESER R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

(b)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 24 EXK # B (E)
Share capital (b) B&
2024 2023
—E-ME —ECZ=H
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
B4 # A ¢8E KH¥A k|
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR TER T i TR
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of $0.01 each REE0.01 % T
TER 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares, issued EER BRORMR:
and fully paid:
Atthe beginning and theend of ~ R EFI R F K
the year 492,984 4,930 492,984 4,930

(c)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of
the Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company would be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of the business.

(c)

EBRFAEAERBKIRTKE
EKOKRE YEAERARAKRNE
EREBE-—FETRR - BARQ
ANBEEMS MAEBER

KR %

BENEERED

(i) REGEE
g EREARAKROE
8 & %17 A a5 % ER
MG RENER  RIE

MeBs A NAE KAQA
B B 17 o (B Bk AT DR T
ARABEORER EEERZ
FEORBREEHRK KA
AABRENR —REBHB
RREMNIHOES-
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iR A B S R aR Y 5

(Expressed in

(AE TR T)

Hong Kong dollars)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(ii) Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the cash paid
for the acquisition of subsidiaries contributed
by the former controlling shareholder in

September 2010.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in note 2(t).

(iv) Statutory reserve

The Articles of Association of Shuyi require
the appropriation of 10% of its profit after tax
each year, based on its statutory audited
financial statements, to the statutory reserve
until the balance reaches 50% of the
registered capital of Shuyi. The statutory
reserve may be capitalised as the paid-in

capital of Shuyi.

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2024, the aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company were $117,598,000

(2023: $127,925,000).

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023:

$Nil).

24 EXR # ()

(c) REEHNHEEREBNGE
(i) BEXRFE
EARESEMNERRKRRE
RZE—ZFNLARKE
WBARMIXEMEA®-

(i) B 5% f# 5
EXRFBERBEBIINE
BHMEBREMEENRA
9I\E§§E KR W

WP Z g8t BREETT-

(iv) J:Ef##
E-EBERADAUBZRSE
FREEZERERYE
HBRAGHEK B R E A
0%BMALZERE BEEH
HREIE-—ETMELDH
50% - EEREBEANERLR
E-mERRAE-

S #T

=

(d)y H®#2IKFE
RZFEZHEF=H= +—E A
fﬁ“,)fe%as AliEERENR
% & #£117,598,0008 xT( — &

:ziwm%wm%ﬁ%

(e) BE
EETEEARNEBEEZE-_Z -
F=ZA=+—-—BzlRE(ZZ
—=F Z=F )
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

24 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(f)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its
debt position. The Group's strategy was to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced position
and ensure there was adequate working capital to
service its debt obligations. The ratio of the
Group's total liabilities over its total assets at 31
March 2024 was 57% (2023: 57%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group
to manage these risks are described below.

24 EXR # e (4F)

25
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AEEEBLEHELRE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B S R aR Y 5

(Expressed in

(AE TR T)

Hong Kong dollars)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk
is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
restricted bank balances and cash and bank
balances is limited as the counterparties are banks
with sound credit standing.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group, as where there is credit exposure to the
Group, it is spread over a diversified portfolio of
customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables in connection with operation of
clubbing business and restaurant and bar outlets is
limited because the counterparties are financial
institutions, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk.

In respect of trade receivables relating to the
provision of property management services,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates.

25

Bt % M B2

EEREMIERNAF

B (#&)
(a) EERRK
EERBREHFFABITAY

,\T_Tcﬁﬁ%\ﬁlzii‘i@ﬁﬂ‘klgﬁﬁﬁ’\]
R -AEBEEERREIEHER
®E Z & KR Iﬁoﬁiil%a%lli
EERRIFBEEZXSEEE

a =5
B L B

e

HRRXRSHEHFAEERTREER
E‘:Fﬁ&Ei’]fEﬁ $E@-xﬁﬁﬂfﬁ
THEB RS RIRITE % TR
THEERRAR-

rEBVYEREBEANEEERSE
EEREERRER-
ESEWKSE
AEBZEERRBREZES
FHEASR TS 2 MmIES
REMETEXBIRMATE
RAEEBBENEERR
RETIEHNEFPHEE - EAZZIK
TEEREFEERR-

g 1 ald
i U/ o W IR

[ = BT

Zlié‘.%éﬁi@ﬁﬁ BEENMERMM
XBEBENEZRERFTEAMRE
EWMEERBRAR DTHERYTF
THASERSAEBEREER
B T B

FEREREDEZEEREEEN
B EWHETE @5 EEF
BHOHHEEERE - ETE2EN
EPET METBITEHHE
FPIAEEBEZ&KLERR
BRHWENGEN XEREEPZE
EEMMREFPZEMENKE
REWNHBER-
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ARE B S R R MY AL
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)
25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 B EREEREM I A A ¥
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 85 (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =EEREKE)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEWSEE
The Group measures loss allowances for trade TrEBRERAR2HBEHEE
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, BEENSBHEESEKKE
which is calculated using a provision matrix. CEEBG EDNDGERBEER
EITENE -
The following table provides information about the TRHEINFBEBAEEERR 25
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade ERBRURESENZREZE
receivables: HEEBHEME R :
2024
—E-mEF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHER=R R EE BEREE
% $'000 $'000
% TER TR T
Property management Y FEHE
Less than 1 year past due  # Hi > pd — 4 0% - 4% 54,993 2,037
1-2 years past due BH— E W F 43% 8,054 3,442
2-3 years past due BEME = F 63% 2,660 1,680
3-4 years past due mE == NF 95% 1,546 1,461
More than 4 years past due # Hi & 1@ /Y 4 100% 2,780 2,780
70,033 11,400
Operation of clubbing HEBHERE EE
business and restaurant KB IE PT T
and bar outlets
Less than 1 year past due  # Hi 50 — 4 0% 2 -
Property management By ¥ EEHEBS
related value-added 1% 8 R 7%
services
Current (not past due) Bl ER (5K #81 HA) 0% 1,045 -
71,080 11,400
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

25 B HERE

BEREMmIAAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =EEREKE)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEWKSHEE)
2023
—E =4
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TE B 5 18 K WA E &5 18 B
% $'000 $'000
% FB T FBE T
Property management YFEHE
Less than 1 year past due  # Hi > pd — 4 0% - 7% 62,784 4,690
1-2 years past due BmE—E=mWE 33% 11,418 3,809
2-3 years past due BmEWE = F 56% 5,883 3,271
3-4 years past due BmHEH =M 4F 78% 4,562 3,537
More than 4 years past due # Hi & 1@ /Y 97% 5,434 5,252
90,081 20,559
Operation of clubbing HESHERE EE
business and restaurant KB 8 P s
and bar outlets
Current (not past due) Bl HR (K %80 HA) 0% 203 -
Property management 2y 2% E A B Ay
related value-added 118 IR 7%
services
Current (not past due) Bl HR (K %80 HA) 0% 1,670 -
91,954 20,559

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

BEHERXENRBERLFNE
BREBRKRTHE ]I*ETJ";J_EE%Z
BREHBBEMNLEEMRRT  EATH
Z&@Hﬁt/ﬂiﬁi$%@ﬁﬁm) H 1&
AEBEHANRERAR=FZ
MO ERETHE-

E==4]
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 B EREEREM I A A ¥
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 85 (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =EEREKE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B 5 EWEE)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect FR-BREIERNBEESE
of trade receivables during the year is as follows: B#FHOT:
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=
$'000 $'000
THET FAET
At the beginning of the year R F 1) 20,559 13,204
Impairment loss (reversed)/ B(EE) A2 HEEISE
recognised (note 7(c)) (B #£7(c) (189) 8,326
Written off 1 35 (7,900) -
Exchange adjustments & % 38 & (1,070) 971
At the end of the year NER 11,400 20,559
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBEZAR
Individual operating entities within the Group are AEEBAENKLEERBREES
responsible for their own cash management, BzHSER" ’7? Re BN
including the short-term investment of cash RHKRERERERENTES

surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
parent company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions or
controlling shareholder to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

ﬁ%%*'ﬁh%ﬁtﬂﬁmm
HEKER BIEAKSRRES
geHE-AEBOREATCHE
BRBHELBIR UNERES R
EWEiﬁﬁ&XQIEi@
BEXITEBRBRERNORHEEE
BEEE mAREBEEHERHE
EHEFKe
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A ISR M

(Expressed in

(ABTTER)

Hong Kong dollars)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group's financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

25 BIBEREERSMIALNTE
B (&)

(b)

REBE SRR GE)
TRINTAEEZBRAEBERR
EHRNBTAOIHABR 1
DREGHNAFTRASRER
BRAEHMEGE nEZEE Al
REBRESMRAONB N R)GFE
ORISR/ QD RN S I -
NHROKRFBEHEME L :

2024
ZE-mE
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARRFRRER

More than More than Carrying

1yearbut 2 years but amount at

Within 1 year less than less than 31 March

or on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2024

R-ZB-W%E

-FrE -FULE MENLE ZA=Zt-H

REX WEST AEHUT @5t REE

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

TERT TR TERL THERL TERL

Trade and other payables & 5 R E [ § 5 & 97,704 - - 97,704 97,704

Lease liabilities HERRE 5,944 115 - 6,059 6,027
Amount due to the controlling & i 12 f B 3 51 18

shareholder 5,694 - - 5,694 5,694
Loans from the controlling REERKRRER

shareholder 1,047 105,279 - 106,326 104,840

110,389 105,394 - 215,783 214,265
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M E B R R R M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 BB EEERESRMIAENFE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBELEKE)
2023
—E-=f%

(c)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AORFRAR SR

More than More than Carrying
1 year but 2 years but amount at
Within 1 year less than less than 31 March
or on demand 2 years 5 years Total 2023
R-F-=F
—ERg —FHEA RENLE ZA=+-H
BREX MEUT RENT @& RER
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R L L L
Trade and other payables BHREMENTIE 115,703 - - 115,703 115,703
Lease liabilities HERRE 13,901 2,700 - 16,601 16,216
Amount due to the controlling & ff 1% f it 2 5118
shareholder 4,650 - - 4,650 4,650
Loans from the controlling REERRRER
shareholder 23,107 1,047 52,799 76,953 74,420
157,361 3,747 52,799 213,907 210,989
Interest rate risk () FEEMK
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or MExEkEesIAZATE

future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from lease liabilities and loan from the controlling
shareholder (interest-bearing portion) as disclosed
in notes 21 and 22 respectively. Borrowings issued
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in the following table.

j@ﬂixiﬁ%/milﬁgmtﬁﬂj$

FEHHBEENER - ANE R F
ZXRERBEIBEELEAR D AN
21&22?)??)3‘2&%5’]@% EREPSA

BEBRBEREXGIEHD) - K

*“E?*TTEI’JF%\ A& E | R
RFEMNERAR NEEYL ﬁ%ﬁ

AemiTET A DA XER
TEE%CEIJ$‘§IA$¥§**E’\J
M EER -
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M E B R R R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HEERBEEREMIARAYF
18 (&)

(CONTINUED)
(¢) Interest rate risk (Continued) () A =ZREMKGE
2024 2023
g 13 o2
Effective Effective
interest rate $'000 interest rate $'000
EBRA=R TERT ERAZ TEL
Fixed rate borrowings: ENEEE:
Lease liabilities HERE 4.2% - 5.8% 6,027 35%-48% 16,216
Loans from the controlling shareholder & B A R R & 2.0% 52,360 2.0% 52,360
Total borrowings gy 58,387 68,576
The Group's interest-bearing financial liabilities at AEBRBREHRNTE 2R
fixed interest rates at the end of reporting period ié B(EE R X)) R IZ#8HX ARG
are lease liabilities and loans from the controlling ENHEAR T“ HXH§$1 =
shareholder that are measured at amortised cost, MGEMNEEZEHL T EEAE
and the change of market interest rate does not M B A = b e lﬁ IR 23R
expose the Group to interest rate risk. Accordingly, M E R BRERE DT
no sensitivity analysis has been presented.
(d) Currency risk (d) E % & k&

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through borrowings and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currency
giving rise to this risk is Renminbi.

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting period
to currency risk arising from recognised assets
or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to
which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in
HKD, translated using the spot rate at the
year end date. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group's
presentation currency are excluded.

AEBAZEMIIERR T ZX
EDA?I\M#TEE’JF*”&EE%
ﬁ% BIAR BT M2 &E 2R
BEENIINZEEFE - Bt R R
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ ST ZR/RARE-

(i) EiE¥ERE

T%ﬁLZIK%@ﬁ(\i&%,Hﬂ
RAERHBUABEBERID
BE B M LA Sh Y B G E A
ERAEELAEBEMELE
E’JEMHBDM?%E‘@JEE’\J'
J—W %ﬂmi%am%
5 /E;i%ﬁ L R B IR
BEBIEB ZHBEHER
RASEE2INEEMELE
MEBETTHE-
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ARE B S R R MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AB TR T)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 25 B EREEREM I A A ¥

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EKE)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) EBHEE®¥REPREGE)

Exposure to foreign currency
(expressed in HKD)
[ B 5 % & B

(K% T & 7R)
2024 2023
—R2o@pmE —FT-=F
Renminbi Renminbi
AR AR
$'000 $'000
TER FAET
Cash at bank and in hand RITEXRRFERS 351 586
Net exposure arising from CHEAEERABERMRN
recognised assets and liabilities E 4 2 B B F & 351 586
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) SBE 5

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit
after tax (and accumulated losses) that would
arise if foreign exchange rate to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period had changed at that
date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

THRITBRME A R
2 BHRFETE RN R
EHRAEEEES AR
SHEXRZBHRES -
& BB R OR M (K & &
BRI BN E -
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ANDFAIR 25 i EREERESRM I A A F
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B(4&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) E¥EKE)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) SBE 5 (&)
2024 2023
ZEZQME —T-=F
(Decrease) (Decrease)
increase/in increase/in
Increase/ profit Increase/ profit
(decrease) after tax (decrease) after tax
in foreign and in in foreign and in
exchange  accumulated exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses
B Bt 2 0 A RHEERR

MHEE = &?*’r@ﬂé
EA/(FB) (BD)/ &

SN IE [ = it B R
/TR GRD)/Em

$'000 $'000

TER FRET
Renminbi 10% (35) 10% (59)

(10%) 35 (10)% 59

Results of the analysis as presented in the FEFEINERERZ
above table represent an aggregation of the ERmMEALENREE
instantaneous effects on each of the Group B ENAEBRETEBHRM
entities’ loss after tax and accumulated losses EEEREFTEBEERRE
measured in the respective functional MARRTEXZRABE T
currencies, translated into HKD at the Wi E-
exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period for presentation purposes.
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the B E D TR ER N E B X
change in foreign exchange rates had been LEHERAREHAER
applied to re-measure those financial SRR BEHRFASH
instruments held by the Group which expose EHEENERROSETIA
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end BEESERNAIFETZY
of the reporting period, including R BB E B REM
inter-company payables within the Group, if B2 8EKII
any, which are denominated in a currency X¥EB MY BRBREKAK
other than the functional currencies of the SBE2NEEMELEZ
borrower. The analysis excludes differences EH-MoMBER_-_ZT - =
that would result from the translation of the FRREEET

financial statements of foreign operations
into the Group's presentation currency. The
analysis has been performed on the same
basis for 2023.
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A ISR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

26

(e)

Fair value measurement

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2024 and 2023.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of
the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company's directors as disclosed in note 9 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed
in note 10, is as follows:

25 BIREAKREERSBMIANTE
B (&)

(e) AF¥EFTE
TEBRBHEKAARZ2 R
TEEEERAER -_ZT K
FR-_ZE-_ZF=ZA=Z+—H
ZAFEEZRNTK-

(a) TEEEEBEAEHMH
AEET2EEBEABNHME
BXATHWEIRMBENKRRQF
EELMEIOMTENE T &
SHEMEENRB)WT

2024 2023
—EoMmE —FT-=

$'000 $'000
T &t FAET

Salaries and other short-term e hEMREHEERA
employee benefits 8,938 7,653
Retirement scheme contributions [ NET - R 167 163
9.105 7,816
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Transactions with other related parties
In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group entered into the following material
related party transactions:

26 EXEBAXR S (HE)

(by REMBBLIZXS
BRATBHRREMBOAEE
ZR 5 MR AN E R R
TETTIERXRS:

2024 2023
—E-E T =
$'000 $'000
FET FE T
Property management services REBE A 2 MEERRB
income from related parties (note) 4 A (K aF) 63,293 82,165
Short-term lease income received KB BB TN EHHEE
from related parties (note) LN N, 880 65
Services fee received from related 7] @ B 75 WL A AR 75 B (M 7%)
parties (note) 565 -

Note:

The related parties represented the entities owned or controlled
by Mr. Zheng Jianjiang, the controlling shareholder of the Group.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the
above transactions were carried out on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
business.

W g
CERE RS Iy
CEET LR

ARREERR LBRXSHTHE
PEEBEEPR -—RBERK

AT L e
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTER)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The property management services income from
related parties disclosed in note 26(b) includes
$63,293,000 (2023: $67,842,000) which constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are
provided in section “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of the Report of the directors.

In addition, short-term lease expenses and services
fee paid to related parties disclosed in note 26(b)
constituted connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are exempt
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, as they are below the de minimis
threshold under Rule 14A.76(1).

26 EXBEHBERS

(c)

230

AUX International Holdings Limited / B 52 Hi B RS 2 R A PR 24 B

(#&)
HEEXSEEMNLTRIIZ
HAM
MY sE26(0) BT R 8 BB
FzwmEZEBERB KA+
63,293,000 71( - = = = F:
67,842,0007% JT) K £ T 4R B &
1Mamﬁmzﬁkﬁéx%
tﬁu‘%ﬁﬂlJ%’MA%FﬁgT?&EE
REEEREPIFEHFER S
— B A e
AN B XXM sE26(0) R R 2 B

NEB OSSP EERIT R
BEBEKLELTRAUBUAZERR
ErBERSG -AM BARZESE
RGERBUATOMIETE T 2 &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A ISR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 27 AR EBHE 2 ¥ B AR R &K

POSITION
2024 2023
—EoMmME —FT-=
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 T & T FAE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB REE 414 356
Investments in subsidiaries KRB ARNIKE 15 10 10
k2 366
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b & Uk 3R 123 123
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W B B A &) 7 18 124,694 129,638
Cash at bank and in hand RITERAEFHER S 1,128 9,448
125945 139,209
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables EH b & T 518 3,419 6,296
Lease liabilities HEB®E 422 424
e 3.841 6,720
Net currentassets ~  #BRE®E 1227904 132,489
Total assets less current EEHERABAE
_ liabilites . d2252 132,855
NET ASSETS EEFE 122,528 132,855
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRF#EE 24(a)
Share capital % 7K 4,930 4,930
Reserves 7% 117,598 127,925
TOTAL EQUITY ERAHE 122,528 132,855
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

28

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 29 December 2023, the Group announced that the
lifestyle entertainment business have been experiencing
a downturn in recent years. In view of the outlook of the
business, the Board of Directors decided not to renew
the tenancy agreement of Zentral upon expiry and
ceased the operation during the year. In addition, the
restaurant and bar outlet also ceased to operate in view
of the imminent expiration of the relevant tenancy
agreement. Accordingly, this business was classified as

28 CRUIERBEXEK

RZEZ_ZF+ZAZ+hB &
BEEmMAEGTREXEKAIF —EER
FE - BRAREBZAR EFTgR

E fE Zentral 89 1 & 15 & EIJ,HM%T\E%E
MY RNFARRIERE- I R

MEEBENEINE E8LEEM
mMAFLEE-Rilb - Z¥EBEDE

ROEBRIERERF-

discontinued operation.

(@) The results of discontinued operation are as

(a) CRIEKZEXBEHEWT:

follows:
2024 2023
—E_@EF —EFT - =
HK$'000 HK$'000
T & T F %5 T
Revenue A 14,968 20,973
Other revenue H 4 e A 45 1,241
Other net gain Hfh 2= % 58 835
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKRR (6,493) (6,995)
Staff costs B I kA (11,744) (15,395)
Depreciation and amortisation rE R (2) (3,549)
Property rentals and MEBEE REBRRX
related expenses (2,986) (3,368)
Impairment losses on property, ME -BWELZHRE
plant and equipment & 1B - (13,057)
Advertising and marketing expenses & & & & i R XX (3,349) (4,531)
Utilities expenses KE (333) (515)
Repair and maintenance expenses  # {8 )SZ 3 T (150) (421)
Other operating expenses Hibh & & F X (2,890) (3,705)
Loss from operations KREEEH (12,099) (29,318)
Finance costs B & Bk AR (362) (315)
Loss before taxation Bx B Al B 1B (12,461) (29,633)
Income tax T ®t - -
Loss for the year from FRERLERE
discontinued operation XBBR (12,461) (29,633)
Attributable to: LT AN+ FEAL:
Equity shareholders of the Company 7% A 7] # # ix & (12,461) (29,633)
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mE MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

29

(b)

PARTIES

28 DISCONTINUED OPERATION (CONTINUED) 28 C & IR & X (&)
The cash flows of discontinued operation are as b) ERIEKEEBHRESROT
follows:
2024 2023
—E-M@EF —ZE=-=
$'000 $'000
TER FAT
Cash flows used in KEETHMARE R
operating activities (14,624) (10,525)
Cash flows generated from/(used in) & & J& &) & &/ (F1 F) &
investing activities W& 5 (927)
Cash flows used in MEZBRMARESRN
financing activities (10,520) (12,304)
Net cash flows I &m0 (25,139) (23,756)
IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 29. EE N BRAERA
At 31 March 2024, the directors consider the immediate RZE-_WNWE=ZA=Z+—"H EFFR
parent and ultimate holding company of the Group to be REAEENEEERAARERER
Huiri Limited and Ze Hui Limited respectively, both are AElBEDRARERERAERA
incorporated in the BVI and beneficially owned by Mr. EEEAERAA -MHEARHRE

Zheng Jianjiang. None of these parties produces
financial statements available for public use.

D HF B DU RS
38 i & KA

15 AY BE 25 R o

Annual Report 2024 %}

233



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

nVT\

BB WmRMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

30

31

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to the disclosure requirement in respect of the
discontinued operation set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements. The comparative
figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income have been restated as if the
operation discontinued during the current year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the prior period.

In addition, certain comparative figures also have been
reclassified to conform to current year's presentation.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March
2024 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

30

31

E®REBF
ETUBBFERAE URGEE

e ’“¢MT%I28Pﬁ%S€E§EAE%U:W
EEB2BRBER -HKABERRUAR

HEBEEhHEMEZEERER ZHEER
BFOKEY HFUAFEERIEZ
EBRNETHHEIVHBELLL-

BE-
A&

ETHuRBFTHEENS A
AEREzZ2HAA -

BE-_FE-_NmFE=A=+—H
T FEEEMHES RERBNE
AHAEARZRENATRSE

n

&

BEZSVERERZTNERY &3
SHMASEERMZERBE_-F
“HE=ZA=T-HALFERARE
MABARZEVBRREMN 2K
(ERTER-EFRBETIAIEELE
BT ER KRBT ER
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i

BB WK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AB TR T)

31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 31 #8Z=-—Z_-_mW&=HA=+—H
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS LEECEMENRERNE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE RIHEEARZBENTREE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 & (F)

(CONTINUED)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTBEHR
ZE&MA
MEFHBEXR

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current (“2020 amendments”)

BEREGREANE VR 2B WEHRXZEN BESERTE L IFTE
((ZZE=ZFFEFT))

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements: Non-current
liabilities with covenants (“2022 amendments”)

EREFERE VR 2B HBERXES WHERONFRBEE

Amendments to HKFRS 16, Leases: Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

FEAMBHRERAUEIR 2B HE - ERHONMNHEERR

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows and HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements

EREGHEANETIR 2B HaensXREEHUEREERETR
TAH: - FE HEFRELH

g4

Amendments to HKAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates: Lack
of exchangeability

ERGMEMNENRZER EXEHPHNTE R ALK

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of NEE TR
what the impact of these developments is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

%5

R R

1 January 2024

—E-_mF—H—H

1 January 2024
—F-_HWE—-A—H

1 January 2024
—F-_HWE—-A—H

1 January 2024

—E-_mF—H—H

1 January 2025
—E-_ha%—HA—H

ZEBITRERER

%ﬁZﬁ%wE°aAﬁt ZNE Y

1 nT&%ﬁnT’EEUT’;\

BEEMBRRERERTE -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFEMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, equity and
liabilities of the Group for the five financial years is as follows:

BahBAEMEHOT:

Year ended 31 March
BEZAZ1+—HLEE

AEERBERTEMBERENRAAREE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—EoNE —E-=F —ET-— T ZT_THF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE R FAT FAET FAT FAT
(note)
(Bt 3%)
Revenue A 378,817 397,092 357,239 302,907 339,972
Profit/(loss) KB EERR/
from operations (B#) 33,379 43,883 20,833 9,444 32,122
Income tax expense PT 15 B X (15,163) (18,006) (18,591) (15,679) (15,953)
Profit/(loss) for the year & M & 7,/ (& #8) 16,771 24,136 (108) (8,621) 13,213
At 31 March
R=A=+—-8
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
SEoNF ZRZ=-fF ZEZZF ZEZ—F ZTZTH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FAT FAT FTAT
Total Assets BEE 529,116 537,740 602,338 447,247 433,194
Total Liabilities BmaE 299,154 305,784 358,448 311,556 (304,820)
229,962 231,956 243,890 135,691 128,374
Equity attributable to: AT A T &5 # %
- Owners of the Company — AR B # A A 229,962 231,956 243,890 135,691 128,374
Note: As described in note 28 to the financial statements, the Group's lifestyle Mz : MM B HR XKW F28fr it - BE T - F =

entertainment business has been discontinued during the year ended 31
March 2024. No reclassification has been made in financial summary to
distinguish the results of continuing operations and discontinued
operation

A=1+—RIEFE AEBADKIEEFREEXT -
TERPBERHETETETFSIBUNESIBER
EEBRORUEEEEBTNESE -
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